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UNION COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT

500 N. Main St., Suite. 709
Monroe, NC 28112
(704) 283-3813

November 13, 2012

To the Honorable Chairman, Members of the Board of Commissioners, and Citizens of Union
County:

Laws of the State of North Carolina, along with policies and procedures of the North Carolina Local
Government Commission, require that all local governments in the State publish a complete set of
financial statements annually. The financial statements must be presented in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and audited in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to those requirements, we hereby issue the annual
financial report of Union County (the County) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

This report consists of management’'s representations concerning the finances of the County.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the
information contained in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
County management has established a comprehensive framework of internal control that is
designed to both protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the County’s financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed anticipated benefits, the
objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are
free of material misstatements. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

Potter & Company, P.A., a firm of licensed certified public accountants, has issued an unqualified
(“clean”) opinion on Union County’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2012. The
independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of this report. The audit
was also designed to meet the requirements of the Federal Single Audit Act Amendment of 1996, as
well as the State Single Audit Act, N.C.G.S. 159-34. The reports required by these ACTs are
submitted as separate reports, which includes the schedules of financial assistance, findings and
questioned costs, and the independent auditors’ report on internal control and compliance.

Management'’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report
and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements.
MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Profile of the Government

Union County, established in 1842, is located in the south-central portion of North Carolina adjacent
to Charlotte/Mecklenburg County and bordering South Carolina. The County currently occupies
approximately 643 square miles and serves a population of about 205,717.

The County operates under a Commission-Manager form of government. The governing body of the
County is the Board of County Commissioners, which formulates policies for the administration of
the County. In addition, the Board annually adopts a balanced budget and establishes a tax rate for



the support of the County’s programs. The Board consists of five commissioners, elected on a
staggered basis for terms of four years. The County Manager is appointed by, and serves at the
pleasure of the Board as the County’s Chief Executive Officer. The Manager has appointive and
removal authority over department heads and other employees of the County. The County Manager
is responsible for the daily operations of the County Government. In addition, the Manager’'s
responsibilities include implementation of policies established by the Board of Commissioners, as
well as the administration of the annual budget adopted by the Board.

The County provides a wide range of services including public safety, human services (Social
Services, Health, Veteran and Transportation), funds for education, cultural and recreational
activities, and general administration functions. Additionally, the County owns and operates water,
sewer and solid waste systems and a stormwater program. This annual financial report includes all
funds of the County including all activities considered to be part of (controlled by or dependent on)
the County.

The board of County Commissioners is required to adopt an initial budget for the fiscal year no later
than July 1. The budget serves as the foundation for Union County’s financial planning and control.
As required by the North Carolina Budget and Fiscal Control Act, the County adopts an annual
budget for all governmental and proprietary operating funds except those authorized by project
ordinance which are multi-year in nature. Appropriations to the various funds are formally budgeted
on a departmental basis for the general and at the fund level for the special revenue, debt service,
enterprise (proprietary operating) and capital project (multi-year) funds. The County Manager is
authorized to approve appropriation transfers within and between all departments within a fund. In
most cases, the Board must approve budget adjustments that alter the total appropriation of any
fund. However, for expenditure control purposes the budget is monitored and controlled on a
departmental and line-item level.

Local Economy

Union County’s tax base is predominately residential (80 percent of value) with a sizable commercial
component (20 percent of value). The tax base does not exhibit a high degree of taxpayer
concentration, with the top ten taxpayers representing a modest 4 percent of assessed value.
Manufacturing and agriculture remain an important part of the local economy, including the County’s
largest, non-governmental employers, ATI-Allvac Metals and Tyson Farms, each employing over
1,000 people in the County. Wealth levels exceed State averages, with a 2010 median family
income (MFI) and per capita income of 144 percent and 113 percent of the State average,
respectively.’

Contributing to the County’s growth during the past decade is its proximity to the City of Charlotte
and Mecklenburg County, which contain the largest population in the State and comprise the major
urban center of North Carolina’s piedmont crescent. The County’s diverse economic base and the
interdependence of the Charlotte-Gastonia-Concord Metropolitan Statistical Area or MSA are major
factors that have contributed to the County’s rapid growth during the previous decade.

Like most counties and local governments throughout the U.S., the County is still experiencing the
effects of a slower economy. The County maintains lower unemployment rates (8.6 percent in July
2012) than the State (9.6 percent in July 2012), but currently has a higher rate of unemployment
than the United States (8.3 percent in July 2012.)

Building activity in fiscal year 2012 showed signs of limited growth. For fiscal year 2012, there were
2,061 commercial and residential construction permits issued County-wide, compared to fiscal year

1 2012 Moody’s Investor's Service, Inc. and/or its licensors and affiliates (collectively, MOODY'S).



2011 of 1,747; showing an 18 percent increase. This trend is anticipated to continue into the near
future.

Monroe, the County seat, in winter of 2012, was named one of the top ten successful aviation and
aerospace clusters in the south by “Southern Business and Development” magazine. Monroe’s
focus on aerospace recruitment began in 2002, resulting in nearly 3,000 jobs and almost $600
million in aerospace related capital investment.

Long-Term Financial Planning

The North Carolina State Demographics Unit expects the County’s population to grow, over the next
ten years, by another 26 percent or 52,401 between 2010 and 2020, reaching 253,693 by the year
2020. Public school enroliment, currently at approximately 40,359 is projected to increase to
approximately 40,696 by 2016.> The County’s utility system added an average of approximately
1,827 new water connections in fiscal years 2011 and 2012.

Although it is anticipated the County will experience steady growth, maintenance of existing
infrastructure and facilities will become an even greater challenge. While the County’s current debt
load is significant, during the next five years, 31.1 percent or $152.8 million of the County’s tax
supported debt will be retired. Within the next ten years, 60.4 percent or $296.5 million of the
County’s tax supported debt will be retired. This maturation of debt sets the stage for the next round
of infrastructure and maintenance needs.

The tax-supported CIP contains projected capital expenditures for the Union County Public Schools
(“UCPS”), South Piedmont Community College (“SPCC”) and County programs and functions such
as law enforcement, parks and recreation and general government. The CIP is funded through
current revenues, capital contributions and long-term debt. The CIP and financial forecast is updated
annually to reflect changing priorities and circumstances.

The current human services leased facility is outdated and inadequate. To address the changing
needs of the clients and citizens of Union County, in the fall of 2012, the Board of County
Commissioners approved preliminary design and permitting for the construction of a new 120,000
SF, approximately $35 million new human services campus.

Union County Public Works retained the services of Black and Veatch to develop a Comprehensive
Water and Wastewater Master Plan. The Plan provides for an assessment of each utility’s service
areas (water supply, water treatment and distribution, wastewater collection, wastewater treatment
and disposal) and provides an integrated plan for a consolidated method for improving and
expanding its water and wastewater systems. The integrated plan provides a comprehensive
approach to Union County’s water resources development and utilization and serves as a guide for
future system development and investment decisions.

This plan included Community Outreach, Population & Demand/Flow Projections, System
Performance Criteria, Water and Wastewater System Models, Future Water and Wastewater
scenarios and a 20-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). Based on the service area projections and
system evaluations and assessments the CIP defines the needed system improvements for the 20-
year planning horizon.

Based on the service area projections and the system evaluations and assessments, needed
capacity and system improvements for existing and future system conditions were identified and
prioritized and compiled into a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for the 20-year planning horizon. The

22010 Union County Public Schools Enrollment Forecast.



CIP is based on an assumption of an Inter-Basin Transfer (IBT) increase from 5 mgd to 10 mgd
granted by the State by 2017.

System improvement projects are categorized as water supply/treatment projects, wastewater
treatment/disposal projects, water distribution projects, or wastewater collection projects. A project
identification (ID) system defines the project location and type. System improvements and
expansions will be funded through a combination of pay-as-you-go funding and revenue bonds
supported through utility rates.

During the fiscal year 2014 operating budget and capital improvement planning process, the County-
wide capital needs will be evaluated in light of the 6-year capital improvement plan.

Relevant Financial Policies

The investment policy of the County is guided in a large part by State statute. The County believes
strongly in making the best possible use of idle cash resources and as a result, investments have
been made in securities that insure that ample funds are available as needed to meet disbursement
requirements as well as to take advantage of market fluctuations. This approach allows the County
to maximize financial return within the parameters of acceptable risk.

Debt Administration. The County’s general obligation bond rating of Aal/AA/AA+ was affirmed by
the three national rating agencies of Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor's and Fitch
respectively during fiscal year 2012; and upgraded ratings of Aa2/AA-/AA for the enterprise system
revenue bonds. The County’s key financial ratios relating to tax-supported debt are summarized in
the following table.

30-Jun-12 30-Jun-11 30-Jun-10 30-Jun-09 30-Jun-08 )

Assessed Value $23,200,010,216 $23,190,179,804 $23,075,783,412  $22,516,019,353  $17,475,253,325
Net Tax Supported Debt $511,925,514 $542,794,901 $565,005,530 $592,322,950 $539,952,268
Net Tax Supported Debt as a

Percentage of Assessed Value 2.21% 2.34% 2.45% 2.63% 3.09%
Debt Senice as a Percent of

Expenditures 23.90% 23.00% 23.00% 22.70% 19.80%
Population 205,717 201,292 196,322 191,514 182,360
Debt per Capita $2,488 $2,697 $2,878 $3,093 $2,961
Available Fund Balance as a Percent

of General Fund Expenditures 23.70% 18.90% 18.10% 20.30% 16.50%

The County continues to fulfill its pledged revenue coverage per the revenue bond indenture for its
Water and Sewer Bonds. For fiscal year 2012 the County maintained its two pronged test; one test
which permits the inclusion of 20 percent of the balance of the Surplus Fund, $5,623,708 from the
prior fiscal year, with the other test omitting the Surplus Fund and the coverage ratio (2.6 times and
2.14 times coverage respectively, as stated in Table 14 of the Statistical Section).

Adherence to the County’s debt management policy is critical in light of the County’s projected
infrastructure requirements and its current debt ratios.

Risk management. The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to assets, liabilities
claimed by third parties and employee injury. Stop-loss insurance provides statutory workers’
compensation benefits above the County’s self-insurance limit of $350,000 per occurrence. Claims
are administered under contract with a third party administrator. Claim reserves are established



when an injury occurs and the ultimate expected exposure of each claim can be reasonably
estimated by the third party claims administrator.

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year and settled
claims have not exceeded insurance policy limits in the last 3-years.

Pension plans. County employees are required to participate in one of several multiple-employer,
defined benefit pension plans administered by the State of North Carolina. In addition to the pension
plans administered by the State, the County administers a single-employer defined benefit plan, a
supplemental retirement income plan and a single-employer defined benefit retiree healthcare
benefits plan for certain qualified employees. All of these plans are discussed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Each County department’'s strong commitment to the goals, vision and mission statements of the
County are reflected in their provision of services to the citizens of Union County. We appreciate the
cooperation of all County departments in conducting financial activities, including the preparation of
this report.

We also wish to express appreciation to the Board of County Commissioners, County Manager
Cynthia Coto, Interim Finance Director, Wes Baker and the entire Finance Department staff for
making Union County a fiscally sound, well-governed organization.

Respectfully submitted,

Z %‘ﬁ— @A Sonn

Jeffrey A. Yates Andrea A. Robinson
Finance Director Assistant Finance Director
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POTTER & COMPANY, PA.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Commissioners
Union County, North Carolina
Monroe, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Union County, North
Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the County’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Union County, North Carolina as of June
30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and
the respective budgetary comparison of the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 13,
2012, on our consideration of Union County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. The purpose of the
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our
audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis, the Special Separation Allowance and the Other Postemployment Retiree
Healthcare Benefits (OPEB) Schedules of Funding Progress and Schedules of Employer Contributions,
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards general accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

13
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Union County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, the combining and
individual fund financial statements and schedules and the statistical section as listed in the
accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single
Audit Implementation Act, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules and schedule of expenditures of
federal and state awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules and the schedule of expenditures
of federal and state awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The introductory section and the statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied by us in the audit of basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

November 13, 2012 ?
Monroe, North Carolina 5%_ ¢ 47'7
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Union County, we offer readers of Union County’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Union County for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which
can be found on pages 3-7 of this report, and the County’s financial statements, which follow
this narrative.

Financial Highlights

e The liabilities of Union County exceeded its assets at the close of the most recent fiscal year
by $52,683,170 (net assets), an improvement of $86,749,450 from the prior fiscal year.

e Union County’s governmental activities’ total net assets reflected a deficit of $297,492,876
largely because Union County recognizes the long-term liability for school related debt while
the accompanying assets were transferred to the Union County Public Schools and South
Piedmont Community College respectively. In accordance with North Carolina law, the
County is financially responsible for funding school facilities and the issuance of any debt in
connection with school facilities; however, since school assets are not reflected in the
County’s financial statements, school capital improvements are expensed.

e At the close of the current fiscal year, Union County’s governmental funds reported
combined fund balances of $146,480,225, an increase of $59,981,252 in comparison with
the prior year. Approximately 35 percent of this amount ($51,249,617) is available for
spending at the County’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, the unrestricted fund balance (the total of the assigned
and unassigned components of fund balance) for the general fund was $52,747,393, or
approximately 23.9 percent of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year.

e Union County’s total outstanding long-term debt decreased by $37,876,932 or 6.15 percent
during the current fiscal year. The key factor in this decrease was annual debt service
payments.

e Union County maintained its Aal/AA/AA+ general obligation bond ratings and upgraded
ratings of Aa2/AA-/AA for the enterprise system revenue bonds.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the
County’s basic financial statements. The County’s basic financial statements consist of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3)
notes to the financial statements (see figure 1). The basic financial statements present two
different views of the County through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial
statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental
information that will enhance the reader’'s understanding of the financial condition of Union
County.
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Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements (Exhibits A & B) in the basic financial statements are the Government-
wide Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the
County’s financial status.

The next statements (Exhibits C through L) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements
focus on the activities of the individual parts of the County’s government. These statements
provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There are four parts to the Fund
Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison
statements; 3) the proprietary fund statements; and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial
statements explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes,
supplemental information is provided to show details about the County’s non-major
governmental funds and internal service funds, each of which are added together in separate
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columns on the basic financial statements. Budgetary information required by the General
Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Following the notes is the required supplemental information. This section contains funding
information about the County’s pension plans.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad
overview of the County’s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector
business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the
County’s financial status as a whole.

The statement of net assets presents financial information on all of the County’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may serve as useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving
or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the County’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash
flows. Thus revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental activities and
2) business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of the County’s basic
services such as public safety, human services, education, cultural and recreational, general
government and economic and physical development. Property taxes, local option sales taxes,
and state and federal grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities
are those the County charges customers to provide. These include the water and sewer, solid
waste and stormwater services offered by Union County.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits A & B of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the County’s most significant
activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Union County, like all
other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect
compliance (or non-compliance) with finance related legal requirements, such as the General
Statutes or the County’s budget ordinance. All of the County’s funds can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
Most of the County's basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds
focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are
left at year-end that will available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are
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reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting. This method also has
a current financial resources focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give
the reader a detailed short-term view that helps to determine if there are more or less financial
resources available to finance the County’s programs. The relationship between government
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, Exhibits A
and B) and governmental funds (Exhibits C and E) is described in reconciliations (Exhibits D
and F) that are a part of the fund financial statements.

Union County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General
Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of
the County, the management of the County, and the decisions of the Board about which
services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the County to obtain funds from
identified sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided
for the General Fund demonstrates how well the County complied with the budget ordinance
and whether or not the County succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget
was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and
is presented using the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget
document. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the board;
2) the final budget as amended by the board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations,
and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final
budget and the actual resources and charges.

Proprietary Funds — Union County maintains two different types of proprietary funds,
Enterprise and Internal Service. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Union
County uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer activity, solid waste activity,
and stormwater activity.

Internal service funds are an accounting mechanism used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the County’s various functions. The County uses internal service funds to
account for health benefits, worker's compensation, and property and casualty insurance.
Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type
functions, they have been included within the governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Water and Sewer, Solid Waste, and the Stormwater operations. Conversely,
the internal service funds are combined in a single aggregated presentation in the proprietary
fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds are provided in the
form of combining statements , in the combining and individual fund statements and schedules
section of this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found in Exhibits H through J of this
report.

Fiduciary Funds — Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Union County maintains eleven different fiduciary funds.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the County’'s own programs. The
accounting method used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.
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Union County maintains two different types of fiduciary funds; pension trust funds and agency
funds. Two Pension Trust Funds are used to report resources held in trust for qualified County
retirees covered by the Special Separation Allowance Fund and the Other Postemployment
Retiree Healthcare Benefits (OPEB) Fund.

The Agency Funds report resources held by Union County in a custodial capacity for individuals,
private organizations or other governments. These funds include the Social Services Fund,
Fines and Forfeitures Fund, Jail Inmate Fund, Monroe and Union County School District Funds,
Municipal Tax Collection Fund, Deed of Trust Fee Fund, Gross Rental Receipts Tax Fund, and
the Department of State Treasurer Motor Vehicle Tax Fund.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found in Schedules 34 through 36 of this
report.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements. The notes to the financial statements are found on pages 45-95 of this report.

Other information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Union County’s
progress in funding its obligation to provide separation allowance pension benefits to its
employees and other postemployment retiree healthcare benefits (OPEB) to its retired
employees. Required supplementary information regarding pension and OPEB funding can be
found on Exhibits M through P of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds
and internal service funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary
information on pensions and OPEB. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules
can be found on Schedules 1 through 8 of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's
financial condition. The liabilities of Union County exceeded assets by $52,683,170 as of June
30, 2012. One of the largest portions, $197,148,338, reflects the County’s investment in capital
assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, equipment, vehicles, and infrastructure) less any related
outstanding debt that was issued to acquire those assets. Union County uses these capital
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending.

Although Union County’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding
related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since
the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. An additional portion of Union
County’s net assets, $22,743,814, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The remaining deficit balance of $272,575,322 is unrestricted.

At the end of the current fiscal year, Union County reports a negative balance unrestricted
category of net assets for governmental activities and positive balances for business-type
activities. The same situation held true in prior fiscal years.
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Union County, North Carolina
Net Assets
June 30, 2012 and 2011
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Current and Other Assets  $ 195,857,892 $ 126,298,926 $ 115,287,502 $112,889,577 $311,145,394 $ 239,188,503
Capital Assets 68,811,416 70,746,258 212,417,225 217,018,259 281,228,641 287,764,517
Total Assets 264,669,308 197,045,184 327,704,727 329,907,836 592,374,035 526,953,020
Long-Term Liabilities 517,118,904 534,546,342 75,241,732 79,477,199 592,360,636 614,023,541
Other Liabilities 45,043,280 45,973,676 7,653,289 6,388,423 52,696,569 52,362,099
Total Liabilities 562,162,184 580,520,018 82,895,021 85,865,622 645,057,205 666,385,640
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 44,186,127 43,648,788 152,962,211 151,130,981 197,148,338 194,779,769
Restricted 22,189,074 24,290,336 554,740 2,880,533 22,743,814 27,170,869
Unrestricted (363,868,077)  (451,413,958) 91,292,755 90,030,700 (272,575,322)  (361,383,258)
Total net assets $ (297,492,876) $ (383,474,834) $ 244,809,706 $244,042,214 $ (52,683,170) $(139,432,620)

As with many counties in the State of North Carolina, the County’s Governmental Activities
deficit in unrestricted net assets in the amount of $363,868,077 is due primarily to the portion of
the County’s outstanding debt incurred for the Union County Board of Education (the “school”)
and the South Piedmont Community College (the “community college”). Under North Carolina
law, the County is responsible for providing capital funding for the school and community
college systems. The County has chosen to meet its legal obligation to provide the systems’
capital funding by using a mixture of County funds, general obligation debt and installment
financings. The assets funded by the County, however, are titled to, and utilized by the school
and community college systems. Since the County, as the issuing government, acquires no
capital assets, the County has incurred a liability without a corresponding increase in assets.

Net Assets for the Year Ended June 30, 20XX
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Net Assets for the Year Ended June 30, 20XX

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Governmental Activities  $ (131,690,000) $ (260,185,691) $ (352,513,653) $ (405,646,023) $ (402,037,215) $ (383,474,834) $(297,492,876)
Business-Type activities 183,406,671 214,626,151 234,849,292 238,573,639 240,001,432 244,042,214 244,809,706
Total Net Assets $ 51,716,581 $ (45559,540) $(117,664,361) $(167,072,384) S (161,045,783) $(139,432,620) $ (52,683,170)
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The County’s overall net assets increased $86,749,450 from the prior fiscal year. Several
particular aspects of the County’s financial operations positively influenced the total unrestricted
governmental net assets.

e Long-term debt decreased by $37,876,932 or 6.15 percent during the current fiscal year. The
key factor in this decrease was annual debt service payments.

e The County received $54,000,000 as a one-time upfront lease payment from the County’s
hospital joint venture, Union Memorial Regional Medical Center, doing business as Carolinas
Medical Center-Union (CMC-Union).

Union County, North Carolina
Changes in Net Assets
June 30, 2012 and 2011
Gowvernmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for Senices $ 11,041,822 $ 9,754,825 $ 29,864,040 $ 29,828,876 $ 40,905,862 $ 39,583,701
Operating grants and contributions 31,686,778 31,977,253 372,658 344,414 32,059,436 32,321,667
Capital grants and contributions 573,183 423,685 6,679,066 3,890,400 7,252,249 4,314,085
General Revenues:
Property taxes 160,375,634 159,049,464 - - 160,375,634 159,049,464
Other taxes 28,115,330 25,512,748 - - 28,115,330 25,512,748
Grants and contributions not
restricted to a specific purpose 86,716 108,028 - - 86,716 108,028
Other 9,256,523 4,500,312 543,856 1,148,532 9,800,379 5,648,844
Extraordinary item 54,000,000 - - - 54,000,000
Total Revenues 295,135,986 231,326,315 37,459,620 35,212,222 332,595,606 266,538,537
Expenses:
General government 13,154,999 12,770,039 - - 13,154,999 12,770,039
Public safety 42,417,985 38,692,049 - - 42,417,985 38,692,049
Economic and physical Environment 2,930,309 3,710,570 - - 2,930,309 3,710,570
Human Senices 38,855,691 37,806,928 - - 38,855,691 37,806,928
Cultural and recreational 6,432,361 6,153,502 - - 6,432,361 6,153,502
Education 83,419,258 90,656,362 - - 83,419,258 90,656,362
Interest and fees on long-term debt 21,943,425 22,974,484 - - 21,943,425 22,974,484
Water and sewer - - 29,762,394 27,785,295 29,762,394 27,785,295
Solid waste - - 4,497,006 4,184,286 4,497,006 4,184,286
Stormwater - - 148,634 191,859 148,634 191,859
Total Expenses 209,154,028 212,763,934 34,408,034 32,161,440 243,562,062 244,925,374
Increase in net assets 85,981,958 18,562,381 3,051,586 3,050,782 89,033,544 21,613,163
Net assets as of July 1 (383,474,834) (402,037,215) 244,042,214 240,991,432 (139,432,620) (161,045,783)
Prior Period Adjustment * - - (2,284,094) - (2,284,094)
Net assets as of June 30 $ (297,492,876) $ (383,474,834) $ 244,809,706 $ 244,042,214 $ (52,683,170) $ (139,432,620)
* See Note 23
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Governmental Activities — During the current fiscal year, net assets for governmental activities
increased $85,981,958 from the prior fiscal year for an ending negative balance of
$297,492,876. This is due to previously mentioned annual debt service payments and the one-
time upfront lease payment from the hospital joint venture.

The majority of the County’s expenses are related to education, $83,419,258 (39.9 percent);
public safety, $42,417,985 (20.3 percent); and human services, $38,855,691 (18.6 percent).

FY 2012 Program Revenues and Expenses - Governmental Activities
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FY 2012 Program Revenues and Expenses - Governmental Activities
Economic and Interest and
. ) Human Culture and .
General Public Physical . . Education  Fees on Long-
Senices Recreation
Government Safety Development Term Debt
Program Revenues $ 1,995,311 $ 8,976,167 $ 284,361 $ 23,264,220 $ 1,049,985 $ 7,731,739 $ -
Expenses 13,154,999 42,417,985 2,930,309 38,855,691 6,432,361 83,419,258 21,943,425

Business-type Activities — For Union County’s business-type activities, the results for the
current fiscal year were positive in that overall net assets increased by $3,051,586 to reach an
ending balance of $244,809,706.

The majority of the County’s business-type expenses are related to water and sewer,
$29,762,394 (86.5 percent) and solid waste, $4,497,006 (13.1 percent).
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FY 2012 Program Revenues and Expenses - Business-type Activities
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FY 2012 Program Revenues and Expenses - Business-type Activities

Water and Sewer Solid Waste Stormwater
Program Revenues $ 32,752,766 $ 4,162,998 $ -
Expenses 29,762,394 4,497,006 148,634

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds

As noted earlier, Union County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds — The focus of Union County’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned
fund balance (fund balance available for appropriation), may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for discretionary use as they represent the portion of fund
balance which has not yet been limited to use for a particular purpose by either an external
party, Union County itself, or a group or individual that has been delegated authority to assign
resources for use for particular purposes by Union County’s Board of Commissioners.

At June 30, 2012, Union County’'s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of
$146,480,225, an increase of $59,981,252 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
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35.0 percent of this amount ($51,249,617) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is
available for spending at the government's discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is
either non-spendable, restricted, or assigned to indicate that it is 1) non-spendable and not in a
spendable form ($84,618), 2) restricted to specific purposes as imposed by law ($20,564,072),
or 3) assigned and intended to be used for specific purposes ($74,581,918).

Governmental Funds Components of Fund Balance for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 20XX

Unassigned

posanes —
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2011 m2012

Governmental Funds Components of Fund Balance for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 20XX

2012 2011
Nonspendable $ 84,618 ¢ 103,287
Restricted 20,564,072 24,171,561
Assigned 74,581,918 22,243,781
Unassigned 51,249,617 39,980,344

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of Union County. At the end of the current fiscal
year, the County’s unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $51,249,617, while total
fund balance increased by $11,499,233, from $54,494,284 to $65,993,517. As a measure of
the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total
fund balance to total general fund expenditures.

The Board of Commissioners has determined that the County should maintain an available
unassigned fund balance of 16 percent of total expenditures including regular inter-fund
transfers in case of unforeseen needs or opportunities, in addition to meeting the cash flow
needs of the County. As of June 30, 2012, the County has an unassigned fund balance of 23.3
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percent of general fund expenditures, while total fund balances represents 29.9 percent of that
same amount.

General Fund Components of Fund Balance for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
20XX
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General Fund Components of Fund Balance for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20XX

2012 2011
Non-spendable $ 84,618 $ 103,287
Restricted 13,161,506 12,754,599
Assigned 1,497,776 1,656,054
Unassigned 51,249,617 39,980,344

The increase was primarily due to $4.7 million of hospital lease revenue, $2.3 million in local
option sales tax, and other revenues and efficiencies.

The fund balance of the General Capital Project Fund, a major fund, had a net increase of
$53,677,736 to $73,050,880 due in large part to an inter-fund transfer from the General Fund of
$57,000,000. This was comprised of the $54,000,000 received from the hospital joint venture
and $3,000,000 due to revenues and efficiencies of the General Fund.

The School Bond Fund 55, the remaining major governmental fund, had a decrease in fund
balance during the current year of $2,432,019 to bring the year end fund balance to $910,725.
The decrease essentially results from continued contributions to school related capital projects.

Proprietary Funds — Union County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide statements but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of the year was $87,285,510;
an increase of $1,386,876. The increase was primarily due to a rise in customer accounts,
capacity fees and operating efficiencies.
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Unrestricted net assets of the Solid Waste Fund at the end of the year was $4,284,545; a
decrease of $143,170. The decrease was largely due to a net loss of $289,776 for the current
year, due primarily to higher operating expenses.

Unrestricted net assets of the Stormwater Fund at the end of the year was to $42,824; an
increase of $13,032. This was a result of lower operating expenses.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Original Budget Compared to Final Budget — During the year the County revised the budget
on several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: 1)
amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget
ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding
amounts from external sources, such as federal and State grants; and 3) increases in
appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.

The General Fund final budget for expenditures increased $9,831,281 primarily due to the
increases in human services and public safety. The General Fund final budget for revenue
increased by $2,634,762, primarily due to an increase in intergovernmental revenues from
federal and State grants. The $54,000,000 extraordinary revenue from the joint venture with
Union Memorial Regional Medical Center d/b/a Carolinas Medical Center-Union was
appropriated as an inter-fund transfer to the General Capital Project Fund.

Final Budget Compared to Actual Results — The most significant differences between
estimated revenues and actual revenues were as follows:

FY 2012 General Fund Revenue Compared to Estimates
Estimated Actual Differences
Ad valorem taxes $ 154,095,627 $ 156,545,802 $ 2,450,175
Local option sales tax 23,000,000 25,665,902 2,665,902
Other taxes and license 1,522,500 1,742,152 219,652
Intergovernmental 29,870,690 30,654,996 784,306
Permits and fees 2,424,696 3,014,314 589,618
Sales and senices 5,334,000 5,266,772 (67,228)
Investment earnings 1,000,000 1,057,509 57,509
Miscellaneous 3,032,950 8,693,729 5,660,779
Extraordinary item 54,000,000 54,000,000 -

The surplus in the above revenue sources was reflective of an improving economy during the
current year.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets — Union County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business-type activities as of June 30, 2012, amounts to $281,228,641 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, machinery, equipment,
vehicles, park facilities, and water and wastewater infrastructure. The total decrease in capital
assets for the current fiscal year was approximately 1.4 percent.

Union County, North Carolina
Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2011 2011

2012 2011 2012 (as restated) 2012 (as restated)

Land $ 4,812,189 $ 4,812,189 $ 2,860,642 $ 2,860,642 $ 7,672,831 $ 7,672,831

Buildings 42,772,318 42,490,635 842,556 966,338 43,614,874 43,456,973

Infrastructure - - 194,939,742 202,362,306 194,939,742 202,362,306
Improvements other than

buildings 3,763,181 4,003,147 577,349 617,092 4,340,530 4,620,239

Marchinery and equipment 13,318,300 15,062,649 931,571 1,067,303 14,249,871 16,129,952

Construction in progresss 4,145,428 4,377,638 12,265,365 6,609,244 16,410,793 10,986,882

Total Capital Assets $ 68,811,416 $ 70,746,258 $212,417,225 $214,482,925 $281,228,641 $ 285,229,183

Major capital asset transactions during the year include:

Purchase and replacement of public safety vehicles and related mobile data equipment;
and replacement of transportation vehicles

Repainting the Historic Courthouse

Continuation of the acquisition and installation of a public safety radio communications
equipment

Continuation of construction related to various Government Facility renovations
Continuation of Jail roof replacement

Continuation of Jail control system replacement

Continuation of technology and related equipment improvements for the Information
Technology, Inspections, and Social Services Departments

Continuation of engineering and design services in connection with the Catawba River
Water Treatment Plant (CRWTP) expansion

Continuation of engineering and design services in connection with the Catawba River
Water Treatment Plant (CRWTP) reservoir expansion from 40 MG to 850 MG
Continuation of engineering and design services in connection with the Twelve Mile
Creek Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP) expansion

Continuation of construction of East Side sewer system improvements

Continuation of construction of Tallwood WWTP replacement

Continuation of construction of Olde Sycamore WWTP replacement

Continuation of construction of Twelve Mile Creek sewer diversion to the Charlotte
Mecklenburg Utility Department (CMUD)

Receipt of contributed capital consisting of approximately $2.0 million for water and
sewer distribution and collection systems
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Additional information on Union County’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 of this report.

Long-term Debt — At the end of the current fiscal year, the County had total debt outstanding of
$578,113,601. Of this amount, $416,155,837 is debt backed by the full faith and credit of the
government. The remainder of Union County’s long-term obligations is comprised of certificates
of participation, installment financing, revenue bonds, and State sanitary sewer loans (other).

Union County, North Carolina
Outstanding Debt
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
General Obligation Bonds ~ $415,264,622 $439,916,948 $ 891,215 $ 1,436,557 $416,155,837 $441,353,505
Certificates of participation 89,729,408 95,100,626 - - 89,729,408 95,100,626
Installment financing 6,931,484 7,777,327 - - 6,931,484 7,777,327
Revenue Bonds - - 52,128,389 57,606,895 52,128,389 57,606,895
Other - - 13,168,483 14,152,180 13,168,483 14,152,180
Total $511,925,514 $542,794901 $ 66,188,087 $ 73,195,632 $578,113,601 $615,990,533

Union County’s total debt decreased $37,876,932 during the past fiscal year, mainly due to
annual debt service payments.

As mentioned in the financial highlights section of this document, Union County maintained its
general obligation bond rating of Aal from Moody’'s Investor Services and AA from Standard
and Poor’'s Corporation and AA+ from Fitch Ratings. The Enterprise System Revenue bond
rating for the County is Aa2 from Moody'’s Investor Services and AA- from Standard and Poor’s
Corporation and AA from Fitch Ratings. These bond ratings are a clear indication of the sound
financial condition of Union County. Union County is one of the few counties in the country that
maintains high financial ratings from all major rating agencies. This achievement is a key factor
in keeping interest costs low on the County’s outstanding debt.

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of
government can issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within
that government’s boundaries. The legal debt margin for Union County is $1,373,524,913. The
County has no authorized but unissued bonds as of June 30, 2012.

Additional information regarding Union County’s long-term debt can be found in Note 16 of this
report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The following economic factors currently affect Union County and were considered during the
development of the FY 2013 budget and rates:

e North Carolina’s statewide unemployment rate (not seasonally adjusted) was 8.9 percent
in September. This was a 0.8 of a percentage-point decrease from August’s revised rate
of 9.7 percent, and a 1.5 percentage-point decrease over the year. Over the month, the
unemployment rate decreased in 97 counties, increased in one and remained the same
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in two. Thirty-six counties had unemployment rates at or below the state’s 8.9 percent
rate.*

e The County’s unemployment rate was 7.6 percent in September 2012. This was a 0.7 of
a percentage-point decrease from August’s revised rate of 8.3 percent and a decrease
of 1.5 percent from September 2011. The County’s unemployment rate is below the
state’s 8.9 percent rate.?

e The Conference Board, a New York based private research group, announced
Thursday, November 1, 2012, that it's Consumer Confidence Index, which had
increased in September, improved again in October. The Index now stands at 72.2
(1985=100), up from 68.4 in September. The Present Situation Index increased to 56.2
from 48.7. The Expectations Index rose to 82.9 from 81.5 last month. The Conference
Board also announced on Monday, November 05, 2012, that it's, Employment Trends
Index (ETI) increased in October, following a decline in September. The index now
stands at 108.16, up from the revised figure of 107.63 in September. The October figure
remains 4.6 percent higher than a year ago.?

e Housing data continues to show a slow improvement. Concerning building permits,
“Privately-owned housing units authorized by building permits in September were at a
seasonally adjusted annual rate of 894,000. This is 11.6 percent (x1.1%) above the
revised August rate of 801,000 and is 45.1 percent (x1.8%) above the September 2011
estimate of 616,000.

e Additionally, “Single-family authorizations in September were at a rate of 545,000; this is
6.7 percent (£0.9%) above the revised August figure of 511,000. Authorizations of units
in buildings with five units or more were at a rate of 323,000 in September.

e Housing starts are also showing signs of economic improvements. “Privately-owned
housing starts in September were at a seasonally adjusted annual rate of 872,000. This
is 15.0 percent (x12.1%) above the revised August estimate of 758,000 and is 34.8
percent (+18.2%) above the September 2011 rate of 647,000”

e Additionally, “Single-family housing starts in September were at a rate of 603,000; this is
11.0 percent (£11.1%) above the revised August figure of 543,000. The September rate
for units in buildings with five units or more was 260,000.”

e The County’s housing data is also starting to show signs of economic improvements.
For September 2012 there were 177 building permits issued county-wide, compared to
September 2011 of 137; showing a 29.2 percent increase. There were 669 building
permits issued from July 2012 thru September 2012, compared to July 2011 thru
September 2011 of 473; showing a 41.44 percent increase.?

¢ Housing data represents an indicator or overall economic health, as well as an indicator
of the mind of the consumer. Increases nationally and locally in permits and starts
demonstrate positive growth, which in turn leads to growth in other sectors. These
indices have market impact as investors watch to attempt to forecast the economic
future, thus moving markets higher or lower.

! North Carolina Employment Security Commission, NC Department of Commerce — Labor and Economic Analysis
Division, News Release, November 2, 2012. This report can be found at
http://www.ncescl.com/PMl/rates/ratesmain.asp#county

2 Additional information concerning The Conference Board and the ETI can be found at www.conference-board.org

®The County’s data includes permits issued by Union County, City of Monroe, and the Town of Waxhaw.
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Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013

Governmental Activities — Property taxes (reflective of economic conditions) and local option
sales taxes are expected to lead the increase in revenue projections by 1.7 percent. The County
will use these increase in revenues to finance programs currently in place.

Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund are expected to decrease approximately 0.3
percent to $646,267. The largest portion of this net decrease was due to declining public
assistance costs.

During the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance in the general fund was
$51,249,617. Union County has appropriated $1,012,349 of this amount for spending in the FY
2013 budget. This action was taken as an additional measure to mitigate the impact of the
recession on the FY 2013 budget. In November 2012, Union County Public Schools returned
$1.65 million of funding originally intended for teachers’ assistants that were subsequently
funded by State funds.

Business-type Activities — On February 20, 2012 the Board of County Commissioners
adopted an ordinance setting charges, fees, rates and deposits for public works customers and
setting new water and sewer rates for a three year period beginning in April 2012.

The water and sewer rates in the County will increase by 3.5 percent, primarily to cover
increased costs of operations and the Comprehensive Water and Wastewater Master Plan.

Request for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the County’s finances for those with an interest
in this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or request for
additional information should be directed to Jeffrey Yates, Finance Director, Union County, 500
N. Main Street, Monroe, North Carolina. You can also call (704)-283-3631, visit our website at
WWW.C0.union.nc.us, or send an email to finance@co.union.nc.us for more information.
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Union County, North Carolina Exhibit A

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2012

Business Total
Governmental Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 38,016,236 $ 68,665,694 $ 106,681,930
Property taxes receivable (net) 5,281,983 - 5,281,983
Accounts receivable (net) 12,812,292 4,967,979 17,780,271
Inventories 22,506 613,605 636,111
Internal balances 320,124 (320,124) -
Cash and investments, restricted 75,787,144 554,740 76,341,884
Cash and investments, restricted-deposits 946,265 373,664 1,319,929
Total current assets 133,186,550 74,855,558 208,042,108
Noncurrent assets:
Cash and investments 29,495,387 17,888,552 47,383,939
Accounts receivable 62,112 424,400 486,512
Net prepaid pension obligation 1,399,487 188,170 1,587,657
Unamortized bond issuance cost 3,983,709 1,066,076 5,049,785
Unamortized swap termination costs 4,601,661 - 4,601,661
Derivative instrument investment 812,767 - 812,767
Deferred outflows on derivative instruments 22,316,219 5,995,606 28,311,825
Investment in joint venture - 14,869,140 14,869,140
Capital assets:
Land and other assets not being depreciated 8,957,617 15,126,007 24,083,624
Buildings, equipment and infrastructure, 59,853,799 197,291,218 257,145,017
Total noncurrent assets 131,482,758 252,849,169 384,331,927
Total assets 264,669,308 327,704,727 592,374,035
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 10,868,513 3,133,453 14,001,966
Unearned revenue 341,179 - 341,179
Deposits 946,264 373,664 1,319,928
Current portion of long-term obligations 30,958,915 4,146,172 35,105,087
Liabilities payable from restricted assets 900,484 - 900,484
Workers' compensation claims 184,142 - 184,142
Health care benefits 843,783 - 843,783
Total current liabilities 45,043,280 7,653,289 52,696,569
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued landfill postclosure care costs - 4,133,897 4,133,897
Water right acquisition obligation - 155,081 155,081
Compensated absences 3,175,838 399,026 3,574,864
Net OPEB obligation 10,660,248 1,185,480 11,845,728
Unearned revenue - 1,305,459 1,305,459
Derivative liability 22,316,219 6,020,874 28,337,093
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations 480,966,599 62,041,915 543,008,514
Total noncurrent liabilities 517,118,904 75,241,732 592,360,636
Total liabilities 562,162,184 82,895,021 645,057,205
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 44,186,127 152,962,211 197,148,338
Restricted for:
Stabilization by State Statute 16,892,566 - 16,892,566
General Government 9,838 - 9,838
Public safety 2,584,506 - 2,584,506
Economic and physical development 29,021 - 29,021
Human Services 202,719 - 202,719
Cultural and recreational 113,834 - 113,834
Education 957,103 - 957,103
Debt service - 554,740 554,740
Pension benefits 1,399,487 - 1,399,487
Unrestricted (363,868,077) 91,292,755 (272,575,322)
Total net assets $ (297,492,876) $ 244,809,706 $  (52,683,170)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Union County, North Carolina

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Exhibit B

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 13,154999 $ 1,171,002 $ 441876 $ 382,433 $ (11,159,688) $ - $ (11,159,688)
Public safety 42,417,985 5,135,843 3,840,324 - (33,441,818) - (33,441,818)
Economic and physical development 2,930,309 101,638 182,723 - (2,645,948) - (2,645,948)
Human services 38,855,691 3,607,474 19,465,996 190,750 (15,591,471) - (15,591,471)
Cultural and recreational 6,432,361 704,547 345,438 - (5,382,376) - (5,382,376)
Education 83,419,258 321,318 7,410,421 - (75,687,519) - (75,687,519)
Interest and fees on long term debt 21,943,425 - - - (21,943,425) - (21,943,425)
Total governmental activities 209,154,028 11,041,822 31,686,778 573,183 (165,852,245) - (165,852,245)
Business-type activities:

Water and sewer 29,762,394 26,073,700 - 6,679,066 - 2,990,372 2,990,372
Solid waste 4,497,006 3,790,340 372,658 - - (334,008) (334,008)
Stormwater 148,634 - - - - (148,634) (148,634)
Total business-type activities 34,408,034 29,864,040 372,658 6,679,066 - 2,507,730 2,507,730

Total primary government $ 243,562,062 $ 40,905,862 $ 32,059,436 $ 7,252,249 (165,852,245) 2,507,730 (163,344,515)

General revenues:

Property taxes levied for general purposes 160,375,634 - 160,375,634

Local option sales tax 26,373,178 - 26,373,178

Other taxes and licenses 1,742,152 - 1,742,152

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 86,716 - 86,716

Rent income not restricted to specific programs 7,666,879 - 7,666,879

Investment earnings, unrestricted 1,429,626 490,219 1,919,845

Miscellaneous, unrestricted 32,836 - 32,836

Gains on sales and disposals of capital assets 127,182 53,637 180,819

Total general revenues excluding extraordinary item 197,834,203 543,856 198,378,059

Extraordinary item - rent income (see Note 24) 54,000,000 - 54,000,000

Total general revenues and extraordinary item 251,834,203 543,856 252,378,059

Change in net assets 85,981,958 3,051,586 89,033,544

Net assets - beginning as previously stated (383,474,834) 244,042,214 (139,432,620)

Prior period adjustment (see Note 23) - (2,284,094) (2,284,094)

Net assets - beginning as restated (383,474,834) 241,758,120 (141,716,714)

Net assets - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Union County, North Carolina

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2012

Exhibit C

ASSETS

Cash and investments

Property taxes receivable (net)

Accounts receivable (net)

Accounts receivable, long-term

Inventories

Cash and investments, restricted

Cash and investments, restricted-deposits
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Unearned revenue
Deposits
Liabilities payable from restricted assets
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Major Nonmajor

General School Other Total
General Capital Project Bond Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund 55 Funds Funds
$ 59,207,244 $ 73,366,989 - $ 5,406,600 $ 137,980,833
5,199,692 - - 152,723 5,352,415
12,204,036 - - 267,142 12,471,178
62,112 - - - 62,112
22,506 - - - 22,506
33,082 46,378 1,441,971 898,724 2,420,155
946,264 - - - 946,264
$ 77,674,936 $ 73,413,367 1,441,971 $ 6,725,189 $ 159,255,463
$ 5,126,218 $ 362,487 - $ 33,882 $ 5,522,587
5,199,692 - - 152,723 5,352,415
409,245 - - 6,730 415,975
946,264 - - - 946,264
- - 531,246 6,751 537,997
11,681,419 362,487 531,246 200,086 12,775,238
84,618 - - - 84,618
13,161,506 3,514,592 910,725 2,977,249 20,564,072
1,497,776 69,536,288 - 3,547,854 74,581,918
51,249,617 - - - 51,249,617
65,993,517 73,050,880 910,725 6,525,103 146,480,225
$ 77,674,936 $ 73,413,367 1,441,971 $ 6,725,189 $ 159,255,463

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Union County, North Carolina

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2012

Exhibit D

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Ending fund balance - governmental funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in
the funds.

Other long-term assets, related to the net pension obligation, are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Other long-term assets, related to unearned taxes, are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Other long-term assets, related to unearned revenues, are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of health and dental insurance to
individual funds. The current assets and liabilities of this internal service fund are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net assets.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of workers' compensation to individual
funds. The current assets and liabilities of this internal service fund are included in governmental activities in
the statement of net assets.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of property and casualty insurance to
individual funds. The current assets and liabilities of this internal service fund are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net assets.

Internal balance due from Business Type Activities to Governmental Activities.

Long-term liabilities for compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities for net other postemployment benefits are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Noncurrent liabilities comprised of derivative liabilities (in the amount of $11,664,170) net of noncurrent
assets comprised of deferred outflows on derivative instruments (in the amount of $12,110,799).

Long-term liabilities, including bonds and installment financing payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds (principal and unamortized balances for
governmental activities, per Note 16. A. 2, in the amount of $542,794,901, as well as accrued interest
payable of $6,147,526 net of unamortized bond issuance costs of $4,115,895 and unamortized swap
termination costs of $5,077,628).

Net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Union County, North Carolina Exhibit E

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Major Nonmajor
General School Other Total
General Capital Project Bond Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund 55 Funds Funds
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes $ 156,545,802 $ - $ - $ 4,363,488 $ 160,909,290
Local option sales tax 25,665,902 - - 707,276 26,373,178
Other taxes and licenses 1,742,152 - - 1,004,522 2,746,674
Intergovernmental 30,654,996 382,433 - 15,901 31,053,330
Permits and fees 3,014,314 - - 2,085,215 5,099,529
Sales and services 5,266,772 - - 15,000 5,281,772
Investment earnings 1,057,509 - - 12,338 1,069,847
Miscellaneous 8,693,729 16,363 - 94,375 8,804,467
Total revenues 232,641,176 398,796 - 8,298,115 241,338,087
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 10,710,634 425,429 - 102,000 11,238,063
Public safety 30,509,746 32,421 - 9,454,902 39,997,069
Economic and physical development 2,734,165 - - - 2,734,165
Human services 37,773,782 22,242 - - 37,796,024
Cultural and recreational 5,759,098 29,789 - - 5,788,887
Intergovernmental:
Education 80,562,304 - - - 80,562,304
Capital outlay:
General government - 1,665,395 - - 1,665,395
Public safety - 992,752 - - 992,752
Human services - 200,904 - - 200,904
Cultural and recreational - 20,828 - - 20,828
Education - 331,300 2,432,019 - 2,763,319
Debt service:
Principal retirement 29,506,575 - - - 29,506,575
Interest and fees 22,861,021 - - - 22,861,021
Total expenditures 220,417,325 3,721,060 2,432,019 9,556,902 236,127,306
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 12,223,851 (3,322,264) (2,432,019) (1,258,787) 5,210,781
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds 1,510,656 57,000,000 - 5,745 58,516,401
Transfers to other funds (57,005,745) - - (1,510,656) (58,516,401)
Proceeds from refunding general obligation bonds 28,845,000 - - - 28,845,000
Proceeds from refunding general obligation bonds
issuance premium, etc 3,491,145 - - - 3,491,145
Proceeds from refunding installment financing 40,240,000 - - - 40,240,000
Proceeds from refunding installment financing
issuance premium, etc 3,864,556 - - - 3,864,556
Payments to refunded bonds escrow agents (32,046,173) - - - (32,046,173)
Payments to refunded installment financing
escrow agents (43,624,057) - - - (43,624,057)
Total other financing sources (uses) (54,724,618) 57,000,000 - (1,504,911) 770,471
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over (under) expenditure and
other financing uses before extraordinary item (42,500,767) 53,677,736 (2,432,019) (2,763,698) 5,981,252
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM
Miscellaneous revenue - rent income - see Note 24 54,000,000 - - - 54,000,000
Net change in fund balances 11,499,233 53,677,736 (2,432,019) (2,763,698) 59,981,252
FUND BALANCES
Beginning 54,494,284 19,373,144 3,342,744 9,288,801 86,498,973
Ending $ 65,993517 _$ 73,050,880 $ 910,725 $ 6,525,103 $ 146,480,225

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Union County, North Carolina

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Exhibit F

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities the cost
of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is
the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Governmental funds report certain transactions as revenues and reductions in deferred revenue. However,
in the Statement of Activities these transactions are eliminated and reflected as reductions in receivables
until their maturity.

Net book value of assets sold

Revenues in the Statement of Activities from deferred property taxes that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities from derivative investment income or (losses) that do not provide
current financial resources or (uses) are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities from internal service funds' investment earnings that do not
provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. This amount is the net
effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related accounts.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

The internal service fund, determined to be governmental fund type, is used by management to charge the
costs, net of investment earnings, of health and dental insurance program.

The internal service fund, determined to be governmental fund type, is used by management to charge the
costs, net of investment earnings, of workers' compensation program.

The internal service fund, determined to be governmental fund type, is used by management to charge the
costs, net of investment earnings, of property and casualty insurance program.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Union County, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Exhibit G

Variance
With Final
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes $ 154,015,627 $ 154,095,627 $ 156,545,802 $ 2,450,175
Local option sales tax 23,000,000 23,000,000 25,665,902 2,665,902
Other taxes and licenses 1,522,500 1,522,500 1,742,152 219,652
Intergovernmental 27,451,461 29,870,690 30,654,996 784,306
Permits and fees 2,424,696 2,424,696 3,014,314 589,618
Sales and services 5,234,000 5,334,000 5,266,772 (67,228)
Investment earnings 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,057,509 57,509
Miscellaneous 2,997,417 3,032,950 8,693,729 5,660,779
Total revenues 217,645,701 220,280,463 232,641,176 12,360,713
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 10,875,873 11,834,726 10,710,634 1,124,092
Public safety 29,150,259 31,897,921 30,509,746 1,388,175
Economic and physical development 2,707,967 3,179,927 2,734,165 445,762
Human services 36,984,441 41,483,384 37,773,782 3,709,602
Cultural and recreational 5,476,849 6,241,730 5,759,098 482,632
Intergovernmental:
Education 80,612,687 80,588,476 80,562,304 26,172
Debt service:
Principal retirement 29,406,581 29,506,575 29,506,575 -
Interest and fees 22,879,545 23,496,600 22,861,021 635,579
Contingency 500,000 302,347 - 302,347
Nondepartmental 562,155 455,952 - 455,952
Total expenditures 219,156,357 228,987,638 220,417,325 8,570,313
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,510,656) (8,707,175) 12,223,851 20,931,026
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds 1,510,656 1,510,656 1,510,656 -
Transfers to other funds - (57,005,745) (57,005,745) -
Proceeds from refunding general obligation bonds - 28,845,000 28,845,000 -
Proceeds from refunding general obligation bonds
issuance premium, etc - 3,491,145 3,491,145 -
Proceeds from refunding installment financing - 40,240,000 40,240,000 -
Proceeds from refunding installment financing
issuance premium, etc - 3,864,555 3,864,556 1
Payments to refunded bonds escrow agents - (32,046,175) (32,046,173) 2
Payments to refunded installment financing
escrow agents - (44,275,360) (43,624,057) 651,303
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,510,656 (55,375,924) (54,724,618) 651,306
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other financing
uses before extraordinary item - (64,083,099) (42,500,767) 21,582,332
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM
Miscellaneous revenue - rent income - see Note 24 - 54,000,000 54,000,000 -
APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE - 10,083,099 - (10,083,099)
Revenues, other financing sources, extra-
ordinary item and appropriated fund balance
over expenalures ana otner 1inancing uses $ - % - 11,499,233 $ 11,499,233
FUND BALANCES
Beginning 54,494,284
Ending “$ 65993517

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Union County, North Carolina

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2012

Exhibit H

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable (net)
Inventories
Cash and investments, restricted
Cash and investments, restricted-deposits
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Net prepaid pension obligation
Unamortized bond issuance costs
Capital assets:
Investment in joint venture
Deferred outflows on derivative instruments
Land and other assets not being depreciated
Buildings, equipment and infrastructure, net of depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deposits
Long-term liabilities, due within one year:
General obligation bonds payable
Revenue bonds payable
State sanitary sewer loan payable
Workers' compensation claims payable
Health care benefits payable
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Accrued landfill postclosure care costs
Water right acquisition obligation
Compensated absences
Net OPEB obligation
Unearned revenue
Derivative liability
Long-term liabilities, due in more than one year:

General obligation bonds

Revenue bonds

State sanitary sewer loan

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -

Internal

Water and Solid Waste Stormwater Service

Sewer Fund Fund Fund Total Funds
$ 61,613,105 $ 7,006,958 45,631 $ 68,665694 $ 2,897,778
4,557,972 410,007 - 4,967,979 341,112
613,605 - - 613,605 -
554,740 - - 554,740 -
369,784 3,880 - 373,664 -
67,709,206 7,420,845 45,631 75,175,682 3,238,890
16,074,749 1,802,074 11,729 17,888,552 -
424,400 - - 424,400 -
158,220 26,384 3,566 188,170 -
1,066,076 - - 1,066,076 -
14,869,140 - - 14,869,140 -
5,995,606 - - 5,995,606 -
14,791,750 334,257 - 15,126,007 -
195,912,266 1,378,952 - 197,291,218 -
249,292,207 3,541,667 15,295 252,849,169 -
317,001,413 10,962,512 60,926 328,024,851 3,238,890
2,580,584 546,905 5,964 3,133,453 67,359
369,784 3,880 - 373,664 -
546,759 - - 546,759 -
2,615,716 - - 2,615,716 -
983,697 - - 983,697 -
- - - - 184,142
- - - - 843,783
7,096,540 550,785 5,964 7,653,289 1,095,284
- 4,133,897 - 4,133,897 -
155,081 - - 155,081 -
345,613 42,135 11,278 399,026 -
946,679 237,941 860 1,185,480 -
1,305,459 - - 1,305,459 -
6,020,874 - - 6,020,874 -
344,456 - - 344,456 -
49,512,673 - - 49,512,673 -
12,184,786 - - 12,184,786 -
70,815,621 4,413,973 12,138 75,241,732 -
77,912,161 4,964,758 18,102 82,895,021 1,095,284
151,249,002 1,713,209 - 152,962,211 -
554,740 - - 554,740 -
87,285,510 4,284,545 42,824 91,612,879 2,143,606
$ 239,089,252 $ 5,997,754 42,824 245,129,830 $ 2,143,606

(320,124)

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds

Net assets of business-type activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Union County, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

in Fund Net Assets

Exhibit |

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Disposal fees
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel
Operating expenses
Depreciation
Operating leases
Landfill closure
Workers' compensation claims
Health benefit claims and premiums
Property and casualty claims and premiums
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings
Federal grant capital
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Interest and fees on long term debt
Gain on investment in joint venture
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

TRANSFERS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
Transfers from other enterprise funds
Transfers to other enterprise funds
Capital contributions - cash
Capital contributions - non-cash

Total transfers and contributions

Change in net assets
NET ASSETS
Beginning - as previously stated
Prior period adjustment (see Note 23)

Beginning - as restated

Ending

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds

Change in net assets of business-type activities

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -

Internal

Water and Solid Waste Stormwater Service

Sewer Fund Fund Fund Total Funds
$ 25,364,805 $ 3,779,757 $ - $ 29,144,562 $ 11,759,079
- 372,658 - 372,658 -
708,895 10,583 - 719,478 76,450
26,073,700 4,162,998 - 30,236,698 11,835,529
6,092,541 1,084,222 124,741 7,301,504 -
9,981,958 3,157,641 20,637 13,160,236 867,644
10,761,635 170,808 3,361 10,935,804 -
255,858 - - 255,858 -
- 85,026 - 85,026 -
- - - - 254,075
- - - - 10,011,595
- - - - 656,827
27,091,992 4,497,697 148,739 31,738,428 11,790,141
(1,018,292) (334,699) (148,739) (1,501,730) 45,388
445,296 44,923 - 490,219 (6,360)

164,734 - - 164,734
53,637 - - 53,637 -
(2,721,801) - - (2,721,801) -
46,878 - - 46,878 -
(2,011,256) 44,923 - (1,966,333) (6,360)
(3,029,548) (289,776) (148,739) (3,468,063) 39,028
- - 158,410 158,410 -
(158,410) - - (158,410) -
4,484,229 - - 4,484,229 -
2,030,103 - - 2,030,103 -
6,355,922 - 158,410 6,514,332 -
3,326,374 (289,776) 9,671 3,046,269 39,028
238,046,972 6,287,530 33,153 2,104,578
(2,284,094) - - -
235,762,878 6,287,530 33,153 2,104,578
$ 239,089,252 $ 5,997,754 42,824 $ 2,143,606
5,317
$ 3051586

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Union County, North Carolina

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Exhibit J

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers for services
Other operating revenue
Cash paid to employees
Cash paid for goods and services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other enterprise funds
Transfers to other enterprise funds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from revenue bonds and general obligation refunding bonds
Premimum from refunding bonds
Principal payments to escrow agents - refunding
Payments to escrow agents - refunding
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Proceeds from capacity fees
Proceeds from capacity fees deferred
Proceeds from federal grant capital
Payments on general obligation bond debt
Payments on revenue bond debt
Payments on state sanitary loan
Bond issuance costs
Interest paid on bonds and other debt
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Acquisition payments on intangible asset - water rights

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment earnings

Net increase (decrease) in cash and investments

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Beginning of year

End of year

Reconcilation of cash and investments to the Statement of Net Assets:
Cash and investments
Cash and investments, noncurrent
Cash and investments, restricted assets
Cash and investments, restricted assets-deposits

Total Statement of Net Assets cash and cash equivalents

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating gain (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Landfill closure and post closure care costs
Changes in assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (net)
Decrease in inventories
Increase in net prepaid pension obligation (asset)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Decrease in deposits
(Decrease) increase in compensated absences payable
Increase in net other post employment benefit obligations

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Gain on investment in joint venture

Contribution of capital infrastructure

Capitalized interest

Investment derivative gains

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities -
Internal
Water and Solid Waste Stormwater Service
Sewer Fund Fund Fund Total Funds
$ 25,521,251 $ 3,832,527 $ - $ 29,353,778 $ 11,800,153
708,895 383,241 - 1,092,136 76,450
(5,791,447) (996,026) (122,088) (6,909,561) -
(9,319,290) (2,916,207) (22,998) (12,258,495) (11,901,352)
11,119,409 303,535 (145,086) 11,277,858 (24,749)
- - 158,410 158,410 -
(158,410) - - (158,410) -
(158,410) - 158,410 - -
34,385,000 - - 34,385,000 -
2,035,424 - - 2,035,424 -
(37,100,000) - - (37,100,000)
(1,565,789) - - (1,565,789)
60,618 - - 60,618 -
4,484,229 - - 4,484,229 -
239,620 - - 239,620 -
164,734 - - 164,734
(548,425) - - (548,425) -
(2,695,000) - - (2,695,000) -
(983,697) - - (983,697) -
(583,864) - - (583,864)
(2,751,382) - - (2,751,382) -
(6,618,804) (24,202) - (6,643,006) -
(146,510) - - (146,510) -
(11,623,846) (24,202) - (11,648,048) -
347,513 44,923 - 392,436 (6,360)
(315,334) 324,256 13,324 22,246 (31,109)
78,927,712 8,488,656 44,036 87,460,404 2,928,887
$ 78,612,378 $ 8,812,912 $ 57,360 $ 87,482,650 $ 2,897,778
$ 61,613,105 $ 7,006,958 $ 45,631 $ 68,665,694 $ 2,897,778
16,074,749 1,802,074 11,729 17,888,552 -
554,740 - - 554,740 -
369,784 3,880 - 373,664 -
$ 78,612,378 $ 8,812,912 $ 57,360 $ 87,482,650 $ 2,897,778
$ (1,018292) % (334,699) $ (148,739) $ (1,501,730) $ 45,388
10,761,635 170,808 3,361 10,935,804 -
106,077 2,910 - 108,987 -
85,026 - 85,026 -
56,996 49,860 - 106,856 41,074
193,615 - - 193,615 -
(1,337) (187) (31) (1,555) -
855,463 264,599 232 1,120,294 (111,211)
(6,627) - - (6,627) -
(44,816) 8,264 91 (36,461) -
216,695 56,954 - 273,649 -
12,137,701 638,234 3,653 12,779,588 (70,137)
$ 11,119,409 $ 303,535 $ (145,086) $ 11,277,858 $ (24,749)
$ 46,878 $ - $ - $ 46,878 $ -
$ 2,030,103 $ - $ - $ 2,030,103 $ -
$ 203,978 $ - $ - $ 203,978 $ -
$ 97,783 $ - $ - $ 97,783 $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Union County, North Carolina Exhibit K

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2012

Other
Special Postemployment
Separation Retiree Healthcare
Allowance Benefits (OPEB)

Pension Pension Agency
Trust Fund Trust Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 585,982 $ 8,374,246 $ 361,497
Property taxes receivable (net) - - 51,888
Accounts receivable (net) 28,699 - -
Total assets 614,681 8,374,246 $ 413,385
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 180 - $ 330,628
Due to program participants - - 82,757
Total liabilities 180 - $ 413,385
NET ASSETS
Held in Trust for:
Employees' pension benefits 614,501 8,374,246
Total net assets $ 614,501 $ 8,374,246

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Union County, North Carolina Exhibit L

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds - Pension Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Other
Special Postemployment
Separation Retiree Healthcare
Allowance Benefits (OPEB)

Pension Pension
Trust Fund Trust Fund Totals
ADDITIONS

Employer contributions $ 723,890 $ 4,132,943 $ 4,856,833
Net investment income 8,779 58,397 67,176
Total additions 732,669 4,191,340 4,924,009

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits 1,030,192 - 1,030,192
Change in net assets (297,523) 4,191,340 3,893,817

NET ASSETS
Beginning 912,024 4,182,906 5,094,930
Ending $ 614,501 $ 8,374,246 $ 8,988,747

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Union County, North Carolina
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of Union County, North Carolina and its component units conform to generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the
more significant accounting policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The County, which is governed by a five-member board of commissioners, is one of the 100 counties
established in North Carolina under North Carolina General Statute 153A-10 (hereinafter references to
the North Carolina General Statutes will be cited as G.S.). As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, these financial statements present the County and its component units, legally separate
entities for which the County is financially accountable. The County has determined that it has two
blended component units, although legally separate entities, which are, in substance, a part of the
County’s operations.

Union County Industrial Facilities and Pollution Control Financing Authority

Union County Industrial Facilities and Pollution Control Financing Authority (Authority) is a component unit
of the County and exists to issue and service revenue bond debt of private business for economic
development purposes. The Authority is governed by a seven-member board, all of whom are appointed
by the County Board of Commissioners (Board). The Board can remove any Authority member with or
without cause. The Authority has no financial transactions or account balances; therefore, it is not
presented in the basic financial statements. The Authority does not issue separate financial statements.

Union County Public Facilities Corporation

Union County Public Facilities Corporation (Corporation) is a blended component unit of the County and
exists to encourage the modernization of public facilities, through the financing, acquisition, construction,
operation and lease of real estate, improvements, facilities, and equipment for the use of Union County.
The Corporation is governed by a three-member board, all of whom are appointed by the County Board of
Commissioners. The Board can remove any Corporation member with or without cause. The
Corporation’s transactions are reported within the General and Capital Projects Funds. The Corporation
does not issue separate financial statements.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government (Union County). These statements include the financial
activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to
minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the
governmental and business-type activities of the County. Governmental activities generally are
financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
the different business-type activities of the County and for each function of the County’s governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been
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made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a)
fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as
general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s
funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental
funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies, result
from non-exchange transactions. Other non-operating revenues, such as investment earnings, are
ancillary activities.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — This is the County’s primary operating fund. The General Fund accounts for all
financial resources of the general government except those that are required to be accounted for in
another fund. The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, sales taxes, federal and State
grants, and various other taxes and licenses. The primary expenditures are for general government,
public safety, human services, education and debt service.

General Capital Project Fund — The sources of this fund are primarily transfers from the General
Fund, proceeds from installment financing, and general obligation bonds which are expended for
capital asset acquisition, improvement and construction of various governmental projects, and funds
for recurring capital contributions for educational purposes and facilities.

School Bond Fund 55 - The sources of this fund are primarily proceeds from installment financings
and transfers from the Debt Service Fund which are expended for capital asset acquisition,
improvement, and construction for various school facility capital projects.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

Water and Sewer Fund — This fund accounts for the County’s water and sewer operations. The Water
and Sewer Capital Project Fund is consolidated with the Water and Sewer Fund (the operating fund) for
financial reporting purposes.

Solid Waste Fund — The Solid Waste Fund accounts for the County’s solid waste operations. The Solid
Waste Capital Reserve Fund is a reserve established by the County to accumulate the funds necessary
to cover the post closure care costs that will be incurred by the landfill in the future. The Solid Waste
Capital Reserve Fund is consolidated with the Solid Waste Fund (the operating fund) for financial
reporting purposes.

Stormwater Fund — The Stormwater Fund accounts for the County’s stormwater planning program.

The School Bond Fund 55, Solid Waste and Stormwater Funds are presented as major funds for
consistency purposes.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources (other than
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
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purposes. The County maintains nine Special Revenue Funds: the Springs Fire District Fund, the
Waxhaw Fire District Fund, the Hemby Bridge Fire District Fund, the Stallings Fire District Fund, the
Wesley Chapel Fire District Fund, the Fee Supported Fire Districts Fund, the Emergency Telephone
System Fund, the General Special Revenue Fund, and the Automation Enhancement Fund.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of governmental resources
for debt service and capital outlay related to education. The County maintains one Debt Service Fund.

Capital Project Funds - Capital Project Funds account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). The
County has one non-major capital project fund: the Library Capital Project Fund.

Proprietary Funds are used to account for the County’s business-type activities. The County reports
the Water and Sewer Fund, the Solid Waste Fund and the Stormwater Fund as major enterprise
funds. Proprietary funds also include the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the government, on a
cost reimbursement basis. The County has three Internal Service Funds, the Health Benefits Fund
(which includes dental benefits), Workers’ Compensation Fund and the Property and Casualty Fund.
The Health Benefits Fund accounts for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with
insurance for employee, retiree (under 65 years of age), and family medical and dental claims. The
Workers' Compensation Fund accounts for the costs associated with workers' compensation claims.
The Property and Casualty Fund accounts for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated
with property and casualty insurance and claims for the County.

Fiduciary Funds account for the assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. Fiduciary Funds include
the following funds:

Pension Trust Fund - The County maintains two Pension Trust Funds - the Special Separation
Allowance Fund and the Other Postemployment Retiree Healthcare Benefits (OPEB) Fund. Pension
Trust Funds are used to report resources that are required to be held in trust for the members and
beneficiaries of defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution plans, or other postemployment
benefit plans. The Special Separation Allowance Fund is a single-employer, public employee
retirement system. The Other Postemployment Retiree Healthcare Benefits (OPEB) Fund accounts
for a portion of the County’s contributions to the net OPEB obligation for healthcare coverage
provided to qualified retirees.

Agency Funds - Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of
operating results. Agency Funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others.
The County maintains nine Agency Funds: the Social Services Fund, which accounts for monies
deposited with the Department of Social Services for the benefit of certain individuals; the Fines and
Forfeitures Fund, which accounts for various legal fines and forfeitures that the County is required to
remit to the Union County Board of Education; the Jail Inmate Fund, which accounts for monies
deposited and held for individual inmates in the Union County Jail; the Monroe and Union County
School District Funds, which account for the ad valorem school tax assessed; the Municipal Tax
Collection Fund, which accounts for registered motor vehicle property taxes that are billed and
collected by the County for various municipalities within the County; the Deed of Trust Fee Fund,
which accounts for the five dollars of each fee collected by the register of deeds for registering or filing
a deed of trust or mortgage and remitted to the State Treasurer on a monthly basis; the Gross Rental
Receipts Tax Fund, which accounts for municipalities that levy a local tax on gross receipts derived
from the short-term lease or rental of vehicles at retail to the general public, which serves as a
substitute to the ad valorem tax previously levied on such property; and the Department of State
Treasurer Motor Vehicle Tax Fund which accounts for the three percent interest on the first month
of delinquent motor vehicle taxes that the County is required to remit monthly to the North

47



Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles, pursuant to G.S. 105-330.4, for technology improvements
within the Division of Motor Vehicles.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the County are maintained during the
year using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide,
proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus, except for the agency funds, which have no measurement focus. The government-
wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the
County gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include
property taxes, grants, entittements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entittements, and
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
Water and Sewer Fund, Solid Waste Fund and the government’s internal service funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. The principal operating revenue of the Stormwater Fund is Water and
Sewer Fund inter-fund transfers. It is anticipated that fees for stormwater planning services will be
charged, eventually. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost
of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental Funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments,
and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured.
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of
general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

The County generally considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-
end, except for property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes are not accrued as a revenue because the
amount is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and are not
considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. Therefore, the
net receivable amount is offset by a deferred revenue. Also, as of January 1, 1993, state law altered
the procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in
North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, the County is responsible for billing and
collecting the property taxes on all registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special
tax districts in the County. For those motor vehicles registered under the staggered system and for
vehicles newly registered under the annual system, property taxes are due the first day of the fourth
month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they
become due. Therefore, taxes for vehicles registered from March 2011 through February 2012 apply
to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Uncollected taxes that were billed during this period are
shown as a receivable on these financial statements.
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Those revenues susceptible to accrual are sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, both
collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf of the County, and investment earnings.
Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they
are not measurable until received in cash. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the
qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been satisfied.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific
cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus when program
expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the
program. It is the County’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs,
followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

As permitted by generally accepted accounting principles, the County applies all FASB Statements and
Interpretations, upon issuance, in all of its governmental and business-type activities and enterprise
funds, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements.

D. Budgetary Data

The County’s budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual
budget is adopted for the General Fund; Springs Fire District, Waxhaw Fire District, Hemby Bridge
Fire District, Stallings Fire District, Wesley Chapel Fire District, Fee Supported Fire Districts,
Emergency Telephone System, and Automation Enhancement Special Revenue Funds; and
Proprietary Funds (operating funds). All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. Project
ordinances (multi-year budgets) are adopted for the General Special Revenue Fund, General Capital
Project Fund, Library Capital Project Fund, School Bond Fund-55, and the Water and Sewer Capital
Projects Fund which is consolidated with the Water and Sewer Fund (enterprise operating fund) for
reporting purposes.

All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not
legally exceed appropriations at the departmental level for the General Fund and at the fund level for
Special Revenue, Debt Service, Enterprise and Capital Project Funds. The County Manager is
authorized by resolution to transfer appropriations within a department and between department
appropriations, within the same fund, without limitation. The County Manager is also authorized to
transfer personnel compensation pay plan adjustments, limited to the amount approved by the Board
of County Commissioners in the original budget ordinance for the fiscal year, and insurance
appropriations both contained in non-departmental to the benefiting departments without limitation.
The County Manager is authorized to transfer amounts from contingency, subject to a limitation of
$5,000 per item. The County Manager is authorized to appropriate funds identified as restrictions or
assignments of fund balance as reflected in the prior year’s financial statements. The County Manager
is also authorized to appropriate funds for grant applications authorized by or grant agreements
accepted by the governing body thereby increasing the total appropriation for the fund. The County
Manager reports to the governing body all budget ordinance transfers, appropriations and adjustments
on a monthly basis. During the year, several budget amendments to the original budget became
necessary. Budget data presented in the financial statements represent the final authorized amounts
as of June 30, 2012. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the
governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be
adopted.

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity
1. Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the County are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required
by G.S. 159-31. The County may designate as an official depository any bank or savings association
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whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the County may establish time deposit accounts
such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts and certificates of deposit.

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the County to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States, obligations of the State of North
Carolina, bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority, obligations of
certain non-guaranteed federal agencies, certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers'
acceptances, and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT).

General Statue 159-30.1 allows the County to establish an Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Trust
managed by the staff of the Department of the State Treasurer and operated in accordance with State
laws and regulations. It is not registered with the SEC and G.S. 159-30(g) allows the County to make
contributions to the Trust. The State Treasurer, in their discretion, may invest the proceeds in equities
of certain publicly held companies and long or short term fixed income investments as detailed in G.S.
147-69.2(b)(1-6) and (8). Funds submitted are managed in three different sub-funds: the State
Treasurer’s Short Term Investment Fund (STIF) consisting of short to intermediate treasuries,
agencies and corporate issues authorized by G.S. 147-69.1, the long-term investment fund (LTIF)
consisting of investment grade corporate securities, treasuries, and agencies, and BlackRock’s Global
Ex-US Alpha Tilts Fund B and BlackRock's Russell 3000 Alpha Tilts Fund B authorized under G.S
147-69.2(b)(8).

The County’s investments are carried at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securities
of the NCCMT Cash Portfolio, an SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair
value, which is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair
value. The STIF securities are reported at cost and maintain a constant $1 per share value. Under the
authority of G.S. 147.69.3, no unrealized gains or losses of the STIF are distributed to participants of the
fund. The LTIF is also valued at $1 per share. The Global Ex-US Alpha Tilts Fund B is priced at 15.2845
per share and the Russell 3000 Alpha Tilts Fund B is priced at 31.596 per share at June 30, 2012.

2. Cash and Investments

The County pools monies from several funds, except the Social Services Fund and the Jail Inmate Fund
and the portion of the Other Postemployment Retiree Healthcare Benefits (OPEB) Pension Trust Fund
that has not yet been remitted to the OPEB Trust managed by the staff of the Department of the State
Treasurer (as explained in Note 1. E. 1); to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize
investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are
considered cash and cash equivalents.

3. Restricted Assets

The unexpended debt proceeds of the General Fund and the Water and Sewer Fund are due to bonds
issued by the County which are classified as restricted assets because their use is completely restricted
to the purpose for which the bonds were originally issued. Customer deposits held by the County before
any services are supplied and those held as account security deposits are restricted to the services for
which the deposits were collected. The restricted assets of the General Capital Project Fund are
unexpended recurring capital contributions, from the General Fund, for educational purposes and
facilities of the Union County Board of Education. The restricted assets of the School Bond Fund 55 are
unexpended pay-go funds from the Debt Service Fund that are dedicated for the purpose of school capital
asset acquisition and facility construction and improvement. The restricted assets of the General Special
Revenue Fund are unexpended funds, which are restricted for the purpose of drug enforcement programs
and other multi-year grant programs.

4. Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable and Deferred Revenues

In accordance with G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a), the County levies ad valorem taxes on property,
other than motor vehicles, on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. These taxes are due on September
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1 (lien date); however, interest and penalties do not accrue until the following January 6, when property
taxes attach as enforceable liens. The taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2011.

5. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for
doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written
off in prior years.

6. Inventories

The inventories of the County are valued at cost (first-in, first-out), which approximates market. The
County's General Fund inventory consists of expendable supplies that are recorded as expenditures as
used rather than when purchased.

The inventory of the County's Enterprise Funds consists of materials and supplies held for consumption.
The cost is recorded as an expense when the inventory is consumed.

7. Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Capital
assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined
by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and
an estimated useful life in excess of two years. The costs of nhormal maintenance and repairs that do not
add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

The County holds title to certain Union County Board of Education properties that have not been included
in the County’s capital assets. The properties have been deeded to the County to permit installment
purchase financing of acquisition and construction costs and to permit the County to receive refunds of
sales tax paid for construction costs. Agreements between the County and the Board of Education give
the Board of Education full use of the facilities, full responsibility for maintenance of the facilities, and
provide that the County will convey title to the property back to the Board of Education, once all
restrictions of the financing agreements and all sales tax reimbursement requirements have been met.
The properties are reflected as capital assets in the financial statements of the Union County Board of
Education.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of
the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment are depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Years
Furniture and equipment 5-10
Computer software (intangible) 5-10
Vehicles 4-5
Land Improvements 20-30
Buildings 25-40
Building Improvements 7-30
Plant Distribution, Collection 25
Water rights (intangible) 40
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8. Long-term Obligations (Debt)

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. The
Water and Sewer Fund’'s revenue bond and general obligation bond debt service requirements are
being met by water and sewer revenues, but the County's taxing power is pledged to make the
general obligation debt service payments if water and sewer revenues should ever be insufficient.

In the fund financial statements for governmental fund types, the face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources.

9. Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of the County provides for the accumulation of up to thirty (30) days earned vacation
leave. The compensatory time policy for overtime hours worked provides for time off in lieu of immediate
overtime pay for covered nonexempt employees at the option of the County Manager. Time off may be
accrued at the rate of one and one-half hours for each hour of overtime worked. The maximum
compensatory time that may be accrued by an affected employee shall be 480 hours (320 actual overtime
hours) for nonexempt law enforcement and detention employees and 240 hours (160 actual overtime
hours) for all other nonexempt employees. Once the maximums have been met, overtime compensation
will be paid for any additional overtime hours worked.

County employees accrue holiday leave within the 12-month period of November 1st through October
31lst. Employees must use their accrued holiday leave within the designated 12-month period. Each
year, at the end of the pay period that includes October 31st, all unused holiday leave is forfeited.

Vacation leave, holiday leave and compensatory time are fully vested when earned. For the County's
government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
an expense and a liability for these compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded
within those funds as the leave is earned.

10. Sick Leave

The County's sick leave policy provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave
does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the
determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the County has no obligation
for the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made.

11. Net Assets / Fund Balances

Net Assets

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints
on resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other governments, or imposed by law through State statute.

Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications
designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:
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Non-spendable Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent
because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

Long-term receivables - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it
represents the portion of receivables that are longer than one year at year end, therefore, not
spendable resources.

Inventories - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents
the year-end balance of ending inventories, which are not spendable resources.
Restricted Fund Balance - This classification includes revenue sources that are restricted to
specific purposes externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or as imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Restricted for Stabilization by State Statute - portion of fund balance that is restricted by
State Statute [G.S. 159-8(a)]. These amounts include outstanding encumbrances which are
amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders and contracts that
remain unperformed at year-end.

Restricted for grants, contributions, etc - portion of fund balance that is restricted by
revenue source as delineated in the following tables by function and purpose.

Committed Fund Balance - Portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes
imposed by majority vote of the County’'s governing body (highest level of decision-making
authority). Any changes or removal of specific purposes requires majority action by the governing
body.

Assignhed Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that the County governing board has
budgeted.

Subsequent year’'s expenditures - portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the next
year’s budget that is not already classified in restricted or committed. The governing body can
approve these appropriations. Also, a resolution approved June 20, 2005 authorizes the
County Manager, or his designee, to transfer appropriations between line item expenditures
within a departmental appropriation and fund without limitation. The County Manager may also
transfer amounts between departmental appropriations within the same fund. The County
Manager is authorized to increase appropriations in the annual operating funds for carryovers
representing contract balances, purchase order encumbrances and designations for special
projects and purposes as reflected in the audit report.

Assigned for General Capital Project Fund - portion of fund balance that has been
budgeted by the board for various projects as delineated in the following table by function and
purpose.

Assigned for School Bond Fund 55 - portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by the
board for capital asset acquisition and construction, financed with installment financing
proceeds and pay-go funds from the Debt Service Fund for the Union County Board of
Education.

Unassigned Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or
assigned to specific purposes or other funds.

The following table provides the detailed fund balance information for fund balance amounts in Exhibit
C and Schedule 9:
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Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Long-term receivables
Inventories
Restricted:
Stabilization by State Statute-accounts receivable
Stabilization by State Statute-encumbrances
General Government:
Register of Deeds automation enhancement funds
Public Safety:
Law enforcement JAG grant funds
Law enforcement JAG stimulus grant funds
Law enforcement alzheimers ankle/wrist bands program
Law enforcement federal forfeited property funds
Law enforcement controlled substance tax funds
Emergency management Catawba Nuclear grant funds
Emergency management CERT grant funds
Communications PSAP funds
Fire protection
Economic and physical development:
Cooperative extension senice fee based programs' funds
Human Senvces:
Health, Tobacco Cessation grant funds
Health, Susan G. Komen breast cancer grant funds
Envronmental health State funds
Social senices contribution and donation programs' funds
Social senices federal adoption assistance grant funds
Cultural and Recreational:
Library contribution and donation program funds
Education:
School regular capital outlay
School capital acquisition and construction projects
Assigned:
General Government:
Government facility renovation projects
ARRA / EECBG facility upfitting projects
Information technology infrastructure projects
Historic Post Office roof replacement
Garage expansion
Rewolving energy fund
Public Safety:
Law enforcement jail expansion project
Law enforcement firearms range project
Law enforcement FY2010 capital
Law enforcement FY2011 capital
Law enforcement jail roof replacement project
Communications op center, E911, fire senice project
Communications E911/CAD RMS project
Communications radio phase | project
Communications radio phase Il project
Inspections mobile office project
Human Senvices:
Social senices business automation system project
Cultural and Recreational:
Library facility improvement projects
Parks and recreation north district park project
Parks and recreation west district/comm. parks project
Parks and recreation Jesse Helms park bridge project
Parks and recreation Jesse Helms passive area project
Subsequent year's expenditures (via original budget ordinance)
Nondepartmental pay-go-capital funds
Unassigned

Major Non-major

General Other Total

Capital School Gowvern- Gowvern-

General Project Bond mental mental

Fund Fund Fund 55 Funds Funds
$ 62,112 $ - $ - $ - $ 62,112
22,506 - - - 22,506
12,204,036 - - 267,142 12,471,178
650,072 3,468,214 - 303,102 4,421,388
- - - 9,838 9,838
25,950 - - - 25,950
10,669 - - - 10,669
1 - - - 1
- - - 542,873 542,873
- - - 127,431 127,431
- - - 70,877 70,877
- - - 21,844 21,844
- - - 1,338,733 1,338,733
- - - 295,409 295,409
29,021 - - - 29,021
323 - - - 323
17,734 - - - 17,734
56,096 - - - 56,096
65,888 - - - 65,888
62,678 - - - 62,678
39,038 - - - 39,038
- 46,378 - - 46,378
- - 910,725 - 910,725
- 1,317,325 - - 1,317,325
- (173,469) - - (173,469)
- 573,681 - - 573,681
- (15,400) - - (15,400)
- (245,963) - - (245,963)
- 6,363 - - 6,363
- (1,425,127) - - (1,425,127)
- 653,710 - - 653,710
- 25,188 - - 25,188
- 38,092 - - 38,092
- 80,412 - - 80,412
- 568,950 - - 568,950
- 241,799 - - 241,799
- (389,140) - - (389,140)
- (1,117,553) - - (1,117,553)
- 19,909 - - 19,909
- 619,820 - - 619,820
- - - 3,547,854 3,547,854
- 12,500 - - 12,500
- 12,500 - - 12,500
- 51,707 - - 51,707
- 527,878 - - 527,878
1,497,776 - - - 1,497,776
- 68,153,106 - - 68,153,106
" 51,249,617 - - - 51,249,617
$ 65,993,517 $ 73,050,880 $ 910,725 $ 6,525,103 $ 146,480,225
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The following table provides the detailed fund balance information for fund balance amounts in
Schedule 1:

Total
Total Library Non-major
Special Capital Gowern-
Revenue Project mental
Funds Fund Funds
Fund balances:
Restricted:
Stabilization by State Statute-accounts receivable $ 267,142 $ - $ 267,142
Stabilization by State Statute-encumbrances 303,102 - 303,102
General Government:
Register of Deeds automation enhancement funds 9,838 - 9,838
Public Safety:
Law enforcement federal forfeited property funds 542,873 - 542,873
Law enforcement controlled substance tax funds 127,431 - 127,431
Emergency management Catawba Nuclear grant funds 70,877 - 70,877
Emergency management CERT grant funds 21,844 - 21,844
Communications PSAP funds 1,338,733 - 1,338,733
Fire protection 295,409 - 295,409
Assigned:
Cultural and Recreational:
Library facility improvement projects - 3,547,854 3,547,854

$ 2,977,249 $ 3,547,854 $ 6,525,103

The following table provides the detailed fund balance information for fund balance amounts in
Schedule 3:

Hemby Wesley Fee
Springs  Waxhaw Bridge Stallings Chapel Supported  Emergency General Total
Fire Fire Fire Fire Fire Fire Telephone Special ~ Automation Special
District District District District District Districts System Rewenue Enhancement Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Fund balances:
Restricted:
Stabilization by State Statute-accounts receivable $14,242 $ 28532 $ 45634 $41,309 $ 53527 $ 188 $ 83710 $ - $ - $ 267,142
Stabilization by State Statute-encumbrances - - - - - - 174,154 128,948 - 303,102
General Government:
Register of Deeds automation enhancement funds - - - - - - - - 9,838 9,838
Public Safety:
Law enforcement federal forfeited property funds - - - - - - - 542,873 - 542,873
Law enforcement controlled substance tax funds - - - - - - - 127,431 - 127,431
Emergency management Catawba Nuclear grant funds - - - - - - - 70,877 - 70,877
Emergency management CERT grant funds

21,844 - 21,844
Communications PSAP funds - - - - - - - 1,338,733
Fire protection 26,927 58,203 65,841 34,520 107,531 2,387 - - - 295,409

$41,169 $86,735 $111,475 $75829 $161,058 $ 2,575 $1,596,597 $891,973 $ 9,838 $ 2,977,249

1,338,733

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific
cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus when program
expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted fund balances available to finance the
program. It is the County’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs,
followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

State law [G.S. 159-13(b)(16)] restricts the appropriation of fund balance to an amount not to exceed
the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances and deferred revenues
arising from cash receipts, as these amounts stand at the close of the fiscal year next preceding the
budget year.

The County has also adopted fund balance targets for the maintenance of adequate fund balance,
which is necessary to provide working capital, funds for unanticipated expenditures, funds for capital
expenditures in advance of their reimbursement from debt proceeds and tax rate stabilization. The
General Fund target for unassigned (unreserved) fund balances are estimated at 16%, as measured
by unrestricted cash and investments minus liabilities divided by expenditures plus recurring inter-fund
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transfers. The Water and Sewer Operating Fund target fund balances are estimated at 365 days cash
on hand, as measured by unrestricted cash and investments minus non-GAAP liabilities divided by
operating expenses to include depreciation. General Fund and Water and Sewer Operating Fund
fund balances in excess of target levels will be transferred to capital reserve funds to provide equity
resources to fund the County’s capital improvement plan or will be used to redeem outstanding debt.

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance - total
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that long-term liabilities,
including bonds and installment financing payables are not due and payable in the current period,
and therefore are not recorded in the funds. The details of this $508,981,197difference are as
follows:

Description Amount
Liabilities that, because they are not due and payable in the current period, do not
require current resources to pay and are therefore not recorded in the fund statements:

Bonds and installment financing principal payments $ (511,925,514)

Accrued interest payable, net of unamortized bond issuance costs and unamortized

swap termination costs 2,944,317
Net adjustment attributable to liabilities not recorded in the fund statements $ (508,981,197)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and
changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of
activities. There are several elements of that total adjustment of $26,000,706 as follows:
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Description

Amount

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements but capitalized as assets in
the statement of activities

Depreciation expense, the allocation of those assets over their useful lives, that is recorded
on the statement of activities but not in the fund statements.

Net book value of capital assets disposed of

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums,
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred
and amortized in the Statement of Activities. The details of these differences are as
follows:

Principal payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of funds on the fund

statements but again affect only the statement of net assets in the government-wide

statements

Proceeds of debt instruments are reported as a source of funds on the fund statements
but again affect only the statement of net assets in the government-wide statements
Debt issuance premium amortization

Debt issuance gain amortization

Debt issuance loss amortization

Debt issuance costs are recorded as a use of funds on the fund statements but again
do not affect the Statement of Net Assets in the government-wide statements until
amortized

Swap termination costs are recorded as a use of funds on the fund statements but
again do not affect the Statement of Net Assets in the government-wide statements
until amortized

Remittance of funds to escrow agent to defease debt instruments

Defeasance amortization over remaining life of debt

Expenses reported in the statement of activities that do not require the use of current
resources to pay are not recorded as expenditures in the fund statements.
Difference in interest expense between fund statements (modified accrual) and
government-wide statements (full accrual)
Compensated absences are accrued in the government-wide statements but not in the
fund statements because they do not use current resources
Net pension obligation
Net other post employment obligation

Rewvenues reported in the statement of activities that do not provide current resources are
not recorded as revenues in the fund statements.

Rewersal of deferred tax revenue recorded at 7/1/11

Recording of tax receipts deferred in the fund statements as of 6/30/12

Decrease in accrued taxes receivable for year ended 6/30/12

Derivative investment income

Internal senvice funds' net investment loss

Adjustment payment received on a deferred loan to an outside agency
Health and dental insurance costs, net of investment earnings
Workers' compensation costs, net of investment earnings

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances-total governmental funds
to arrive at changes in net assets-governmental activities
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$ 4,450,420

(6,371,998)
(13,265)

30,352,418

(76,440,701)
1,627,631
19,641
(47,364)

483,351

(475,967)
75,670,230
(928,005)

506,473

(118,823)
11,444
(2,576,015)

(5,815,639)
5,352,415
(70,432)
366,138
(6,359)
(14,959)
(1,668)

41,740

$ 26,000,706



NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

Expenditures relating to the General Fund Historical Properties program area exceeded budget
appropriations by $1,132; however, the General Services property management program had
available budget to support this program expenditure overage that was due to higher than anticipated
facility occupancy costs being applied to the Historical Properties program budget.

NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The County pools cash resources into a centralized cash account (Central Depository) to facilitate the
management of cash and maximize investment income. The Central Depository is used by all funds
except the Social Services Fund and the Jail Inmate Fund and the portion of the Other Postemployment
Retiree Healthcare Benefits (OPEB) Pension Trust Fund that has not yet been remitted to the OPEB
Trust managed by the staff of the Department of the State Treasurer (as explained in Note 1. E. 1.). Each
fund owns a pro rata share of the cash and investments, and the amount applicable to a particular fund is
readily identifiable. Allocation of investment income is made to each fund based on its pro rata share.

The Social Services Fund and the Jail Inmate Fund monies are each held in official depositories of the
County in separate accounts for the benefit of certain individuals.

All of the County's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under the
Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage level are
collateralized with securities held by the County's agent in the County's name. Under the Pooling Method,
which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State
Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary
capacity for the County, these deposits are considered to be held by the County's agent in the County's
name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest
bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest bearing deposits. Depositories using the
Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured
deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the County or the escrow agent.
Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the County under the
Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of
high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial
stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method.

The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial
institutions. The County relies on the State Treasurer to monitor those financial institutions. The County
analyzes the financial soundness of any other financial institution used by the County. The County
complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that
deposits are properly secured. The County does not have policies regarding custodial credit risk for
deposits.

At June 30, 2012, the County's deposits had a carrying amount of $119,700,790 and a bank balance of
$122,112,598. Of the bank balance, $362,758 was covered by federal depository insurance and
$121,749,840 in interest bearing deposits were covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method.
Also, at June 30, 2012, the County had $7,380 cash on hand.

As of June 30, 2012, the County had the following investments and maturities.
Less Than

Investment Type Fair Value 6 Months 6 - 12 Months 1-3Years 3 -5 Years
Commercial Paper $ 42,979,204 $27,992,704  $ 14,986,500 $ - $ -
NC Cash Management Trust - Cash P« 16,043,175 - - - -
US Gowernment Agencies 53,944,612 - 6,560,671 29,382,142 18,001,799
Total: $ 112,966,991 $27,992,704 $ 21,547,171 $29,382,142 $18,001,799
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The cash and investments described above include those recorded in the County’s Statement of Net
Assets ($231,727,682); and Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets for Special Separation Allowance Pension
Trust Fund ($585,982) and Agency Funds ($361,497).

Also, at June 30, 2012, the Other Postemployment Retiree Healthcare Benefits (OPEB) Pension Trust
Fund deposits had a carrying amount and bank balance of $8,374,246 as shown on the Statement of
Fiduciary Net Assets.

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest
rates, the County’s investment policy limits investments to maturities of no more than five years. Also,
the County’s investment policy requires purchases of securities to be laddered with staggered maturity
dates and limits all securities to a final maturity of no more than five years.

Credit Risk. State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top rating issued by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROSs); however, the County has no formal policy on
managing credit risk. As of June 30, 2012, the County’s investments in commercial paper were rated,
by the following; P1 by Standard & Poor’'s and Al+ by Moody’s Investors Service. The County’s
investments in the NC Capital Management Trust Cash Portfolio carried a credit rating of AAAm by
Standard & Poor’s as of June 30, 2012. The County’s investments in US Agencies (Federal Home
Loan Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal National Mortgage Association and
Federal Farm Credit Corporation) are rated AA+ by Standard & Poor’s and Aaa by Moody’s Investors
Service.

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure
of the counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The County has no investments with
custodial credit risk. The County has no policy on custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk — Cash and Investments. The County has adopted a policy stating that of
total cash and investments, the County places a limit of 10 percent on the amount that the County
may invest in any one issuer of commercial paper, no more exposure than 25 percent in commercial
paper, and no limitations on Federal Agencies. At June 30, 2012, the County was not holding more
than 10 percent of the total cash and investments portfolio in any one issuer of commercial paper.

Concentration of Credit Risk — Investments. More than 5 percent of the County’s investments are in
Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Bank, and Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation. These investments are 9.5%, 2.4%, and 9.6% respectively of the County’s total
investments.

At June 30, 2012 the County’s Other Postemployment Retiree Healthcare Benefits (OPEB) Pension
Trust Fund had $1,954,797 invested in the State Treasurer's Local Government Other
Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Trust Fund pursuant to G.S. 147-69.4. The amount, valued at fair
market value, represents a portion of the County’s contribution to the net OPEB obligation. The State
Treasurer’'s OPEB Trust may invest in public equities and both long-term and short-term fixed income
obligations as determined by the State Treasurer pursuant to the General Statutes. At year-end, the
State Treasurer’'s OPEB Trust was invested as follows: State Treasurer’'s Short Term Investment Fund
(STIF) 24.86%; State Treasurer's Long Term Investment Fund (LTIF) 11.08%; Black Rock’s Global
Ex-US Alpha Tilts Fund B 51.28 %; and Black Rock’s Russell 3000 Alpha Tilts Fund B 12.78% (the
equities were split with 75% in domestic securities and 25% in international securities).

Interest Rate Risk: The County does not have a formal investment interest rate policy that manages its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The State Treasurer's Short Term
Investment Fund (STIF) is unrated and had a weighted average maturity of 1.9 years at June 30,
2012. The State Treasurer's Long Term Investment Fund (LTIF) is unrated and had a weighted
average maturity of 16.3 years at June 30, 2012.
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Credit Risk: The County does not have a formal investment policy regarding credit risk for the Other
Postemployment Retiree Healthcare Benefits (OPEB) Pension Trust Fund invested in the State
Treasurer’s Local Government Other Post-Employment Benefits OPEB Trust Fund. The STIF is
unrated and authorized under NC General Statute 147-69.1. The State Treasurer’'s STIF is invested in
highly liquid fixed income securities consisting primarily of short to intermediate treasuries, agencies,
and money market instruments. The LTIF is unrated and authorized under NC General Statute 147-
69.1 and 147-69.2. The State Treasurer's LTIF is invested in treasuries, agencies and corporate
bonds with longer term maturities.

NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES
A. Receivables and Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

Receivables and their associated allowance for doubtful accounts at the government-wide level at
June 30, 2012, were as follows:

Taxes
and Related
Accounts Accrued Interest Total

Governmental Activities:

General $ 12,266,150 $ 7,050,151 $ 19,316,301

Special Revenue 267,142 152,723 419,865

Internal Service 341,112 - 341,112
Total Receivables 12,874,404 7,202,874 ¥20,077,278
Allow ance for doubtful accounts - (1,920,891) (1,920,891)
Total-governmental activities $ 12,874,404 $ 5281983 $ 18,156,387
Business-type Activities:

Water and Sew er $ 6826678 $ - $ 6,826,678

Solid Waste 431,065 - 431,065
Total Receivables 7,257,743 - ¥ 7,257,743
Allow ance for doubtful accounts (1,865,364) - (1,865,364)
Total-business-type activities $ 5392379 $ - $ 5,392,379

B. Property Tax - Use-Value Assessment on Certain Lands

In accordance with the general statutes, the County may tax agriculture, horticulture, and forestland at the
present-use value as opposed to market value. When the property loses its eligibility for use-value
taxation, the property tax is recomputed at market value for the current year and the three preceding fiscal
years, along with the accrued interest from the original due date. This tax is immediately due and
payable. The following are property taxes that could become due if present use-value eligibility is lost.
These amounts have not been recorded in the financial statements.

Fiscal Tax

Year Year Tax Interest Total
2009 2008 $ 10,245,348 $ 2,433,270 $ 12,678,618
2010 2009 10,735,355 1,583,465 12,318,820
2011 2010 12,037,355 692,148 12,729,503
2012 2011 12,379,113 711,799 13,090,912

$ 45,397,171 $ 5,420,682 $ 50,817,853
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NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Other improvements
Buildings
Furniture and equipment
Vehicles
Computer software
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Other improvements
Buildings
Furniture and equipment
Vehicles
Computer software
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Gowvernmental activities capital assets, net

Beginning Retirements & Ending

Balances Additions Adjustments Transfers Balances
$ 4,812,189 $ - $ - - $ 4,812,189
4,377,638 2,591,415 - (2,823,625) 4,145,428
9,189,827 2,591,415 - (2,823,625) 8,957,617
6,745,795 - - - 6,745,795
66,972,947 154,953 5,100 2,547,234 69,670,034
27,046,853 935,113 199,579 276,391 28,058,778
8,086,830 597,310 963,166 - 7,720,974
117,122 171,630 - - 288,752
108,969,547 1,859,006 1,167,845 2,823,625 112,484,333
2,742,648 239,966 - - 2,982,614
24,482,312 2,420,504 5,100 - 26,897,716
14,102,556 2,989,484 199,579 - 16,892,461
6,082,512 695,813 949,901 - 5,828,424
3,088 26,231 - - 29,319
47,413,116 6,371,998 1,154,580 - 52,630,534
61,556,431 (4,512,992) 13,265 2,823,625 59,853,799
$ 70,746,258 $ (1,921,577) $ 13,265 - $ 68,811,416

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General government
Public safety

Economic and physical development
Human senices

Education
Cultural and recreational

Total depreciation expense

1,530,113
3,507,945
177,953
427,412
93,635
634,940
6,371,998

Capital asset activity for the business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows:
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Prior Amended Retirements
Beginning Period Beginning and Ending
Business-type activities: Balances Adjustment Balances Additions Adjustments ~ Transfers Balances
Water and Sewer
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 1,412,752 % - $ 1,412,752 % - $ - $ - $ 1,412,752

Land - easements 1,113,633 - 1,113,633 - - - 1,113,633

Construction in progress 15,512,516 (8,903,272) 6,609,244 6,913,283 226,603  (1,030,559) 12,265,365
Total capital assets not being depreciated 18,038,901 (8,903,272) 9,135,629 6,913,283 226,603  (1,030,559) 14,791,750
Capital assets being depreciated:

Plant and collection systems 155,237,173 8,127,836 163,365,009 1,099,708 - 397,068 164,861,785

Plant and distribution systems 123,131,640 388,280 123,519,920 935,381 - 633,491 125,088,792

Water rights (intangible asset) 1,902,757 - 1,902,757 - - - 1,902,757

Administration Building 1,170,024 - 1,170,024 - - (96,413) 1,073,611

Equipment 2,913,632 - 2,913,632 124,115 64,443 96,413 3,069,717

Vehicles 3,049,200 - 3,049,200 - 245,470 - 2,803,730

Computer Software - - - 7,000 - - 7,000
Total capital assets being depreciated 287,404,426 8,516,116 295,920,542 2,166,204 309,913 1,030,559 298,807,392
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Plant and collection systems 46,194,565 1,815,037 48,009,602 5,905,618 - 53,915,220

Plant and distribution systems 37,733,610 333,141 38,066,751 4,459,679 - 42,526,430

Water rights intangible asset 915,702 - 915,702 47,569 - 963,271

Administration Building 203,686 - 203,686 65,131 (37,762) 231,055

Equipment 2,353,993 - 2,353,993 186,841 57,463 37,762 2,521,133

Vehicles 2,886,688 - 2,886,688 95,399 245,470 - 2,736,617

Computer Software - - - 1,400 - - 1,400
Total accumulated depreciation 90,288,244 2,148,178 92,436,422 10,761,637 302,933 - 102,895,126
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 197,116,182 6,367,938 203,484,120 (8,595,433) 6,980 1,030,559 195,912,266
Water and Sewer capital assets, net 215,155,083 (2,535,334) 212,619,749 (1,682,150) 233,583 - 210,704,016
Solid Waste
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 334,257 - 334,257 - - - 334,257
Capital assets being depreciated:

Other improvements 809,939 - 809,939 - - - 809,939

Plant and collection systems 1,931,983 - 1,931,983 - - - 1,931,983

Equipment 1,826,163 - 1,826,163 24,203 - - 1,850,366

Vehicles 963,272 - 963,272 - - - 963,272
Total capital assets being depreciated 5,531,357 - 5,531,357 24,203 - - 5,555,560
Less accumulated depreciation for: -

Other improvements 192,847 - 192,847 39,743 - - 232,590

Plant and collection systems 1,365,308 - 1,365,308 75,346 - - 1,440,654

Equipment 1,498,209 - 1,498,209 47,489 - - 1,545,698

Vehicles 949,435 - 949,435 8,231 - - 957,666
Total accumulated depreciation 4,005,799 - 4,005,799 170,809 - - 4,176,608
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,525,558 - 1,525,558 (146,606) - - 1,378,952
Solid Waste capital assets, net 1,859,815 - 1,859,815 (146,606) - - 1,713,209
Storm Water -

Capital assets being depreciated: -

Vehicles 33,197 33,197 - - - 33,197
Total capital assets being depreciated 33,197 - 33,197 - - - 33,197
Less accumulated depreciation for: -

Vehicles 29,836 - 29,836 3,361 - - 33,197
Total accumulated depreciation 29,836 - 29,836 3,361 - - 33,197
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 3,361 - 3,361 (3,361) - - -
Storm Water capital assets, net 3,361 - 3,361 (3,361) - - -
Business-type activities capital assets, net ~ $217,018,259  $(2,535,334) 214,482,925 $(1,832,116) $ 233584 $ - $212,417,225

During the year $203,978 of Water and Sewer Fund interest expense was capitalized.

NOTE 7 - LIABILITIES

Payables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2012, including liabilities payable from restricted

assets, were as follows:
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Business

Governmental Type
Payables: Activities Activities Total
Vendors $ 3,988,140 $ 2,605,860 $ 6,594,000
Salaries and benefits 2,139,804 313,265 2,453,069
Accrued Interest 5,641,053 214,328 5,855,381
Total $ 11,768,997 $ 3,133,453 $ 14,902,450

NOTE 8 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS
A. Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
Description

The County contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS), a
cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina.
LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G.S.
Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina
General Assembly. LGERS is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410
Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute 6% of their annual covered salary. The County is required to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the County, the current rate for employees not engaged
in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers is 6.96% and 7.05% respectively, of annual covered
payroll. The contribution requirements of members and of the County are established and may be
amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The County’s contributions to LGERS for the years
ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $2,563,920, $2,381,456, and $1,819,022, respectively. The
contributions made by the County equaled the required contributions for each year.

B. Special Separation Allowance
Description

The County administers a public employee retirement system (the “Separation Allowance”), a single-
employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the County’s qualified
employees. The Separation Allowance was enacted by the General Assembly on January 1, 1987 for law
enforcement officers. The Union County Board of Commissioners extended this benefit to all County
employees effective July 1, 1990. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85% of the annual equivalent of
the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the employee for each year of creditable
service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that
may be authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Separation
Allowance is reported in the County’s report as a pension trust fund. The Separation Allowance does not
issue separate financial statements.

All permanent full-time and permanent part-time County employees are covered by the Separation
Allowance. At December 31, 2011, the Separation Allowance’s membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits 71
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits -
Active plan members 909
Total 980
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Financial statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the County has made a formal
commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the terms of the plan.

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term money market debt instruments, deposits, and the
North Carolina Capital Management Trust investments are reported at cost or amortized cost, which
approximates fair value. Certain longer term United States Government and United States Agency
securities are valued at the last reported sales price.

Contributions

The County is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has
chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned by making contributions based on
actuarial valuations. For the current year, the County contributed $723,890 or 1.97% of annual covered
payroll. There were no contributions made by employees. The County’s obligation to contribute to this
plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. Administration costs
of the Separation Allowance are financed through investment earnings.

The annual required contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was determined as part of the
December 31, 2010 actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial
assumptions included (a) 5.00% investment rate of return and (b) projected salary increases ranging from
4.25% to 7.85% per year for law enforcement officers and ranging from 4.25% to 7.75% per year for
general employees. The inflation component was 3.00%. The assumptions do not include postretirement
benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was determined using market value of investments. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of pay on a closed basis.
The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2010 was 20 years.

The County’s annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current
year were as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 695,688
Interest on net pension obligation (78,733)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 93,936
Annual pension cost 710,891
Contributions made 723,890
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation (12,999)
Net pension obligation - beginning of year (1,574,658)
Net pension obligation - end of year $ (1,587,657)
Three year trend information:
Fiscal Annual Percentage Net Pension
Year Pension of APC Obligation/(Credit)

Ending Cost(APC) Contributed End of Year
June 30,2010 $ 564,533 112% $ (1,742,166)
June 30, 2011 731,520 77% (1,574,658)
June 30, 2012 710,891 102% (1,587,657)

As of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 9.47 percent funded.
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $7,808,146, and the actuarial value of assets was
$739,302, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $7,068,844. The covered
payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $36,870,843, and the ratio of the
UAAL to the covered payroll was 19.17 percent.
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C. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan
Description

All regular full-time and regular part-time Union County employees patrticipate in the Supplemental
Retirement Income Plan (401-K), a defined contribution pension plan administered by the Department
of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement
officers employed by the County, and the Union County Board of County Commissioners has agreed
to extend this benefit to all non-law enforcement employees. Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns
the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The
Supplemental Retirement Income Plan is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial
statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan that includes the Supplemental
Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the
Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by
calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy

Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the County to contribute each month an amount equal to 5% of
each officer's salary and the Union County Board of County Commissioners has agreed to contribute an
equal amount for all regular full-time and regular part-time non-law enforcement employee salaries. All
amounts contributed are vested immediately. County employees may also make voluntary contributions
to the plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2012 were $2,790,420, which consisted of
$1,840,732 from the County and $949,688 from employees.

D. Register of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund
Description

The County also contributes to the Registers of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund (Fund), a
noncontributory, defined contribution pension plan administered by the North Carolina Department of
State Treasurer. The fund provides supplemental pension benefits to any eligible County register of
deeds who is retired under the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) or an
equivalent locally sponsored plan. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 161 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Registers of Deeds’
Supplemental Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for
the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Resisters of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund. That report may
be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North
Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy

On a monthly basis, the County remits to the Department of the State Treasurer an amount equal to 1.5%
of the monthly receipts collected pursuant to Article 1 of G.S. 161. Immediately following January 1 of
each year, the Department of the State Treasurer divides 93% of the amount in the fund at the end of the
preceding calendar year into equal shares to be disbursed as monthly benefits. The remaining 7% of the
fund's assets may be used by the State Treasurer in administering the fund. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012, the County’s required and actual contributions were $20,037.

NOTE 9 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The County offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, which is available to all County employees, permits them to defer
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a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation distribution is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

NOTE 10 — OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
A. Other Postemployment Retiree Healthcare Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description - Eligibility. Under the terms of a County resolution, the County administers a single-
employer defined benefit Retiree Healthcare Benefits Plan (the RHCB Plan). As of July 1, 2008, this
plan provides postemployment healthcare benefits to retirees of the County, provided they retire from
service under the provisions of the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees' Retirement
System or the North Carolina Law Enforcement Officer's Benefit and Retirement Fund (together the
“Systems”) and immediately prior to such retirement has earned ten (10) consecutive years of
credible, continuous service with the County. Employees hired on or after July 1, 2008 require twenty
(20) years of credible, continuous service with the County and must retire from service under the
Systems to receive the postemployment healthcare benefit.

Plan Description — Benefits Covered. Retirees and spouses under age 65 are eligible to receive the
same medical benefits (including prescription drug and vision benefits) as active, full-time employees
through the County group health and dental plan. As of July 1, 2011, retirees paid $0 per month for
their coverage and $242.00 per month for spousal coverage, if elected. In addition, these retirees are
eligible for dental coverage and pay $0 per month for their coverage and $20.00 per month for spousal
coverage, if elected.

Coverage for eligible retirees and covered spouses in the County group health and dental plan ends
on the day the retiree attains age 65. In addition, all coverage (except COBRA) in the County group
health and dental plan ends for covered spouses upon the death of an eligible retiree who had not
attained age 65.

Retirees age 65 or older are eligible for coverage in a Medicare Supplemental plan as well as a
prescription drug plan. Retirees do not contribute towards the cost of this plan. Spouses are not
eligible for post-65 coverage.

Membership of the RHCB Plan (County group health and dental plan and the Medicare Supplement
plans) consisted of the following at July 1, 2011, the date of the latest actuarial valuation:

Number of

Participants
Active Participants 838
Retired Participants 258
Covered Spouses of Retirees 38
Total 1,134

Funding Policy. The County pays the full cost of coverage for the healthcare benefits paid to qualified
retirees under a County resolution that can be amended, subject to certain limitations, by the County.
The County has chosen to fund the healthcare benefits on a pay as you go basis.

The current ARC rate is 16.3% of annual covered payroll. For the current year, the County contributed
$6,402,758 or 17.4% of annual covered payroll. The County healthcare benefits for the County group
health and dental plans are self-insured with specific and aggregate stop-loss coverage provided
through re-insurers. Claims are administered under a contract with a third party administrator. There
were no contributions made by employees, except for dependent coverage. The County’s obligation to
contribute to RHCB Plan is established and may be amended, subject to certain limitations, by the
County.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Postemployment expenditures are made from the
General Fund, the Emergency Telephone System Fund, and the Enterprise Funds, which are
maintained on the modified and full accrual basis of accounting, respectively. Effective July 1, 2008,
the County increased its contributions to the RHCB Plan with the objective of funding the Annual
Required Contribution by fiscal year 2014. A portion of the contributions above the modified accrual
expenditures are being set aside to pay for the future benefits and administration costs.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The County's annual OPEB cost (expense) is
calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following
table shows the components of the County’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually
contributed to the plan, and changes in the County’s net OPEB obligation for the healthcare benefits:

Annual required contribution $ 5,989,106
Interest on net OPEB obligation 817,888
Adjustment to annual required contribution (869,043)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 5,937,951
Contributions made (5,373,430)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 564,521
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 11,281,207
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 11,845,728

The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB obligation for 2010 thru 2012 were as follows:

For Year Annual Percentage of Annual Net OPEB

Ended June 30 OPEB Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obligatioin
2010 $ 4,936,556 47.10% $ 9,240,560
2011 $ 4,924,810 104.10% $ 11,281,207
2012 $ 5,937,951 106.91% $ 11,845,728

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of July 1, 2011 the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded actuarial
accrued liability (UAAL) was $44,546,193. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $36,772,539 the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 121.14
percent. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare trends. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based
on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include
the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employer and plan members at that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in
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actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of
the calculations.

In the July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 7.25 percent investment rate of return, which is the expected long-
term investment returns on the plan’s assets and an annual medical cost trend increase of 9.50 to
5.00 percent annually and an inflation component of 2.50 percent. The UAAL is being amortized on a
level dollar and open basis. The remaining amortization period at July 1, 2011, was 30 years.

B. Other Employment Benefits - Death Benefits

Under the terms of the Board of Commissioner’s resolution, the County has elected to provide death
benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for members of the Local Governmental
Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer, State-administered, cost-
sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in
active service after one year of contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days
after retirement or termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership
service in the System at the time of death, are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death benefit
payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest months’ salary in a row during the
24 months prior to the employee's death, but the benefit will be a minimum of $25,000 and will not
exceed $50,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. The County has
no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. Contributions are determined as a
percentage of monthly payroll, based upon rates established annually by the State. Separate rates
are set for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. Because the
benefit payments are made by the Death Benefit Plan and not by the County, the County does not
determine the number of eligible participants. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the County
made contributions to the State for death benefits of $36,848. The County's required contributions for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers represented .09% and
.14% of covered payroll, respectively. The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be
separated between the postemployment benefit amount and the other benefit amount.

NOTE 11 - CLOSURE AND POST CLOSURE CARE COSTS - LANDFILL FACILITY

State and federal laws and regulations required the County to place a final cover on its landfill facility
when it stopped accepting municipal solid waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the site for 30 years after closure of the municipal solid waste collection cell. The County has
continued to collect construction and demolition waste in different cells which are opened based on
demand and closed when each cell reaches its capacity. Closure and post closure care costs have been
accumulated up to the dates of closure for each of the cells; therefore, the County has reported these
closure and post closure care costs as an operating expense in each prior period based on landfill
capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The County stopped accepting municipal solid waste into
its Austin-Chaney Road facility, permit number 90-01, on December 31, 1997. The site still serves as a
transfer station for the collection of local municipal solid waste, which is transported to other sites outside
of the County. The $4,133,897 reported as landfill closure and post closure care liability at June 30, 2012
represents a cumulative liability amount reported to date, based on the use of 100% of the total estimated
post closure maintenance and monitoring costs associated with the closed municipal solid waste
collection and construction and demolition cells and closure costs associated with 38% of the construction
and demolition capacity. At June 30, 2012 there was an increase of $85,026 from the prior year. The
liability represents the estimated present value of the amount needed to fund the post closure care costs
that will be incurred during the 30 year period after closure. Actual post closure costs may be higher due
to inflation, changes in technology or changes in regulations.

The County has met and continues to meet the requirements of a local government financial test that is
one option under state and federal laws and regulations that helps determine if a unit is financially able to
meet closure and post closure care requirements. The County elected to establish a reserve fund several
years ago to accumulate resources for the payment of closure and post closure care costs. The actual
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landfill closure and post closure costs have been less than engineering estimates due to use of County
personnel for closure activities and proper planning for closure. The Solid Waste Capital Reserve Fund
has remaining funds being held in investments with a fair value of $7,312,617. The County expects that
future inflation costs will be paid from the interest earnings on these remaining funds. However, if interest
earnings are inadequate or additional post closure care requirements are determined (due to changes in
technology or applicable laws or regulations, for example), these costs may need to be covered by
charges to future transfer station users or by future tax revenues.

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS
A. Contractual Commitments

The County had several outstanding projects as of June 30, 2012. At year end the significant
contractual commitments include the following:

Spent Remaining

Project to Date Commitment
General Capital Projects Fund:

EECBG Grant Project $ 369,121 $ 147,368

Jail Control System 347,769 119,906

Jail Expansion - 110,114

Jail Roof Replacement 506,248 2,750

Government Facility Renovations 1,633,637 2,395,506

Social Services Automation System 223,146 437,836
Emergency Telephone System Fund:

Communications Equipment - 164,554
Water Capital Projects:

Water Main Relocation 16,255 560,971

Cataw ba River WTP Reservoir Expansion 478,534 1,001,968

Y adkin Water Supply 104,164 177,890

Weddington Elevated Storage Tank 48,154 829,566
Sewer Capital Projects:

East Side Sew er Improvements 2,760,374 4,868,877

Tallw ood WWTP Expansion 802,802 1,482,834

12 Mile Creek WWTP Expansion 1,708,706 2,036,524

Total $ 8,998,910 $ 14,336,664

The General capital projects are commitments of the General Capital Projects Fund and are funded by a
combination of certificates of participation, installment financing, general obligation bonds, grants and
General Fund monies. The Emergency Telephone System Fund capital projects are funded by the Public
Safety Answering Point revenue (E911-PSAP). The Water and Sewer Capital Projects are commitments
of the County's Water and Sewer Capital Projects Fund and are funded by a combination of revenue
bonds and other enterprise fund monies.

B. Other Commitments

The County has an economic development and incentive grants program that is offered to companies
meeting certain agreed upon criteria. Amounts to be paid in the future under these agreements are not
readily determinable; however, management and internal audit estimates an amount of up to $792,000
and expects the payments to be made over the next five years.

NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risk of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County carries
commercial insurance for these risks of loss, with the exception of injuries to employees. The County
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self-insures workers’ compensation, medical and dental claims and purchases stop-loss insurance for
workers’ compensation and medical claims that exceed certain amounts.

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year and settled
claims subject to insurance coverage have not exceeded insurance policy limits in the last three years.

The County has established three Internal Service Funds to account for self-insured risk financing.
Funding of the Health Benefit Fund is based upon an analysis of historical and projected medical and
dental claims paid by the third party administrator and the availability of contributions from the County,
the County’s employees, and unrestricted net assets to fund projected claims. Funding of the Workers’
Compensation Fund is based upon payroll rates established by the State of North Carolina and the
availability of unrestricted net assets to fund projected claims. Funding of the Property and Casualty
Fund is based upon experience and exposure risks associated with County operations and the
availability of unrestricted net assets to fund projected claims.

The County's medical and Rx benefits are partially self-insured. Individual member claims are self-
insured up to $150,000 annually. Specific Stop-Loss Insurance is purchased to cover individual
member claims in excess of the self-insured retention. In addition, Aggregate Stop-Loss Insurance is
purchased to cover the combined eligible claims expense of all membersin excess of 120%
of expected eligible claims incurred and paid during the coverage period. Claims paid through an
individual member HRA (Health Reimbursement Account) are excluded from specific and aggregate
stop loss coverage. Claims are administered under contract with a third party administrator. Claim
reserves are established at the end of the plan year (currently June 30) based on a combination of
insurance industry standards, the County and third party administrator's analysis of claims submission,
processing and payment.

The County’s workers’ compensation is self-insured; stop-loss insurance provides statutory worker
compensation benefits above the County’s self-insurance limit of $350,000 per occurrence. Claims are
administered under contract with a third party administrator. Claim reserves are established when an
injury occurs and the ultimate expected exposure of each claim can be reasonably estimated by the third
party claims administrator.

Unpaid liabilities at year end are as follows:

Health Benefit Fund Workers' Compensation Fund Property & Casualty Fund

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011

Unpaid Claims beginning of fiscal year —~ $ 653,000 $ 1018419 $ 83930 $ 267,097 $ - $ -
Incurred claims and premiums 10,202,378 8,404,622 354,287 (18,199) 656,827 593,091
Claims and premiums paid (10,011,595) (8,770,041) (254,075) (164,968) (656,827) (593,091)

Unpaid Claims end of fiscal year $ 843,783  $ 653,000 $ 184,142  $ 83,930 $ - $ -

The County carries commercial insurance for its exposure to various risks related to torts, theft,
damage to and destruction of assets and errors and omissions. The finance officer is bonded at
$100,000, the tax administrator is bonded at $60,000, the sheriff is bonded at $5,000, and the register
of deeds is bonded at $25,000. The remaining employees are covered by a crime insurance policy
with limits of $500,000 per loss. The County, in conjunction with its insurance broker, has researched
its existing real property locations. No buildings owned by the County of material value were found to
be located in either the 100 or 500 year old flood plains. Therefore, it is believed that the County has
limited exposure to a flood loss and flood insurance has not been purchased.

NOTE 14 - CLAIMS AND JUDGEMENTS

The County was a defendant in various matters of litigation as of June 30, 2012. While any litigation
contains an element of uncertainty, County officials believe that the outcome of any lawsuit or claim which
is pending, or all of them combined, will not have a materially adverse effect on the County’s financial
condition or operations. In addition, there are known incidents that may result in the assertion of claims,
as well as claims from unknown incidents that may be asserted for which the County could be liable for a
material amount. However, since such claims have not been asserted and are not determinable or
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measurable, no provision for loss has been included in the financial statements. Also, County officials
believe the County’s insurance is adequate for the actual or pending lawsuits or claims mentioned above.

NOTE 15 - OPERATING LEASES

The County has entered into a 20 year agreement with Anson County for the use of a 20-inch water line
to the County. The County has agreed to pay 70% of the actual principal and interest due on the
installment financing arranged by Anson County. The County has also entered into an agreement with
the City of Charlotte (CMUD) for the treatment of wastewater in the Six Mile Creek drainage basin located
within both Union and Mecklenburg Counties. Under the agreement, the County is responsible for one
sixteenth of the debt service on debt issued by the City of Charlotte to construct the new outfall lines and
plant expansion and any capital maintenance thereto. In consideration for the debt service payments
made by the County, the County receives the exclusive right to convey up to 1 million gallons per day of
wastewater into the McAlpine Creek Waste Water Treatment Plant at cost. The County can increase its
allocation up to a maximum of three million gallons per day by the assumption of additional debt service
used to construct the McAlpine Creek WWTP, outfall lines and pump stations. The County has also
entered into an a five year lease with Lancaster County Water and Sewer District (LCWSD) to utilize
temporary 3 MGD (Millions of Gallons per Day) of excess allocated water capacity between Union and
LCWSD, as stated in our Joint Venture Agreement. Under this lease, the County will be able to supply
any anticipated demand in excess of the County’s Allocated Capacity of 18 MGD. Rents paid under all
operating leases totaled $1,279,650 for the year ended June 30, 2012.

Minimum future lease payments are as follows:

Year Ending Anson Lancaster
June 30 County CMUD County Other
2013 $164,154 $ 325,217 $ 220,092 $ 688,116
2014 - 325,217 220,092 683,189
2015 - 325,217 220,092 687,189
2016 - 325,217 220,092 97,500
2017 - 325,217 128,387 97,500
2018-2022 - 1,626,084 - 357,500
2023-2027 - 1,312,816 - -
2028-2032 - 598,805 - -
2033-2037 - 598,805 -
2038-2039 - 239,522 -

$164,154 $6,002,117 $1,008,755 $2,610,994

On July 17, 1997, Union County entered into a lease agreement for the premises known as Union
Village. This facility houses most of the offices of the Department of Social Services and the Health
Department. Payments made under this lease are included in the schedule of minimum lease
payments. This lease agreement expires on June 30, 2015, but can be extended for two successive
five-year periods. The premises include additional space, which is subleased to Piedmont Behavioral
Healthcare (PBH) under a sublease agreement entered into on October 5, 1998. This agreement is
coterminous with the July 17, 1997 lease agreement. The sub-lessee is required to extend the
sublease agreement if Union County elects to exercise the option to extend the term of the original
lease agreement. Amounts received under this agreement totaled $83,903 during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012. During the remaining term of the sublease agreement, rent paid by sub-lessee
shall be increased or decreased based on the rent paid as of the expiration of the preceding one-year
period in the same percentage as the percentage change in the cost of living index for the month of
June just prior to the preceding one-year term until the month of June just prior to the current term.
The cost of living index shall be measured by the Personal Consumption Expenditure (PCE) index as
published in The Wall Street Journal.

NOTE 16 - LONG - TERM OBLIGATIONS

A. General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Participation, Revenue Bonds’ Indebtedness, and
Derivatives
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The general obligation bonds, installment financing and certificates of participation (COPs) for school
facilities and various general government capital projects and items are serviced by the General Fund.
The general obligation bonds and revenue bonds issued to finance the construction of facilities or
purchase equipment utilized in the operations of the water and sewer systems are being retired by their
resources. Principal and interest requirements are appropriated when due for all debt. The general
obligation bonds are collateralized by the full faith, credit and taxing power of the County. The revenue
bonds are secured by the pledge of net revenues derived from the acquired or constructed assets of the
water and sewer system. The derivatives are interest swap agreements with the objective of protecting
Union County against the risk of interest rate changes in connection with variable rate debt and to effect
lower debt service costs on the County’s fixed rate debt. Any derivative that the County enters into must
first have the approval of the Local Government Commission (LGC) and the County Commissioners. The
COPs and Installment Financing are collateralized by the assets financed and are not secured by the
taxing power of the County. The COPs require the County to follow customary covenants including
providing insurance certificates, budget data and financial information on an annual basis. The other long-
term obligations, the North Carolina Clean Water Revolving Loans, are described further in Note 16. E.

1. Long-term obligations at June 30, 2012 are reflected in the following table. Bonds and installment
financings appearing in the table that have associated derivative products are denoted with a lower case
letter of the alphabet in parenthesis. A detailed description of each corresponding derivative appears after
the following tables.

Principal and
Unamortized
Principal Balances
Issue Due Interest Original Balance (See Note 16.A.3.)

Date Serially To Rate Issue June 30, 2012 June 30, 2012

1. General Obligation Bonds
2004 Refunding Bonds (School Facilities) June 01, 2004 June 01, 2016 3.75% - 4.125% $14,976,804 $ 3,953,123 $ 3,953,123
2004 Refunding Bonds (Sanitary Sewer) June 01, 2004 June 01, 2016  4.00% - 4.50% 3,303,196 871,877 871,877
2004 School Facility - Series A (b, g) Dec. 14,2004 March 01, 2029 Variable 48,265,000 40,325,407 40,325,407
2004 Law Enf. Facility - Series A (b, g) Dec. 14,2004 March 01, 2029 Variable 1,735,000 1,449,593 1,449,593
2004 Refunding Bonds - Series B (School Fac.) (b, g) Dec. 14,2004 March 01, 2020 Variable 21,630,000 15,970,000 15,970,000
2007 School Facility - Series A (f, g) Sept. 06, 2007 March 01, 2031 Variable 55,365,000 20,745,000 20,745,000
2007 School Facility - Series A Sept. 06, 2007 March 01, 2033 Variable 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
2007 School Facility - Series B (f, g) Sept. 06, 2007 March 01, 2031 Variable 33,220,000 12,465,000 12,465,000
2007 School Facility - Series B Sept. 06, 2007 March 01, 2033 Variable 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000
2007 School Facility - Series C (f, g) Sept. 06, 2007 March 01, 2031 Variable 22,145,000 8,295,000 8,295,000
2007 School Facility - Series C Sept. 06, 2007 March 01, 2033 Variable 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
2007 School Facility - Series D Sept. 06, 2007 March 01, 2029  4.25% - 5.00% 90,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000
2009 School Facility - Series A (c) March 10, 2009 March 01, 2029  3.00% - 5.00% 64,500,000 58,910,000 58,910,000
2009 Refunding Bonds (School Facility) - Series B (c) March 10, 2009 March 01, 2030  2.50% - 5.00% 72,000,000 61,715,000 61,715,000
2009 Refunding Bonds (School Facility) - Series C Aug. 13, 2009 March 01, 2020  2.25% - 4.50% 39,332,628 35,240,000 35,240,000
2010 Refunding Bonds - Series A (School Facility) July 08, 2010 March 01, 2022  3.00% - 5.00% 55,010,000 45,475,000 45,475,000
2012 Refunding Bonds (School Facility) May 01, 2012 March 01, 2024  2.00% - 5.00% 28,845,000 28,845,000 28,845,000

404,260,000 404,260,000

2. Installment Financing

2003 Multi-purpose COP's June 15, 2003 June 01, 2025 2.875% - 5.00% 43,760,000 3,790,000 3,790,000
2006 School COP's Nov. 09, 2006 June 01, 2032  4.00% - 5.00% 77,640,000 43,865,000 43,865,000
2009 Installment Financing (Communications) June 17, 2009 June 01, 2019 3.9026% 9,390,000 6,931,484 6,931,484
2011 Limited Obligation Bonds (c) December 01, 2011 June 01, 2020 2.2800% 12,390,000 12,290,000 12,290,000
2012 Limited Obligation Bonds May 01, 2012 December 01, 2024  1.00% - 5.00% 27,850,000 27,850,000 27,850,000
94,726,484 94,726,484
3. Rewenue Bonds
2003 Enterprise System - Series A (d) June 12, 2003 June 01, 2029  3.00% - 5.00% 33,130,000 950,000 950,000
2009 Enterprise System (e, g) Aug. 20, 2009 June 01, 2034 Variable 20,000,000 18,600,000 18,600,000
2011 Enterprise System (a, g) August 04, 2011  December 21, 2028 Variable 11,425,000 10,145,000 10,145,000
2011 Enterprise System - Series A (d) December 21, 2011 June 01, 2021 2.00% - 5.00% 22,960,000 22,960,000 22,960,000
52,655,000 52,655,000
4. Other Long-term Obligations (Note 16. E.)
1998 North Carolina Clean Water Rewolving Loan June 01, 1998 June 30, 2017 3.43% 4,673,933 1,168,483 1,168,483
2007 North Carolina Clean Water Rewolving Loan June 19, 2008 May 01, 2028 2.265% 15,000,000 12,000,000 12,000,000
13,168,483 13,168,483
Total General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Participation, Revenue Bonds and Other Long-term Obligation $ 564,809,967 $ 564,809,967

2. Detalls regarding recent debt refundings are as follows:

On August 4, 2011, the County issued variable rate Enterprise Systems Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011,
totaling $11,425,000 with a synthetically fixed interest rate of 3.923% (see Note 16. A. 3. (a)). The proceeds of the
bonds were used to refund and retire on August 4, 2011, $12,435,000 of the outstanding principal amount of the
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County’s variable rate Enterprise System Refunding Bonds, Series 2003B. As a result, the bonds described
above are considered to be defeased and the liability for the defeased bonds has been removed from the balance
sheet. The refunding reduced cash flow required for debt service on the revenue bonds by $138,867. The
refunding resulted in economic gains (the difference between the present value of the debt service payments on
the old and new debt) of $115,970. On June 30, the principal outstanding on the refunded bonds was zero and
there were no amounts held in escrow by an escrow agent.

On December 9, 2011, the County issued Limited Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2011, totaling $12,390,000 with
an interest rate of 2.28% (and partially associated with a fixed spread basis swap, see Note 16. A. 3. (c)) to partially
advance refund $11,370,000 of the outstanding principal amount of the County’s Certificates of Participation, Series
2003. The proceeds of the new bonds were used to purchase U.S. government securities (SLGS). Those
securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service
payments on the advance refunded Certificates of Participation, Series 2003. As a result, the certificates of
participation described above are considered to be defeased and the liability for the defeased portion of the
certificates of participation has been removed from the balance sheet. The advance refunding reduced cash flow
required for debt service on the debt by $771,182. The refunding resulted in economic gains (the difference between
the present value of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $702,782. On June 30, the principal
outstanding on the refunded certificates of participation was $11,370,000 and the amount held in escrow by an
escrow agent was $12,034,265.

On December 21, 2011, the County issued Enterprise System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A, totaling
$22,960,000 with an interest rate ranging from 2.00% to 5.00% to partially advance refund $24,665,000 of the
outstanding principal amount of the County’s Enterprise System Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A. The proceeds of the
new bonds were used to purchase U.S. government securities (SLGS). Those securities were deposited in an
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the advance refunded
Enterprise System Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A. As a result, the bonds described above are considered to be
defeased and the liability for the defeased portion of the bonds has been removed from the balance sheet. The
advance refunding reduced cash flow required for debt service on the revenue bonds by $3,343,791. The refunding
resulted in economic gains (the difference between the present value of the debt service payments on the old and
new debt) of $2,207,279. On June 30, the principal outstanding on the refunded bonds was $24,665,000 and the
amount held in escrow by an escrow agent was $25,748,939.

On May 1, 2012, the County issued General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, totaling $28,845,000 with an
interest rate ranging from 2.00% to 5.00% to partially advance refund $27,000,000 of the outstanding principal amount
of the County’s School General Obligation Bonds, Series 2007D. The proceeds of the new bonds were used to
purchase U.S. government bonds and notes, and Israel bonds and notes (with ratings from Moody’s of AAA).
Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service
payments on the advance refunded School General Obligation Bonds, Series 2007D. As a result, the bonds
described above are considered to be defeased and the liability for the defeased portion of the bonds has been
removed from the balance sheet. The advance refunding reduced cash flow required for debt service on the general
obligation bonds by $1,100,508. The refunding resulted in economic gains (the difference between the present value
of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $969,200. On June 30, the principal outstanding on the
refunded bonds was $27,000,000 and the amount held in escrow by an escrow agent was $32,177,495.

Also on May 1, 2012, the County issued Limited Obligation Refunding, Series 2012, totaling $27,850,000 with an
interest rate ranging from 1.00% to 5.00% to partially advance refund $9,475,000 of the outstanding principal amount
of the County’s Certificates of Participation, Series 2003 and to partially advance refund $18,235,000 of the
outstanding principal amount of the County’s County’s Certificates of Participation, Series 2006. The proceeds of the
new bonds were used to purchase U.S. government bonds, notes, securities (SLGS), and Egypt notes (with
ratings from Standard & Poor’s of AA+). Those securities were deposited in two irrevocable trusts with two
escrow agents to provide for all future debt service payments on the advance refunded Certificates of Participation,
Series 2003 and Certificates of Participation, Series 2006. As a result, the certificates of participation described above
are considered to be defeased and the liability for the defeased portion of the certificates of participation has been
removed from the balance sheet. The advance refunding reduced cash flow required for debt service on the debt by
$1,774,200. The refunding resulted in economic gains (the difference between the present value of the debt service
payments on the old and new debt) of $1,147,125. On June 30, the principal outstanding on the refunded debt was
$27,710,000 and the amount held in escrow by the escrow agent for the Certificates of Participation, Series 2003 was
$9,943,865 and by the escrow agent for the Certificates of Participation, Series 2006 was $21,379,329.
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3. Derivative Instruments outstanding at June 30, 2012, are reflected in the following summary table. Following the
summary table, each derivative’s objectives, terms, reference rates, relevant dates and risks are more fully described.

Governmental activities
Cash flow hedges (A):
Pay fixed-receive floating

Item Amortized Value due from /  Value due from /
Description Notional (to) counterparty  (to) counterparty
in Notes Value Counterparty Pay Receive June 30, 2011 June 30, 2012
(b) $14,436,250 Bank of America N.A. 3.435% > of 67% LIBOR or 63% LIBOR + 0.20% $  (1,592,298) $  (2,512,168)
(b) $14,436,250 The Bank of New York Mellon 3.437% > of 67% LIBOR or 63% LIBOR + 0.20% (1,467,750) (2,566,582)
(b) $28,872,500 Wells Fargo Bank N.A. 3.435% > of 67% LIBOR or 63% LIBOR + 0.20% (2,881,066) (5,175,705)
U] $ 7,496,614 The Bank of New York Mellon  3.673% 70% LIBOR (1,008,751) (2,130,523)
® $26,511,773 Wells Fargo Bank N.A. 3.673% 70% LIBOR (3,606,304) (7,742,055)
® $ 7,496,614 Wells Fargo Bank N.A. 3.673% 70% LIBOR (1,108,002) (2,189,186)

(11,664,170) (22,316,219)

Investment derivatives (B):
Pay floating-receive floating
() $57,990,000 Wells Fargo Bank N.A. SIFMA Swap Index 67% LIBOR + 0.532% 446,629 812,767

Business-type activities
Cash flow hedges (A):
Pay fixed-receive floating

(@) $10,145,000 The Bank of New York Mellon  3.923% 65% LIBOR + 1.14273% (720,189) (957,109)
@ $18,600,000 The Bank of New York Mellon ~ 3.820% 70% LIBOR (2,669,681) (5,038,497)
(3,389,870) (5,995,606)

Investment derivatives (B):
Pay floating-receive floating
d) $23,910,000 The Bank of New York Mellon SIFMA Swap Index 65% LIBOR + 0.4295% (123,051) (25,268)

(A) Cash flow hedges require County to pay fixed payer rate and receive % of LIBOR index
(B) Investment derivatives require County to pay SIFMA and receive % of LIBOR index

Derivative instrument “c” and “d” are pay-floating receive floating on fixed rate debt obligations. As such, the derivative
instruments do not qualify as hedging derivatives under GASB 53. Therefore, for accounting and financial reporting
purposes, these two derivative instruments are considered investment derivative instruments. All other derivative
instruments are considered hedging derivative instruments.

The fair value balances and notional amounts of derivative instruments outstanding at June 30, 2012, classified by
type and the changes in fair value of such derivative instruments as reported in the financial statements is as follows:

Changes in Fair Value Fair Value
since June 30, 2011 at June 30, 2012
Classification Amount Classification Amount Notional
Governmental activities
Cash flow hedges:
Pay fixed-receive floating (b) Deferred outflow $  (4,313,341) Debt $(10,254,455) $ 57,745,000
Pay fixed-receive floating (f) Deferred outflow (6,338,708) Debt (12,061,764) 41,505,001
Investment derivatives:
Pay floating-receive floating (c) Investment revenue 366,138 Investment 812,767 57,990,000
Total Governmental activities (10,285,910) (21,503,452) 157,240,001
Business-type activities
Cash flow hedges:
Pay fixed-receive floating (a) Deferred outflow (236,920) Debt (957,109) 10,145,000
Pay fixed-receive floating (e) Deferred outflow (2,368,816) Debt (5,038,497) 18,600,000
Investment derivatives:
Pay floating-receive floating (d) Investment revenue 97,783 Investment (25,268) 23,910,000
Total Business-type activities (2,507,953) (6,020,874) 52,655,000
Total interest rate swaps $ (12,793,864) $ (27,524,326) $209,895,001

As of June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2012, the County determined that the pay floating-receive floating interest rate
swaps listed as investment derivative instruments under governmental activities and business-type activities did not
meet the criteria for effectiveness. Accordingly, the accumulated changes in fair value of these swaps have been
recorded in investment derivative income/(loss) within the investment earnings, unrestricted category of the Statement

74



of Activities. As of June 30, 2012, these agreements had (i) a positive fair value of $812,767 for governmental
activities and (ii) a negative fair value of $25,268 for business type activities and these amounts are included in
the derivative liability category on the Statement of Net Assets respectively. These mark-to-market valuations
were established by market quotations obtained by the counterparties, representing estimates of the amounts that
would be paid or received for replacement transactions, excluding accrued interest from the last payment date.
See details in Note 16. A. 3. (c) and (d).

As of June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2012, the County determined that the pay fixed-receive floating interest rate swaps
listed as cash flow hedge derivative instruments under governmental activities and business-type activities did meet
the criteria for effectiveness. Accordingly, the accumulated changes in fair value of these swaps have been recorded
in deferred outflows on derivative instruments (asset) and the derivative liability categories on the Statement of Net
Assets. As of June 30, 2012 the agreements had negative fair values of $10,254,455, $12,061,764, $957,109,
and $5,038,497. These amounts are included in the deferred outflows on derivative instruments (asset) and
derivative liability categories on the Statement of Net Assets for governmental activities as $22,316,219 and
business type activities as $5,995,606 respectively. These mark-to-market valuations were established by market
quotations obtained by the counterparties, representing estimates of the amounts that would be paid or received
for replacement transactions, excluding accrued interest from the last payment date. See details in Note 16. A. 3.
(a), (b), (e) and (f).

(a) Derivative Disclosure - Pay-Fixed, Receive-Variable Interest Rate Swap Agreement dated May 14, 2003
(subsequently amended and restated on August 2, 2011) and effective June 12, 2003 — Assumptions

Objective of the interest rate swap. As a means to lower the County’s borrowing costs and increase its
savings, when compared to fixed-rate refunding bonds at the time of issuance in June 2003, the County
entered into an interest rate swap in connection with its $20,935,000 Variable Rate Enterprise Systems
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003B. The intention of the swap agreement was to effectively
change the County’s interest rate on the Bonds to a synthetic fixed rate of 2.995%, excluding liquidity,
remarketing, and other fees associated with the Bonds and, subsequently, the New Bonds.

On August 4, 2011, the County issued Variable Rate Enterprise Systems Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 2011, which refunded the Series 2003B Bonds. As such, the interest rate swap is now
associated with the $11,425,000 Variable Rate Enterprise Systems Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
2011 (the “New Bonds”).

Terms. Under the terms of a swap agreement dated May 14, 2003 and effective June 12, 2003, Citibank,
N.A. New York (“Citibank”) pays the County 61.5% of USD-LIBOR-BBA plus a fixed spread of 0.36%
semi-annually on the notional amount of $20,935,000. On a semiannual basis, the County pays Citibank
interest at the fixed rate of 2.995%. The notional value of the swap and the principal amount of the
associated debt decline in unison over the term of the swap agreement and Bonds. The notional amount
of the swap reduces annually; the reductions begin on June 1, 2004, and end on June 1, 2021. The
agreement matures June 1, 2021.

Effective August 4, 2011, the Citibank and County amended and restated the original interest rate swap
agreement by reducing the notional amount outstanding from $12,435,000 to $11,425,000, representing
the par value of the New Bonds. Concurrently with the partial swap termination, the County priced its
$11,425,000 Variable Rate Enterprise Systems Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2011. The notional
value of the swap and the principal amount of the New Bonds decline in unison over the term of the
swap agreement and the New Bonds. In connection with the amended and restated swap agreements
dated August 2, 2011, the County incurred a partial termination payment in the amount of $98,500. In
lieu of payment of the full partial termination amount, the County agreed to pay $85,000 to the
counterparty and further amend the swap by increasing the fixed rate on the swap from 2.995% to
3.923% for the remaining term of the swap and amending the variable rate the County receives from
61.5% of USD-LIBOR-BBA plus a fixed spread of 0.36% to 65% of USD-LIBOR-BBA plus a fixed spread
of 1.14273% (the variable rate and spread on the New Bonds) effective August 4, 2011.

On August 22, 2011, the swap was transferred, “novated”, from Citibank to The Bank of New York
Mellon (“BNY Mellon”) under the terms of the Novation Confirmation dated August 22, 2011. The
purpose of the novation was to increase the credit quality of the County’s counterparty to the swap. The
terms of the swap remained consistent to the County. The transferor, Citibank, paid consideration to the
transferee, BNY Mellon, in consideration of the trade novation as more fully described in the Novation
Confirmation.
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As of June 30, 2012, rates were as follows:

Terms Rates
Interest rate swap:
Fixed payment to BNY Mellon Fixed 3.923%
Variable payment from BNY Mellon 65.0% LIBOR + 1.14273% (1.298%)
Net interest rate swap payments 2.625%
Variable rate bond coupon payments Bond Rate 1.298%
Synthetic interest rate on Bonds 3.923%

Fair Value. As of June 30, 2012, the agreement had a negative fair value of $957,109. This mark-to-
market valuation was established by market quotations obtained by the counterparty, representing
estimates of the amounts that would be paid or received for replacement transactions, excluding accrued
interest from the last payment date.

Credit Risk. As of June 30, 2012, the County was not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a
negative fair value. However, should interest rates change and the fair value of the swap agreements
become positive, the County would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivative’s fair value.
Under those circumstances, should BNY Mellon fail to perform according to the terms of the swap
agreement, the County would face a possible loss approximately equivalent to the swap agreement’s
positive fair value, if any, at the time of any failure to perform. BNY Mellon, rated “Aal” by Moody’s
Investor’'s Service, “AA-" by Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services, and “AA-" by Fitch Ratings as of
June 30, 2012, will collateralize any market value positive to the County over a predetermined threshold
that varies depending on BNY Mellon’s ratings. At BNY Mellon’s current ratings, such threshold is
Infinity.

Basis Risk. The County of Union receives 65.0% of USD-LIBOR-BBA plus a fixed spread of 1.14273%
from BNY Mellon and 65% of USD-LIBOR-BBA plus a fixed spread of 1.14273% to bondholders. The
County of Union is not exposed to basis risk.

Termination Risk. The derivative contract uses the International Swap Dealers Association Master
Agreement, which includes standard termination events, including but not limited to failure to pay,
bankruptcy, and downgrade below the “BBB” credit rating category. Termination could result in the
County of Union being required to make an unanticipated termination payment.

Rollover Risk. The County is not exposed to rollover risk on the derivative contract because the maturity
of the derivative is coterminous with the maturity of the associated debt.

Swap payments and associated debt: Using rates as of June 30, 2012, debt service requirements of the
variable rate debt and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same for the term
of the bonds, were as follows. As rates vary, variable rate bond interest payments and net swap
payments will vary.

Fiscal Year Bonds Interest Rate
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Sw aps, Net * Total

2013 $ 1,195,000 $ 131,674 $ 266,315 $ 1,592,989
2014 1,180,000 116,164 234,945 1,531,109
2015 1,160,000 100,848 203,969 1,464,817
2016 1,195,000 85,792 173,518 1,454,310
2017 1,240,000 70,282 142,148 1,452,430

2018 - 2021 4,175,000 114,671 231,926 4,521,597
Total $ 10,145,000 $ 619,431 $ 1,252,821 $ 12,017,252

* Computed using (3.923% - 1.298%) x ($10,145,000 — annual reduction)

Derivative Disclosure - Multiple Pay-Fixed, Receive-Variable Interest Rate Swap Agreements effective
December 14, 2004 (subsequently amended and restated on December 19, 2011) — Assumptions

Objective of the interest rate swap. As a means to lower the County’s borrowing costs when compared
to fixed-rate bonds at the time of issuance in December 2004 and as a means of achieving refunding
savings, the County entered into multiple interest rate swaps in connection with its $50,000,000 Variable
Rate General Obligation Bonds, Series 2004A and $21,630,000 Variable Rate General Obligation
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Refunding Bonds, Series 2004B (together, the “2004 Bonds”). The intention of the swap agreements
was to effectively change the County’s interest rate on the 2004 Bonds to a synthetic fixed rate of
3.425%, excluding liquidity, remarketing, and other fees associated with the Bonds.

Terms. Under the terms of the swap agreements effective December 14, 2004, the County pays Wells
Fargo Bank N.A., successor bank to the original counterparty Wachovia Bank, N.A. (50% of the total
notional amount), Citibank, N.A. (25% of the total notional amount) and Bank of America N.A. (25% of
the total notional amount) (collectively, the “Counterparties”) fixed payments of 3.425% and receives the
following floating amounts:

From the agreements’ effective dates and ending before July 1, 2009, the lesser of Index | or Index II.
From July 1, 2009 to the agreements’ termination dates, Index Il

Index I: The actual weekly remarketed 7 Day rates on the 2004 Bonds
Index Il: The greater amount of 67% of USD-LIBOR-BBA or 63% of USD-LIBOR-BBA
plus .20% (together the "Libor Index”)

The notional value of the swap agreements and the principal amount of the associated debt decline in
unison over the term of the swap agreements and 2004 Bonds. The swap agreements are subject to
yield adjustments in certain circumstances described above. Such yield adjustments may increase the
County’s interest cost. On a semiannual basis, the County pays the Counterparties interest at the fixed
rate of 3.425%. The notional amount of the swaps reduces annually; the reductions begin on March 1,
2006, and end on March 1, 2029. The agreements mature March 1, 2029.

On August 22, 2011, the swap originally entered into with Citibank was transferred, “novated”, from
Citibank to The Bank of New York Mellon (“BNY Mellon”) under the terms of the Novation Confirmation
dated August 22, 2011. The purpose of the novation was to increase the credit quality of the County’s
counterparty to the swap. The terms of the swap remained consistent to the County. The transferor,
Citibank, paid consideration to the transferee, BNY Mellon, in consideration of the trade novation as
more fully described in the Novation Confirmation.

Effective December 15, 2011, the Counterparties and the County amended and restated the original
interest rate swap agreements by changing the payment frequency on the swaps from a semiannual
basis to the monthly basis. In connection with the amended and restated swap agreements, the fixed
rate the County agreed to pay was amended to 3.435% for the Wells Fargo and Bank of America swaps,
and to 3.437% for the BNY Mellon swap, all effective December 15, 2011.

As of June 30, 2012, rates were as follows:

Terms Rates
Interest rate swap:
Fixed payment to Counterparties * Fixed * 3.436%
Variable payment from Counterparties See above (0.355%)
Net interest rate swap payments 3.081%
Variable rate bond coupon payments Bond Rate 0.150%
Synthetic interest rate on Bonds 3.231%
Remarketing, Liquidity, Other 0.575%
Total Cost 3.806%

* Blended fixed rate as of December 15, 2011

Fair Value. As of June 30, 2012, the swap agreements had a negative fair value of $10,254,455. This
mark-to-market valuation was established by market quotations obtained by the Counterparties,
representing estimates of the amounts that would be paid or received for replacement transactions,
excluding accrued interest from the last payment date.

Credit Risk. As of June 30, 2012, the County was not exposed to credit risk because the swaps had a
negative fair value. However, should interest rates change and the fair value of the swap agreements
become positive, the County would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivative’s fair value.
Under those circumstances, should the Counterparties fail to perform according to the terms of the swap
agreements, the County would face a possible loss approximately equivalent to the swap agreements’
positive fair value, if any, at the time of any failure to perform. The swap Counterparties as of June 30,
2012 are rated as follows:
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Standard &

Counterparty Moody’s Poor's Fitch
Bank of America N.A. A3 A A
BNY Mellon Aal AA- AA-
Wells Fargo Bank N.A. Aa3 AA- AA-

To mitigate the potential for credit risk, if the Counterparties’ credit quality falls below certain thresholds
(Baal/BBB+/BBB+ in respect to Bank of America, N.A. and A3/A-/A- in respect to BNY Mellon and Wells
Fargo, N.A.), the Counterparties are obligated to post collateral consisting of U.S. government securities
for the fair value of the swap agreements. Collateral would be posted with a third party custodian.

Basis Risk. The County receives variable payments from the Counterparties based on the floating rates
identified under Terms. The County pays the Bond Rate to its bondholders set by the remarketing
agents. The County is exposed to basis risk if its 2004 Bonds begin to trade at a yield which exceeds
Index Il identified under Terms. At June 30, 2012, the rate on the County’s 2004 Bonds was lower than
the floating rate received from the Counterparties resulting in a reduction in debt service below the fixed
rate on the swap agreements. When the relationship of the 2004 Bonds trade higher than the floating
rate received from the Counterparties, the County will experience an increase in debt service above the
fixed rate on the swap agreements.

Termination Risk. The derivative contract uses the International Swap Dealers Association Master
Agreement, which includes standard termination events, including but not limited to failure to pay,
bankruptcy, and downgrade below the “BBB” credit rating category. The County or the Counterparties
may terminate the swaps if the other party fails to perform under the terms of the contract. An additional
termination event occurs if the County’s or the Counterparties’ ratings (in respect to BNY Mellon and
Bank of America, N.A.) fall below Baa3/BBB-/BBB-. If at the time of termination the swap agreements
have a negative fair value, the County would be liable to the Counterparties for a payment equal to the
swap agreements’ fair value.

Rollover Risk. The County is not exposed to rollover risk on the derivative contract because the maturity
of the derivative is coterminous with the maturity of the associated debt.

Swap payments and associated debt: Using rates as of June 30, 2012, debt service requirements of the
variable rate debt and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same for the term
of the 2004 Bonds, were as follows. As rates vary, variable rate bond interest payments and net swap
payments will vary.

Fiscal Year Bonds Interest Rate Remarketing
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Sw aps, Net * Liquidity, Other Total

2013 $ 3,335,000 $ 86,618 $ 1,779,119 $ 332,034 $ 5,532,771
2014 3,310,000 81,615 1,676,368 312,858 5,380,841
2015 3,280,000 76,650 1,574,387 293,825 5,224,862
2016 3,245,000 71,730 1,473,331 274,965 5,065,026
2017 3,215,000 66,863 1,373,352 256,306 4,911,521

2018 - 2022 14,415,000 264,916 5,441,340 1,015,508 21,136,764

2023 - 2027 17,545,000 158,386 3,253,220 607,143 21,563,749

2028 - 2029 9,400,000 21,150 434,420 81,075 9,936,645
Total $ 57,745,000 $ 827,928 $ 17,005,537 $ 3,173,713 $ 78,752,178

* Computed using (3.4355% - 0.355%) x ($57,745,000 — annual reduction)

Derivative Disclosure — Pay-Floating, Receive-Floating Interest Rate Fixed Spread Basis Swap Agreement
dated and effective June 13, 2005 — Assumptions

Objective of the interest rate swap. As a means to lower the County’s borrowing costs and increase its
savings, when compared to the issuance of traditional fixed-rate or synthetic fixed rate refunding bonds
in June 2005, the County entered into a fixed spread basis swap agreement for the purpose of
generating savings on $38,000,000 in callable maturities of its General Obligation Bonds, Series 2001
and $22,740,000 in callable maturities of its Certificates of Participation, Series 2003 (collectively “the
Bonds”). The intention of the fixed spread basis swap agreement was to effectively lower the County’s
interest rate on the Bonds and, subsequently, the New Bonds.
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In 2009, the County issued General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009A and General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2009B, the latter of which refunded the Series 2001 General Obligation Bonds. In 2011,
the County issued Limited Obligation Bonds, Series 2011 which refunded the Certificates of
Participation, Series 2003. As such, the fixed spread basis swap is now associated with $715,000 of the
Limited Obligation Bonds, Series 2011, $29,505,000 of the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series
2009B, and $30,520,000 of the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009A Bonds (collectively, the “New
Bonds”).

Terms. Under the terms of a fixed spread basis swap agreement dated and effective June 13, 2005,
Wells Fargo Bank N.A., successor bank to the original counterparty Wachovia Bank, N.A., pays the
County 67% of USD-LIBOR-BBA plus a fixed spread of 0.532% semi-annually on the notional amount of
$60,740,000. The County pays Wells Fargo the USD-BMA Municipal Swap Index semi-annually on the
same notional amount. The notional value of the fixed spread basis swap and the principal amount of the
associated debt decline in unison over the term of the fixed spread basis swap agreement and Bonds.
The notional amount of the swap reduces annually; the reductions begin on March 1, 2012, and end on
March 1, 2025. The agreement matures March 1, 2025.

As of June 30, 2012, rates were as follows:

Terms Rates
Average coupon on the Bonds Fixed 4.247%
Receive Floating Rate 67% LIBOR + 0.532% (0.696%)
Pay Floating Rate BMA Swap Index 0.180%
Net interest rate on Bonds 3.731%

Fair Value. As of June 30, 2012, the agreement had a positive fair value of $812,767. This mark-to-
market valuation was established by market quotations obtained by the counterparty, representing
estimates of the amounts that would be paid or received for replacement transactions, excluding accrued
interest from the last payment date.

Credit Risk. As of June 30, 2012, the County was exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivative’'s
fair value because the swap had a positive fair value. Should Wells Fargo fail to perform according to
the terms of the swap agreement, the County would face a possible loss approximately equivalent to the
swap agreement’s positive fair value, if any, at the time of any failure to perform. As of June 30, 2012,
Wells Fargo is rated “Aa3” by Moody's Investor's Service, “AA-" by Standard and Poor's Ratings
Services, and “AA-" by Fitch Ratings. To mitigate the potential for credit risk, if Wells Fargo’s credit
quality falls below A3/A-/A-, Wells Fargo is obligated to post collateral consisting of U.S. government
securities for the fair value of the interest rate swap agreement. Collateral would be posted with a third
party custodian.

Basis Risk. The County receives from Wells Fargo 67% LIBOR plus a fixed spread of 0.532% and pays
to Wells Fargo the BMA Municipal Swap Index. The County is exposed to basis risk when BMA begins
to trade at a yield which exceeds 67% LIBOR plus 0.532%. In the event of such an occurrence, the
County will experience an increase in debt service above the fixed coupon rate on the Bonds.

Termination Risk. The derivative contract uses the International Swap Dealers Association Master
Agreement, which includes standard termination events, including but not limited to failure to pay,
bankruptcy, and downgrade below the “BBB” credit rating category. Termination could result in the
County being required to make an unanticipated termination payment.

Rollover Risk. The County is not exposed to rollover risk on the derivative contract because the maturity
of the derivative is coterminous with the maturity of the associated debt.

Swap payments and associated debt: Using rates as of June 30, 2012, debt service requirements of the
Bonds and net interest rate swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same for the
term of the bonds, are reflected in the following table. As net interest rate swap payments vary, the
County’s fixed bond interest payments and net interest rate swap payments will vary.
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Fiscal Year Bonds Interest Rate

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Sw aps, Net * Total
2013 $ 2,750,000 $ 2,469,652 $ (299,413) $ 4,920,239
2014 6,195,000 2,359,652 (285,214) 8,269,438
2015 6,195,000 2,146,102 (253,228) 8,087,874
2016 6,645,000 1,870,652 (221,242) 8,294,410
2017 6,995,000 1,538,402 (186,933) 8,346,469

2018 - 2022 23,525,000 3,609,858 (432,158) 26,702,700
2023 - 2025 5,685,000 454,800 (58,705) 6,081,095
Total $ 57,990,000 $ 14,449,118 $ (1,736,893) $ 70,702,225

* Computed using (0.696% - 0.18%) x ($57,990,000 — annual reduction)

Derivative Disclosure — Pay-Floating, Receive-Floating Interest Rate Fixed Spread Basis Swap Agreement
dated October 11, 2005 (subsequently amended and restated on December 13, 2011) and effective October
13, 2005 — Assumptions

Objective of the interest rate swap. As a means to lower the County’s borrowing costs and increase its
savings, when compared to the issuance of traditional fixed-rate or synthetic fixed rate refunding bonds,
the County entered into a fixed spread basis swap agreement for the purpose of generating savings on a
portion of its outstanding Water and Sewer Enterprise System Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A. The
intention of the fixed spread basis swap agreement was to effectively lower the County’s interest rate on
the Bonds and, subsequently, the New Bonds.

In 2011, the County issued Union County Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A which refunded the
Water and Sewer Enterprise System Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A. As such, the fixed spread basis
swap is now associated with the Union County Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A (the “New
Bonds”).

Terms. Under the terms of a fixed spread basis swap agreement effective October 13, 2005, Citibank,
N.A. New York (“Citibank”) pays the County 70% of USD-LIBOR-BBA plus a fixed spread of 0.40%
semi-annually on the notional amount of $24,655,000. Union County pays Citibank the USD-BMA
Municipal Swap Index semi-annually on the same notional amount. The notional value of the fixed
spread basis swap and the principal amount of the associated debt decline in unison over the term of the
fixed spread basis swap agreement and Bonds. The notional amount of the swap reduces annually; the
reductions begin on June 1, 2014, and end on June 1, 2029. The agreement matures June 1, 2029.

On August 22, 2011, the swap originally entered into with Citibank was transferred, “novated”, from
Citibank to The Bank of New York Mellon (“BNY Mellon”) under the terms of the Novation Confirmation
dated August 22, 2011. The purpose of the novation was to increase the credit quality of the County’s
counterparty to the swap. The terms of the swap remained consistent to the County. The transferor,
Citibank, paid consideration to the transferee, BNY Mellon, in consideration of the trade novation as
more fully described in the Novation Confirmation.

Effective December 1, 2011, the Counterparty and the County amended and restated the original
interest rate swap agreement by i) modifying the percentage of Libor paid by the BNY Mellon from 70%
Libor to 65% Libor, ii) modifying the spread paid by BNY Mellon from 0.40% to 0.4295%, iii) amending
the amortization schedule to match the scheduled principal payments on the New Bonds and, iv)
amending the maturity date to December 1, 2028.

As of June 30, 2012, rates were as follows:

Terms Rates
Average coupon on the Bonds Fixed 3.835%
Receive Floating Rate 65% LIBOR + 0.4295% (0.585%)
Pay Floating Rate SIFMA Swap Index 0.180%
Net interest rate on Bonds .430%

Fair Value. As of June 30, 2012, the agreement had a negative fair value of $25,268. This mark-to-
market valuation was established by market quotations obtained by the counterparty, representing

80



()

estimates of the amounts that would be paid or received for replacement transactions, excluding accrued
interest from the last payment date.

Credit Risk. As of June 30, 2012, the County was not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a
negative fair value. However, should interest rates change and the fair value of the swap agreements
become positive, the County would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivative’s fair value.
Under those circumstances, should BNY Mellon fail to perform according to the terms of the swap
agreement, the County would face a possible loss approximately equivalent to the swap agreement’s
positive fair value, if any, at the time of any failure to perform. BNY Mellon, rated “Aal” by Moody’s
Investor's Service, “AA-" by Standard and Poor’'s Ratings Services, and “AA-" by Fitch Ratings as of
June 30, 2012, will collateralize any market value positive to the County over a predetermined threshold
that varies depending on BNY Mellon’s ratings. At BNY Mellon’s current ratings, such threshold is
Infinity.

Basis Risk. The County receives from BNY Mellon 65% of USD-LIBOR-BBA plus a fixed spread of
0.295% and pays to BNY Mellon the SIMFA Municipal Swap Index. The County is exposed to basis risk
when SIFBA begins to trade at a yield which exceeds 65% of USD-LIBOR-BBA plus 0.295%. In the
event of such an occurrence, the County will experience an increase in debt service above the fixed
coupon rate on the Bonds.

Termination Risk. The derivative contract uses the International Swap Dealers Association Master
Agreement, which includes standard termination events, including but not limited to failure to pay,
bankruptcy, and downgrade below the “BBB” credit rating category. Termination could result in the
County being required to make an unanticipated termination payment.

Rollover Risk. The County is not exposed to rollover risk on the derivative contract because the maturity
of the derivative is coterminous with the maturity of the associated debt.

Swap payments and associated debt: Using rates as of June 30, 2012, debt service requirements of the
Bonds and net interest rate swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same for the
term of the bonds, are reflected in the following table. As net interest rate swap payments vary, the
County’s fixed bond interest payments and net interest rate swap payments will vary.

Fiscal Year Bonds Interest Rate
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Sw aps, Net * Total

2013 $ 990,000 $ 902,338 $ (94,758) $ 1,797,580
2014 1,060,000 866,488 (90,610) 1,835,878
2015 1,100,000 823,288 (86,239) 1,837,049
2016 1,150,000 778,288 (81,686) 1,846,601
2017 1,200,000 731,288 (76,931) 1,854,356

2018 - 2022 6,630,000 3,004,388 (307,441) 9,326,946

2023 - 2027 8,070,000 1,559,481 (159,346) 9,470,136

2028 - 2029 3,710,000 144,863 (15,176) 3,839,687
Total $ 23,910,000 $ 8,810,419 $ (912,186) $ 31,808,233

* Computed using (0.585% - 0.18%) x ($23,910,000 — annual reduction)

Derivative Disclosure — Pay-Fixed, Receive-Floating Interest Rate Forward Swap Agreement dated October
11, 2005 (subsequently amended and restated on May 3, 2007 and June 26, 2008) and effective June 15,
2009 — Assumptions

Objective of the interest rate swap. In order to protect against the potential of higher future interest rates
in connection with its issuance of Water and Sewer Enterprise System Variable Rate Revenue Bonds,
Series 2009 (“Series 2009 Bonds”), the County entered into a pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate
swap on October 11, 2005 with an effective date of June 15, 2009. The forward swap agreement would
effectively change the County’s interest rate on the Series 2009 Bonds to a synthetic fixed rate of 3.82%,
excluding liquidity, remarketing, and other fees associated with the Series 2009 Bonds. The Series 2009
Bonds were issued August 20, 2009.

Terms. Under the terms of the amended and restated forward swap agreement effective June 15, 2009,
Citibank, N.A. New York (“Citibank”) will pay the County 70% of USD-LIBOR-BBA semi-annually on the
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notional amount of $20,000,000. On a semi-annual basis, the County will pay Citibank an amount at a
fixed rate of 3.82% on the same notional amount. The notional amount declines with the amortization of
the corresponding Water and Sewer Enterprise System Variable Rate Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 over
a period beginning June 1, 2010 and ending June 1, 2034. The agreement matures June 1, 2034.

On August 22, 2011, the swap originally entered into with Citibank was transferred, “novated”, from
Citibank to The Bank of New York Mellon (“BNY Mellon”) under the terms of the Novation Confirmation
dated August 22, 2011. The purpose of the novation was to increase the credit quality of the County’s
counterparty to the swap. The terms of the swap remained consistent to the County. The transferor,
Citibank, paid consideration to the transferee, BNY Mellon, in consideration of the trade novation as
more fully described in the Novation Confirmation.

As of June 30, 2012, rates were as follows:

Terms Rates
Interest rate swap:
Fixed payment to BNY Mellon Fixed 3.820%
Variable payment from BNY Mellon 70% LIBOR (0.167%)
Net interest rate swap payments 3.653%
Variable rate bond coupon payments Bond Rate 0.230%
Synthetic interest rate on Bonds 3.883%
Remarketing, Liquidity, Other 1.310%
Total Cost 5.193%

Fair Value. As of June 30, 2012, the agreement had a negative fair value of $5,038,497. This mark-to-
market valuation was established by market quotations obtained by the counterparty, representing
estimates of the amounts that would be paid or received for replacement transactions, excluding accrued
interest from the last payment date.

Credit Risk. As of June 30, 2012, the County was not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a
negative fair value. However, should interest rates change and the fair value of the swap agreement
become positive, the County would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivative’s fair value.
Under those circumstances, should the counterparty fail to perform according to the terms of the swap
agreement, the County would face a possible loss approximately equivalent to the swap agreement’s
positive fair value, if any, at the time of any failure to perform. BNY Mellon, rated “Aal” by Moody’s
Investor's Service, “AA-" by Standard and Poor’'s Ratings Services, and “AA-" by Fitch Ratings as of
June 30, 2012, will collateralize any market value positive to the County of Union over a predetermined
threshold that varies depending on BNY Mellon’s ratings. At BNY Mellon’s current ratings, such
threshold is Infinity.

Basis Risk. The County receives from BNY Mellon 70% of USD-LIBOR-BBA and pays the Bond Rate to
its bondholders set by the remarketing agent. The County is exposed to basis risk when its Series 2009
Bonds begin to trade at a yield which exceeds 70% of USD-LIBOR-BBA. In the event of such an
occurrence, the County will experience an increase in debt service above the fixed rate on the swap.

Termination Risk. The derivative contract uses the International Swap Dealers Association Master
Agreement, which includes standard termination events, including but not limited to failure to pay,
bankruptcy, and downgrade below the “BBB” credit rating category. Termination could result in the
County being required to make an unanticipated termination payment.

Rollover Risk. The County is not exposed to rollover risk on the derivative contract because the maturity
of the derivative is coterminous with the maturity of the associated debt.

Swap payments and associated debt: Using rates as of June 30, 2012, debt service requirements of the
variable rate debt and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same for the term
of the bonds, are reflected in the following table. As rates vary, variable rate bond interest payments and
net swap payments will vary.
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Fiscal Year Bonds Interest Rate  Remarketing

=nding June 30 Principal Interest Swaps, Net *  Liquidity, Other Total
2013 $ 515,000 $ 42,780 $ 679,435 $ 243,660 $ 1,480,875
2014 540,000 41,596 660,622 236,914 1,479,131
2015 560,000 40,354 640,897 229,840 1,471,090
2016 585,000 39,066 620,441 222,504 1,467,010
2017 615,000 37,720 599,072 214,840 1,466,632
2018 - 2022 3,500,000 166,118 2,638,290 946,148 7,250,555
2023 - 2027 4,355,000 122,142 1,939,858 695,676 7,112,675
2028 - 2032 5,415,000 67,379 1,070,110 383,765 6,936,253
2033 - 2034 2,515,000 8,740 138,809 49,780 2,712,329
Total $ 18,600,000 $ 565,892 $ 8,987,534 $ 3,223,124 $ 31,376,550

* Computed using (3.82% - 0.167%) x ($18,600,000 — annual reduction)

Derivative Disclosure — Multiple Pay-Fixed, Receive-Floating Interest Rate Swap Agreements dated
December 12, 2005 (subsequently amended and restated effective June 9, 2010) and effective September
6, 2007.

Objective of the interest rate swap. In order to protect against the potential of higher future interest rates
in connection with its issuance of Variable Rate General Obligation Bonds, Series 2007 (2007 Series
Bonds”), the County entered into multiple pay-fixed, receive-variable interest rate swaps on December
12, 2005, with an effective date of September 6, 2007. The forward swap agreements would effectively
change the County’s interest rate on the 2007 Series Bonds to a synthetic fixed rate of 3.673%,
excluding liquidity, remarketing, and other fees associated with the 2007 Series Bonds. The Series 2007
Bonds were issued September 6, 2007.

Terms. Under the terms of the swap agreements effective September 6, 2007, the County pays semi-
annually Wells Fargo Bank N.A. (“Wells Fargo”) successor bank to the original counterparty Wachovia
Bank, N.A., Citibank, N.A. New York (“Citibank”) and UBS AG (“UBS”) (collectively, the “Counterparties”)
fixed payments of 3.673% and receives semi-annually from the Counterparties 70% of USD-LIBOR-
BBA. The aggregate notional amount of $110,730,000 (with Wells Fargo receiving approximately 64%
of the total notional amount and Citibank and UBS each receiving 18%) declines with the amortization of
the corresponding Variable Rate General Obligation Bonds, Series 2007 over a period beginning March
1, 2008 and ending March 1, 2031. The agreement matures March 1, 2031.

On June 9, 2010, the Counterparties and County amended and restated the original interest rate swap
agreements by reducing pro-rata among the Counterparties the aggregate notional amount outstanding
from $96,885,003 to $41,505,001, representing a decrease in the amount of $55,380,002. Concurrently
with the partial swap terminations, the County priced its $55,010,000 General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, Series 2010A fixed rate bonds for settlement July 8, 2010. The primary purpose of the Series
2010A Refunding Bonds and partial termination of the swap agreements was to reduce the County’s
variable rate exposure relating to liquidity and remarketing risk in connection with the 2007 Series
Bonds. In connection with the amended and restated swap agreements dated June 9, 2010, the County
incurred a partial termination payment in the aggregate amount of $6,065,000 of which $520,853
represented accrued interest from the last payment date to June 8, 2010. The termination payment is
being financed through the issuance of the Series 2010A Refunding Bonds and was paid to the
Counterparties on July 8, 2010.

On August 22, 2011, the swap originally entered into with Citibank was transferred, “novated”, from
Citibank to The Bank of New York Mellon (“BNY Mellon”) under the terms of the Novation Confirmation
dated August 22, 2011. The purpose of the novation was to increase the credit quality of the County’s
counterparty to the swap. The terms of the swap remained consistent to the County. The transferor,
Citibank, paid consideration to the transferee, BNY Mellon, in consideration of the trade novation as
more fully described in the Novation Confirmation.

On February 8, 2012, the swap originally entered into with UBS was transferred, “novated”, from UBS to

Wells Fargo under the terms of the Novation Confirmation dated February 8, 2012. The purpose of the
novation was to increase the credit quality of the County’s counterparty to the swap. The terms of the
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swap remained consistent to the County. The transferor, UBS, paid consideration to the County in
consideration of the trade novation as more fully described in the Novation Confirmation.

As of June 30, 2012, rates were as follows:

Terms Rates

Interest rate swap:
Fixed payment to Counterparties Fixed 3.673%
Variable payment from Counterparties 70% LIBOR (0.172%)
Net interest rate swap payments 3.501%
Variable rate bond coupon payments Bond Rate* 0.142%
Synthetic interest rate on Bonds 3.643%
Remarketing, Liquidity, Other * 0.679%
Total Cost 4.322%

*Weighted Average

Fair Value. As of June 30, 2012, the amended and restated agreements had a negative fair value of
$12,061,764. This mark-to-market valuation was established by market quotations obtained by the
Counterparties, representing estimates of the amounts that would be paid or received for replacement
transactions, excluding accrued interest from the last payment date.

Credit Risk. As of June 30, 2012, the County was not exposed to credit risk because the swap
agreements had a negative fair value. However, should interest rates change and the fair value of the
swap agreements become positive, the County would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the
derivatives’ fair value. Under those circumstances, should the Counterparties fail to perform according to
the terms of the swap agreements, the County could face a possible loss approximately equivalent to the
swap agreements’ positive fair value, if any, at the time of any failure to perform.

The swap Counterparties as of June 30, 2012 are rated as follows:

Standard &
Counterparty Moody’s Poor’s Fitch
Wells Fargo Aa3 AA- AA-
BNY Mellon Aal AA- AA-

To mitigate the potential for credit risk, if the Counterparties’ credit quality falls below A3/A-/A-, the
Counterparties are obligated to post collateral consisting of U.S. government securities for the fair value
of the swap agreements. Collateral would be posted with a third party custodian.

Basis Risk. The County receives from the Counterparties 70% of USD-LIBOR-BBA and pays the bond
rate to its bondholders set by the remarketing agent. The County is exposed to basis risk when its Series
2007 Bonds begin to trade at a yield which exceeds 70% of USD-LIBOR-BBA. Should the relationship of
the 2007 Series Bonds trade higher than 70% of USD-LIBOR-BBA, the County will experience an
increase in debt service above the fixed rate on the forward swap agreements.

Termination Risk. The derivative contract uses the International Swap Dealers Association Master
Agreement, which includes standard termination events, including but not limited to failure to pay,
bankruptcy, and downgrade below the “BBB” credit rating category. Termination could result in the
County being required to make an unanticipated termination payment. Any amount payable by the
County to Wells Fargo on termination of the transaction before the termination date may be made in four
equal annual installments.

Rollover Risk. The County is not exposed to rollover risk on the derivative contract because the maturity
of the derivative is coterminous with the maturity of the associated debt.

Swap payments and associated debt: Using rates as of June 30, 2012, debt service requirements of the
variable rate debt and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same for the term
of the bonds, are reflected in the following table. As rates vary, variable rate bond interest payments and
net swap payments will vary.
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Fiscal Year Bonds Interest Rate Remarketing

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Sw aps, Net * Liquidity, Other Total
2013 $ - $ 58,937 $ 1,453,225 $ 281,827 $ 1,512,162
2014 - 58,937 1,453,225 281,827 1,512,162
2015 - 58,937 1,453,225 281,827 1,512,162
2016 - 58,937 1,453,225 281,827 1,512,162
2017 - 58,937 1,453,225 281,827 1,512,162
2018 - 2022 - 294,683 7,266,125 1,409,136 7,560,808
2023 - 2027 23,065,001 229,158 5,650,438 1,095,802 28,944,597
2028 - 2031 18,440,000 65,462 1,614,110 313,028 20,119,572

Total $ 41,505,001 $ 883,987 $ 21,796,798 $ 4,227,103 $ 64,185,786

* Computed using (3.673% - 0.172%) x ($41,505,001 — annual reduction)

() The County has issued variable rate bonds. The County has remarketing agreements and standby
purchase agreements with banks related to these bonds. Under the remarketing agreements, the agents
will remarket any bonds for which payment is demanded. If the bonds cannot be remarketed, the banks
will purchase the bonds. The following schedule shows the expiration dates, which can be renewed, fees
paid in fiscal year 2012 pursuant to these agreements, and the interest rate at year-end for these issues.
Interest rates may change pursuant to the terms of the remarketing agreements based on market
conditions. During fiscal year 2012, the County experienced similar liquidity fee levels compared to
fiscal year 2011, in connection with the liquidity substitutions. The interest rates, per the remarketing
agreements, cannot exceed 12%. The maximum interest required for these bonds through maturity
would be $222,989,400. The general obligation bonds Series 2004A, 2004B, 67.5% of the 2007A,
2007B and 2007C and the revenue bonds Series 2009 and 2011 have been synthetically fixed as
described in the previous paragraphs.

Standby
Debt Purchase Fees Paid
Sub Balance Agreement for the Fiscal Interest Rate
Note Issue June 30, 2012 Expiration Year 2012 June 30, 2012
General Obligation Bonds
(b) 2004A $ 41,775,000 December 15, 2014 $ 203,832 0.15%
(b) 2004B 15,970,000 December 15, 2014 76,753 0.15%
f) 2007A 20,749,288 March 25, 2014 235,820 0.14%
) 2007B 12,451,286 March 25, 2014 144,556 0.14%
) 2007C 8,304,427 December 15, 2014 59,651 0.15%
Revenue Bonds
(@) 2011 10,145,000 not applicable - 1.30%
(e) 2009 18,600,000 August 20, 2012 257,930 0.23%

4. The preceding long-term obligations are included in Exhibit A as follows:

Governmental .
Activities Business-type
Activities Total
General Obligation Bonds $ 415,264,622 $ 891,215 $ 416,155,837
Certificates of Participation 89,729,408 - 89,729,408
Installment Financing 6,931,484 - 6,931,484
Revenue Bonds - 52,128,389 52,128,389
N.C. Clean Water Revolving Loan - 13,168,483 13,168,483
Total $ 511,925514 $ 66,188,087 $ 578,113,601
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5. The table in Note 16 part A differs from the long-term obligations in Note 16 part B due to the

following:

General Obligation Bonds

2004 Refunding Bonds (School Facilities)

2004 Refunding Bonds (Sanitary Sewer)

2004 Refunding Bonds (School Facilities)

2007 School Facility - Series D

2009 School Facility - Series A

2009 Refunding Bonds (School Facility) -

2009 Refunding Bonds (School Facility) -

2010 Refunding Bonds - Series A (School

2012 School Refunding

Installment Financing

2003 Multi-purpose COP's

2006 Schools COP's

2011 Limited Obligation Bonds (Schools)

2011 Limited Obligation Bonds (Other)

2012 Limited Obligation Bonds (Schools)

2012 Limited Obligation Bonds (Other)

Rewvenue Bonds

2003 Enterprise System - Series A

2003 Refunding Enterprise System -

2011 Refunding Enterprise System

2011A Refunding Enterprise System
Total

Long-term Obligations (per Note 16, A)

Future Maturities of Long-term Obligations (per Note 16, B)

B. Future Maturities of Long-Term Obligations

Unamortized Unamortized
Deferred Loss Premium /

on Defeasance (Discount) Total
4,651 (92,498) (87,847)
1,059 (20,397) (19,338)
456,340 - 456,340
- (1,755,378) (1,755,378)
- (2,816,510) (2,816,510)
248,794 (3,431,697) (3,182,903)
1,826,491 (1,968,503) (142,012)
246,750 (5,343,610) (5,096,860)
4,190,554 (3,441,883) 748,671
- (86,984) (86,984)
- (1,843,547) (1,843,547)
301,963 - 301,963
540,074 - 540,074
2,316,586 (2,976,981) (660,395)
650,786 (836,305) (185,519)
- (22,560) (22,560)
1,056,834 1,056,834
1,464,307 (1,971,970) (507,663)
$ 13,305,189 (26,608,823) (13,303,634)
578,113,601
564,809,967

Annual debt service requirements to maturity, including interest, are as follows (excluding compensated

absences):
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Certificates of

General Participation and
Obligation Bonds Installment Financing Total
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

Gowernmental Activities
2013 $ 24,432,900 $ 16,475,299 $ 6,109,175 $ 3,967,602 $ 30,542,075 $ 20,442,902

2014 24,881,765 15,683,706 6,208,820 3,618,499 31,090,585 19,302,205
2015 25,723,571 14,724,378 6,249,830 3,359,577 31,973,401 18,083,955
2016 25,704,887 13,658,294 6,242,260 3,148,168 31,947,147 16,806,462
2017 25,750,000 12,514,020 6,231,164 2,935,835 31,981,164 15,449,855
2018-2022 118,450,000 46,458,630 27,410,234 11,268,648 145,860,234 57,727,278
2023-2027 93,205,000 24,102,373 20,750,000 6,320,931 113,955,000 30,423,305
2028-2032 60,240,000 6,993,557 15,525,000 2,251,125 75,765,000 9,244,682
2033-2034 5,000,000 200,000 - - 5,000,000 200,000

$ 403,388,123 $ 150,810,257 $ 94,726,484 $ 36,870,386 $ 498,114,607 $ 187,680,643

General Revenue Other Long-term
Obligation Bonds Bonds Obligations (E.) Total
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

Business-type Activities
2013 $ 542,100 $ 35806 $ 2,700,000 $ 2,026,996 $ 983,697 $ 311,879 $ 4,225,797 $ 2,374,681

2014 138,235 14,122 2,780,000 1,908,443 983,697 286,876 3,901,932 2,209,440
2015 136,429 7,901 2,820,000 1,798,324 983,697 261,872 3,940,126 2,068,097
2016 55,113 2,273 2,930,000 1,686,425 983,697 236,869 3,968,810 1,925,567
2017 - - 3,055,000 1,570,198 983,697 211,866 4,038,697 1,782,064
2018-2022 - - 14,305,000 6,109,980 3,750,000 764,438 18,055,000 6,874,417
2023-2027 - - 12,425,000 3,588,092 3,750,000 339,750 16,175,000 3,927,842
2028-2032 - - 9,125,000 1,263,932 750,000 16,988 9,875,000 1,280,919
2033-2034 - - 2,515,000 145,160 2,515,000 145,160

$ 871,877 $ 60,102 $ 52,655000 $ 20,097,549 $ 13,168,483 $ 2,430,537 $ 66,695,360 $ 22,588,187

Total Long-term Obligations for Governmental and Business-type Activities $ 564,809,967 $ 210,268,831

As of June 30, 2012, Union County had no general obligation bonds authorized but unissued, and had a
legal debt margin of $1,373,524,913.

C. Changes in Long-Term Obligations

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2012 (and
agrees to table in Note 16 part A):
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Additions and Current

Balance Deductions to Balance Portion of
June 30, 2011 Increases Decreases Amortizations June 30, 2012 Balances
Gowvernmental Activities:
By Type:

General obligation bonds $ 439,916,948 $ 28,845,000 $ 72,551,575 $ (2,285,751) $ 393,924,622 $ 24,811,555
Certificates of participation 95,100,626 40,240,000 23,035,000 (1,236,218) 111,069,408 5,268,185
Installment financing 7,777,327 - 845,843 - 6,931,484 879,175
542,794,901 69,085,000 96,432,418 (3,521,969) T 511,925,514 30,958,915

Compensated absences 3,057,015 3,322,737 3,203,914 - 3,175,839 -

Net OPEB obligation 8,084,233 2,576,015 - - 10,660,248 -

Net pension obligation (1,388,045) - 11,442 - (1,399,487) -
$ 552,548,104 $ 74,983,752 $ 99,647,774 $ (3,521,969) $ 524,362,114 $ 30,958,915

By Purpose:

General government $ 11,267,137 $ 9,430,519 $ 9,497,130 $ (383,107) $ 10,817,419 $ 857,133
Public safety 11,005,711 - 1,790,452 (333,605) 8,881,654 919,948
Economic/physical development 2,832,852 2,954,886 2,972,279 154,919 2,970,378 268,569

Human senices 33,734 - 33,189 (435) 110 -
Education 515,617,287 55,030,277 80,415,207 (2,891,362) 487,340,995 28,761,544
Cultural and recreational 2,038,180 1,669,318 1,724,161 (68,379) 1,914,958 151,721

Compensated absences 3,057,015 3,322,737 3,203,914 - 3,175,839 -

Net OPEB obligation 8,084,233 2,576,015 - - 10,660,248 -

Net pension obligation (1,388,045) - 11,442 (1,399,487) -

$ 552,548,104 $ 74,983,752 $ 99,647,774 $ (3,521,969) $ 524,362,114 $ 30,958,915

Business-type Activities:

By Type:
General obligation bonds $ 1,436,557 $ - $ 548,425 $ 3,083 $ 891,215 $ 546,759
Revenue bonds 57,606,895 34,385,000 0O 39,795,000 (68,506) 52,128,389 2,615,716
NC Clean Water Rewolving Loan 14,152,180 - 983,697 - 13,168,483 983,697
73,195,632 34,385,000 41,327,122 (65,423) T 66,188,087 © 4,146,172
Compensated absences 435,487 416,139 452,600 - 399,026 -
Net OPEB obligation 911,831 273,649 - - 1,185,480 -
Net pension obligation (186,615) - 1,555 - (188,170) -
$ 74,356,335 $ 35,074,788 $ 41,781,277 $ (65,423) $ 67,584,423 $ 4,146,172
By Purpose:
Water and sewer systems $ 73195632 $ 34,385,000 $ 41,327,122 $ (65,423) $ 66,188,087 $ 4,146,172
Compensated absences 435,487 416,139 452,600 - 399,026 -
Net OPEB obligation 911,831 273,649 - - 1,185,480 -
Net pension obligation (186,615) - 1,555 - (188,170) -

$ 74,356,335 $ 35,074,788 $ 41,781,277 $ (65,423) $ 67,584,423 $ 4,146,172

Compensated absences typically have been liquidated in the General Fund or one of the Enterprise
Funds depending on the location status of the employee at the time of compensated absence
liquidation.

D. Revenue Bonds

The County issued combined system enterprise revenue bonds for water and sewer system
improvements pursuant to a General Trust Indenture dated as of May 1, 1996; Series Indenture Number
2, dated as of May 15, 2003; and Series Indenture Number 3, dated as of August 1, 2009 (together the
“Indentures”) between the County and First Union National Bank of North Carolina (now succeeded by
U.S. Bank National Association), as trustee. The Indentures authorize and secure all outstanding revenue
bonds of the County’s water and sewer system and contain several financial and operating covenants
governing such matters as rates, additional bonds, reserve funds, annual budgets, maintenance of the
system and insurance. The County was in compliance with all such covenants during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2012.
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The County has covenanted that it will maintain various debt service coverage ratios. The calculation
for the various debt service coverage ratios for the year ended June 30, 2012 is as follows:

Revenues $ 30,976,060
Current Expenses 16,476,867
Net revenues available for debt senice 14,499,193
Add: 20% of preceding year's Surplus Fund 5,608,788

Adjusted net revenues available for debt senice per Rate Covenant $ 20,107,981

Senior debt senice cowverage:

Debt senice, principal and interest paid $ 4,810,493
Subordinate debt senice:

Debt senice, principal and interest paid 1,926,747
Total debt senice:

Total debt senice, principal and interest paid 6,737,240

Add:20% of senior debt senice 962,099

Adjusted debt senice requirements $ 7,699,339

Coverage Test 1
Adjusted net revenues / adjusted debt senice 2.61

Coverage Test 2
Net revenues / total debt senice 2.15

E. Other Long-Term Debt

North Carolina Clean Water Revolving Loans - During fiscal year ended June 30, 1996, the County
received approval on a loan from the North Carolina Clean Water Revolving Loan and Grant Fund with a
maximum limit of $4,673,933. This loan is payable over 20 years with a current interest of 3.43% until
maturity and is secured by the net revenues of the water and sewer system. This loan contains certain
financial and operating covenants. The County was in compliance with all such covenants as of June 30,
2012. The amount outstanding at June 30, 2012 is $ 1,168,483. These funds were used for the Crooked
Creek sewer project of the County's Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund.

During fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the County received approval on a loan from the North Carolina
Clean Water Revolving Loan and Grant Fund with a maximum limit of $15,000,000. This loan is payable
over 20 years with interest at 2.265% and is secured by the net revenues of the water and sewer system.
This loan contains certain financial and operating covenants. The County was in compliance with all such
covenants as of June 30, 2012. The amount outstanding at June 30, 2012 is $12,000,000. These funds
are being used for the 12 Mile Creek Sewer Plant 6 MGD Expansion project of the County's Water and
Sewer Enterprise Fund.

The following table summarizes the annual requirements to amortize the long-term debt associated with
these loans.

1998 NC Clean Water 2007 NC Clean Water
Year Ending Revolving Loan Revolving Loan
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2013 $ 233,696 $ 40,0719 $ 750,000 $ 271,800
2014 233,696 32,063 750,000 254,813
2015 233,697 24,047 750,000 237,825
2016 233,697 16,032 750,000 220,837
2017 233,697 8,016 750,000 203,850
2018-2022 - - 3,750,000 764,438
2023-2027 - - 3,750,000 339,750
2028 - - 750,000 16,988
Total $ 1,168,483 $ 120,237 $ 12,000,000 $ 2,310,300
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F. Conduit Debt Obligations

Union County Industrial Facility and Pollution Control Financing Authority (the Authority) has issued
industrial revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to private businesses for economic development
purposes. These bonds are secured by the properties financed as well as letters of credit and are
payable solely from payments received from the private businesses involved. Ownership of the acquired
facilities is in the name of the private business served by the bond issuance. Neither the County, the
Authority, the State, or any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for the repayment of
the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial
statements. As of June 30, 2012, there is one series of industrial revenue bonds outstanding, with an
aggregate principal amount payable of $12,100,000.

NOTE 17 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY

A. INTERFUND BALANCES

The composition of inter-fund balances as of June 30, 2012 is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount Purpose

General Fund Water & Sew er Fund $ 266,425 Note 1

General Fund Solid Waste Fund 47,499 Note 1

General Fund Stormw ater Fund 6,200 Note 1
$ 320,124

Note I

C. INTERFUND ACTIVITY

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund
activities related to enterprise funds (as shown on Exhibit A).

Transfers In:

Business
Type
Gowvernmental Activities Activities
Emergency General
General Telephone Capital Project  Gowernmental  Stormwater
Transfer Out: Fund System Fund Fund Fund
Gowvernmental activities:
Debt Senice $ 1,510,656 $ - $ - $ $ -
General Fund - 5,745 57,000,000 57,005,745 -
Total governmental activities 1,510,656 5,745 57,000,000 58,516,401 -
Business type activities:
Water & Sewer Fund - - - 158,410
Total transfers out $ 1,510,656 $ 5,745 $ 57,000,000 $ 58,516,401 $ 158,410

Note 1: The transfer from the Debt Senice Fund was to provide funding for the School Debt Senvice for FY
2012. This transfer will also close the Debt Senice Fund.

Note 2: The transfer from the General Fund to the Emergency Telephone System Fund was to provide funding
for fiscal year 2011 Emergency Telephone System Fund expenditures that were determined to not be
applicable to the Emergency Telephone System Public Safety Answering Point revenue source.

Note 3: The transfers from the General Fund to the General Capital Project Fund were for CIP reserne

funds.

Note 4: The transfer from the Water & Sewer Fund to the Stormwater Fund was to provide for the stormwater

planning program.
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NOTE 18 - DEFERRED / UNEARNED REVENUES

The balance in deferred and unearned revenue on the fund statements and unearned revenue on the
government-wide statements at year-end is composed of the following elements:

Deferred Unearned
Revenue Revenue Total
Prepaid taxes not yet earned (General) $ - $ 334449 $ 334,449
Prepaid taxes not yet earned (Special Revenue) - 6,730 6,730
Grant revenue not yet earned (General) - - -
Taxes receivable, net (General) 5,199,692 - 5,199,692
Taxes receivable, net (Special Revenue) 152,723 - 152,723
Accounts receivable, long term (General) - 74,796 74,796
Totals - Exhibit C $ 5,352,415 415,975 $ 5,768,390
Accounts receivable, long term (General) (74,796)
Total - Exhibit A $ 341,179

NOTE 19 - JOINT VENTURES
A. Catawba River Treatment Plant

Union County and Lancaster County Water and Sewer District (district) constructed a water impoundment
and treatment facility on the Catawba River in Lancaster County. The joint venture is known as the
Catawba River Water Treatment Plant (the “CRWTP”). The agreement between the two parties called for
the payment of one-half the audited and agreed upon costs of acquiring, constructing and equipping the
project. The County has a 50% undivided interest in the facility. Management of the facility is the
responsibility of a joint board. The joint board is composed of an equal number of members from the
district and County. A minimum of three (3) members from the district and County each serve on the joint
board. The district has responsibility for operating the facility under the joint board's direction.

The agreement further calls for an annual audit each June 30 to determine actual expenses and
gallons used. A final settlement will be made each year based on audited amounts. Operating costs
of the facility will be split between the parties based on metered gallons drawn by each. The joint
venture serves only the County and district as customers. All purchases of water are considered to be
related party transactions. During the year, the County purchased $1,986,663 of water.

The County's net investment is recorded in the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund and is accounted for
on the equity method. The County's equity interest as of June 30, 2012 was $14,869,140. This
included the County's recognized gain of $25,521, for the year. Complete separate financial
statements for the joint venture may be obtained from Catawba River Water Treatment Plant, 5107
Riverside Road, P.O. Box 214, Van Wyck, SC 29744. Summary financial information as of, and for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, is as follows:

Cash and investments $ 1,490,259
Other assets 28,437,655

Total assets $ 29,927,914
Total liabilities $ 189,634
Total net assets 29,738,280

Total liabilities and net assets $ 29,927,914
Total revenues $ 3,438,967
Total expenses (4,321,956)
Capital contributions 934,032

Net increase in net assets $ 51,043
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Water supply and water transfers from the Catawba River are presently the subject of legislation activity.
North Carolina has enacted new inter-basin transfer legislation and South Carolina has surface water
legislation pending in its legislature. These legislative activities may affect the availability of raw water for
treatment at the CRWTP and/or consumption of treated water by the joint venture. Additionally, South
Carolina brought suit against North Carolina in the United States Supreme Court over the withdrawals,
transfers and consumption of water that crosses over the boundary between the two states. This matter
has been settled and the County was not adversely impacted by the settlement. Due to the uncertainty of
the pending legislation, no provision has been included in the financial statements.

B. Union Memorial Regional Medical Center

Union Memorial Regional Medical Center, Inc. d/b/a Carolinas Medical Center-Union (CMC-Union) is a
not-for-profit organization which provides health care service to the residents of Union and surrounding
counties. The County has an agreement, originally entered into August 27, 1995, between the County,
CMC-Union and a subsidiary of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Hospital Authority, d/b/a Carolina HealthCare
System (CHS) to operate and manage CMC-Union. An amendment to the agreement was entered into as
of December 6, 1999, whereby the term was extended to August 26, 2020, with options to extend and
renew the agreement for additional periods not to exceed nine years each, upon mutual agreement of the
parties. A new amendment was negotiated and entered into effective January 1, 2012 and remaining in
effect until December 31, 2061. The new amended agreement with CMC-Union requires an annual
payment of lease to the County of $6,100,000 per year payable on or before January 15" of each year.
The new lease payment of $6,100,000 per year increases by one percent (1%) on January 1, 2017, and
on the first January 1 of each five (5) year period thereafter. In addition to the annual lease for 2012, CHS
paid the remainder of the annual rent under the old lease ($1,566,879). Under the new amendment, in
addition to the annual lease, CHS paid the County an upfront lease payment in the amount of
$54,000,000. The County does not provide any financial assistance for operating expenses. On January
29, 2007, the County entered into a contract with CMC-Union whereby the County reimburses CMC-
Union for 50% of the costs for qualifying physicians providing indigent care services to Union County
residents through the emergency department. The County’s participation is conditioned upon annual
funding and limited to $250,000 per fiscal year. The amount of funding for the current fiscal year was $0.
The County does not have an equity interest in the joint venture; therefore, no equity interest is reflected
in the County’s financial statements. Complete financial statements may be obtained at the Carolinas
Medical Center-Union offices at P.O. Box 5003, Monroe, NC 28111.

The North Carolina Medical Care Commission (the “Commission”) issued $25,000,000 Health Care
Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A (the “Series 2002A Bonds”) dated June 15, 2002 and
$15,000,000 Health Care Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2002B (the “Series 2002B Bonds” and
collectively, with the Series 2002A Bonds the “Bonds”) dated July 11, 2002 for the Union Regional
Medical Center Project (the “Project”).

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, the Commission entered into a loan agreement with
Union Regional Memorial Medical Center, Inc. currently d/b/a Carolinas Medical Center-Union (the
“Corporation”), a North Carolina nonprofit corporation. The Commission lent the proceeds of the
Bonds to the Corporation for the purpose of providing funds, together with other available funds, for
the purpose of paying costs of facility expansions and improvements, repayment of an interim
financing incurred by the Corporation in connection with the Project, a debt service reserve fund and
issuance expenses.

The Bonds are limited obligations of the Commission, payable solely from money received from the
Corporation pursuant to the terms of the loan agreement issued by the Corporation to the Commission.
Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State of North Carolina or Union County is pledged
as security for the Bonds.

92



C. South Piedmont Community College

The County, in conjunction with the State of North Carolina and Anson County Community College,
participates in a joint venture to operate the Union Campus of South Piedmont Community College. The
County appoints three members of the 14 member board of trustees of each community college. The
president of the community colleges' student government association serves as a non-voting, ex-officio
member of the board of trustees. The community colleges are included as component units of the state.
The County has the basic responsibility for providing funding for the facilities of the community college
and also provides some financial support for the community college's operations. In addition to
providing annual appropriations for the facilities, the County periodically issues debt to provide
financing for new and restructured facilities. Of the last installment financing for this purpose,
$3,169,848 in debt is still outstanding. The County contributed $1,098,827 to South Piedmont
Community College for operating and capital purposes during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. In
addition, the County made debt service payments of $255,063 during the fiscal year on installment
financing debt issued for the community college capital facilities. The participating governments do not
have any equity interest in the joint venture; therefore, no equity interest has been reflected in the
County's financial statements at June 30, 2012. Complete financial statements for the community colleges
may be obtained from the community colleges' administrative offices at South Piedmont Community
College, East Campus, P.O. Box 126, Polkton, NC 28135.

D. Piedmont Behavioral Healthcare and Cardinal Innovations Healthcare Solutions

The County also participates in a joint venture to operate Piedmont Behavioral Healthcare (PBH) with five
other counties; Cabarrus, Davidson, Rowan, Stanly, and Union counties. PBH provides mental health,
intellectual/other developmental disability treatment, and substance abuse services for the residents these
counties. Each patrticipating government appoints four board members to the 20 member board. The
County has an ongoing financial responsibility for the joint venture because PBH’s continued existence
depends on the participating governments' continued funding. None of the participating governments
have any equity interest in PBH, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at
June 30, 2012. In accordance with the intergovernmental agreement between the participating
governments, the County contributed $707,939 to PBH to supplement its activities for the year ended
June 30, 2012. Complete financial statements for PBH can be obtained from PBH's offices at 245
LePhillip Court, NE, Concord, NC 28025.

On June 23, 2011, the State of North Carolina passed Session Law 2011-264, which requires state wide
expansion of the 1915 (b)/(c) Medicaid waiver to be managed by area authorities operating as managed
care organizations. In response, PBH and four local management entities (LME’s) comprised of 15
counties, negotiated to merge the counties of each LME into one organization. The four LME’s are
comprised of (1) Alamance-Caswell (counties), (2) Five County (consisting of Franklin, Granville, Halifax,
Vance and Warren counties), (3) Orange-Person-Chatham (counties), and (4) the PBH LME (consisting
of Cabarrus, Davidson, Rowan, Stanly and Union counties). The merger allows for the expansion of the
Medicaid waivers, and will meet minimum population requirements as established by the North Carolina
General Assembly. Over the past several months, each of the 15 county’s Board of Commissioners have
adopted a resolution to be served by a single area authority operating as a managed care organization
which is now known as Cardinal Innovations Healthcare Solutions (“Cardinal Innovations”). The Union
County Board of Commissioners adopted this resolution on June 4th, 2012. The joint resolution became
effective July 1, 2012. On October 11, 2012, PBH announced that it was rebranding to (becoming)
Cardinal Innovations Healthcare Solutions. This area authority is comprised of a single Governing Board
and four Community Oversight Boards (COB); one for each Community Operations Center previously
served by the four LME’s. The COB’s will be responsible for recommending priorities for expenditure of
state/county funds for development of the annual budget, determine local priorities for inclusion in the
area wide strategic plan, identify community needs and concerns, and monitor resolution of issues. Each
COB will consist of the following members: a local Consumer and Family Advisory Committee (CFAC)
Chair or designee and three members from each county appointed by the County Commission (County
Commissioner or designee, consumer of family member, other citizen or stakeholder). The Governing
Board will consist of 13 members with one representative from each of the four COB’s, two at large
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County Commissioners from among the counties, one representative for the Regional CFAC and six
members with special expertise in healthcare, insurance, finance and health/behavioral health,
intellectual/developmental disabilities, physician or other profession.

As with PBH, the County has an ongoing financial responsibility for the Cardinal Innovations joint venture
because its continued existence depends on the participating governments' continued funding. None of
the participating governments have any equity interest in Cardinal Innovations, so no equity interest has
been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2012. Complete financial statements for Cardinal
Innovations can be obtained from the same address of the PBH's offices; 245 LePhillip Court, NE,
Concord, NC 28025.

NOTE 20 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION
Centralina Council of Governments

The Centralina Council of Governments is a voluntary association of nine County governments and
seventy municipalities. The Council was established by the participating governments to coordinate
funding from federal and state agencies. Each participating government appoints one member to the
council's governing board, whose responsibilities include approving the budget and designating the
management of the Council. The County paid membership dues of $53,704 during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012. The County was the sub-recipient of a grant for $855,604 from the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services and the Division of Aging of the North Carolina Department of Human
Resources that was passed through the Council.

NOTE 21 - BENEFIT PAYMENTS ISSUED BY THE STATE

The amounts listed below were paid directly to individual recipients by the State from federal and State
monies. County personnel are involved with certain functions, primarily eligibility determinations, which
cause benefit payments to be issued by the State. These amounts disclose this additional aid to County
recipients which do not appear in the general purpose financial statements because they are not
revenues and expenditures of the County.

Federal State
TANF Payments and Penalties $ 766,717 $ -
AFDC Payments and Penalties (43) 12)
Energy Assistance Payment (573) -
Refugee Assistance Payment 4,798 -
CWS Adoption Subsidy and Vendor - 343,098
IV-E Adoption Subsidy and Vendor 423,563 114,297
State/County Special Assistance for Adults - 801,893
Women, Infants and Children 3,237,808 -
Medical Assistance Program 83,905,845 47,535,828
Food Stamp Program-Noncash 36,553,989 -
Food Distribution - -
Health Choice 4,594,278 1,482,809

$ 129,486,382 $ 50,277,913

NOTE 22 - SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES
Federal and State Assisted Programs

The County has received proceeds from several federal and state grants. Periodic audits of these grants
are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant
agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant monies to the grantor agencies.
Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the
accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant monies.
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NOTE 23 — PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Beginning nets assets were restated for the Business Type Activity, Water and Sewer Fund. During
the implementation of a new capital asset software program, it was determined that several large
assets had cumulative depreciation calculation errors in the previous software program and a
corresponding adjustment was made. It was also determined that three capital projects that were
believed to be in progress (construction-work-in-progress, CWIP) at June 30, 2011 were actually
completed several months prior to the end of 2011. These projects were the Twelve Mile Creek
Phosphorus Removal project, Twelve Mile Creek Odor Control project, and the Circle Drive/Younts
Road Water Main Extension project. Corresponding adjustments were made for capitalized interest
and depreciation expense as of June 30, 2011. Also during fiscal year 2012, the County received a
reimbursement from the Charlotte Mecklenburg Utility Department (CMUD) for a three year period of
excess billings related to the County’s sewage treatment at the CMUD McAlpine Wastewater
Treatment Facility. A corresponding adjustment was made to net assets for the County’s wastewater
treatment expense. The adjustments to beginning net assets are as follows:

Business-type

Activities
Water and
Sewer Fund
Net assets, June 30, 2011 as previously reported $ 238,046,972
Adjustments:
Depreciation adjustment due to change in software (1,633,677)
Capitalize CWIP as of June 30, 2011:
Remowe applicable capitalized interest for June 30, 2011 (387,157)
Record applicable depreciation for June 30, 2011 (514,502)
Wastewater treatement billing error reimbursement:
Amount applicable to June 30, 2009 76,449
Amount applicable to June 30, 2010 90,568
Amount applicable to June 30, 2011 84,225
Total adjustments (2,284,094)
Net assets, June 30, 2011 as restated $ 235,762,878

NOTE 24 - EXTRAORDINARY ITEM

As noted in Note 19. B. regarding the Union Regional Medical Center joint venture, the County
received an upfront lease payment in the amount of $54,000,000 pursuant to a new amendment to the
lease agreement that was negotiated and entered into effective January 1, 2012. This is reported as a
one-time extraordinary item in both the statement of activites and the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances.

NOTE 25 - SIGNIFICANT EFFECTS OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On July 12, 2012, the County terminated a Tax-Supported Basis Swap in the amount of $57,999,000,
dated June 13, 2005. The swap counter party was Wells Fargo. Under this basis swap, the County
paid a variable rate equal to the SIFMA index and received a variable rate equal to 67% of LIBOR plus
a spread of 0.532%. The termination of the swap reduced the swap exposure for the County and
generated a swap termination payment, in the amount of $953,000, paid to the County.

On August 20 2012, the County replaced the Letter of Credit and Remarketing provider, Bank of
America, on the 2009 Enterprise System Revenue Bonds. The outstanding notional amount as of
June 30, 2012 was $18,600,000. The bonds require that the County have either a Letter of Credit or a
Standby Bond Purchase Agreement (SBPA) in place. US Bank will now serve as the Liquidity Facility
and Remarketing provider for a three year term. US Bank will save the County over the next three
years 62.5 basis points over the current prior fees of 110 basis points.
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Required Supplementary
Information

This section contains additional information required by generally accepted accounting principles.

Special Separation Allowance
Schedule of Funding Progress
Schedule of Employer Contributions

Notes to the Required Schedules

Other Postemployment Retiree Healthcare Benefits (OPEB)
Schedule of Funding Progress
Schedule of Employer Contributions

Notes to the Required Schedules



Union County, North Carolina Exhibit M

Special Separation Allowance
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress

@ 2 3 4 ®) (6)
Actuarial Actuarial Covered
Valuation Accrued Payroll for UAAL as a
Date - Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Funded Year Ending Percentage of
Year Ended Value of - Projected AAL (UAAL) Ratio on Valuation Covered Payroll
December 31 Assets Unit Credit (2) - (1) 1) /(2 Date (3)/(5)
2002 $ 1,352,025 $ 4,425,576 $ 3,073,551 30.55% $ 25,006,925 12.29%
2003 1,338,398 4,887,407 3,549,009 27.38% 28,135,434 12.61%
2004 1,293,203 5,344,110 4,050,907 24.20% 28,814,222 14.06%
2005 1,256,392 5,465,377 4,208,985 22.99% 32,224,179 13.06%
2006 1,336,222 5,859,710 4,523,488 22.80% 34,030,299 13.29%
2007 1,457,076 6,329,081 4,872,005 23.02% 37,572,967 12.97%
2008 1,552,817 6,928,636 5,375,819 22.41% 38,589,407 13.93%
2009 1,487,609 8,617,532 7,129,923 17.26% 36,769,426 19.39%
2010 1,123,089 8,021,168 6,898,079 14.00% 37,245,068 18.52%
2011 739,302 7,808,146 7,068,844 9.47% 36,870,843 19.17%

Analysis of the dollar amounts of actuarial value of assets, actuarial accrued liability (AAL), and unfunded actuarial
accrued liability (UAAL) in isolation can be misleading. Expressing the actuarial value of assets as a percentage of
the actuarial accrued liability provides one indication of funding status on a going-concern basis. Analysis of this
percentage over time indicates whether system is becoming financially stronger or weaker. Generally, the greater this
percentage, the stronger the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS). Trends in unfunded actuarial accrued
liability and annual covered payroll are both affected by inflation. Expressing the unfunded actuarial accrued liability
as a percentage of annual covered payroll approximately adjusts for the effects of inflation and aids analysis of
progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Generally, the smaller this percentage, the
stronger the PERS. Ten year historical trend information for a single employer PERS is required supplementary
information.
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Union County, North Carolina Exhibit N

Special Separation Allowance
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Contributions

Annual
Fiscal Required Percentage
Year Contribution Contributed
2007 $ 450,003 184.00%
2008 477,327 188.51%
2009 527,637 173.00%
2010 580,462 111.79%
2011 725,358 77.10%
2012 695,688 101.83%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplemental schedules was determined as a part
of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest
actuarial valuation follows.

Valuation date December 31, 2011
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level percent of pay closed
Remaining amortization period at 19 years

December 31, 2011
Asset valuation method Market value

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return * 5.00%
Projected salary increases *
Law enforcement officer 4.25% to 7.85% per year
General employees 4.25% to 7.75% per year
* Includes inflation at 3.00%
Cost-of-living adjustments Not included

99



Union County, North Carolina

Other Postemployment Retiree Healthcare Benefits (OPEB)

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Exhibit O

1) 2 3 4 ©) (6)

Actuarial Actuarial Covered

Valuation Accrued Payroll for UAAL as a
Date - Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Funded Year Ending Percentage of

Year Ended Value of - Projected AAL (UAAL) Ratio on Valuation Covered Payroll

July 1 Assets Unit Credit (2) - (1) D172 Date (3)/(5)
2007 $ - $ 35,415,051 $35,415,051 0.0% $ 34,875,562 101.5%
2008 - 38,487,574 38,487,574 0.0% 37,669,545 102.2%
2009 360,768 39,703,931 39,343,163 0.9% 38,200,120 103.0%
2010 1,035,514 40,378,677 39,343,163 2.6% 36,938,542 106.5%
2011 1,896,400 46,153,290 44,256,890 4.1% 37,007,819 119.6%
2012 5,031,521 49,577,714 44,546,193 10.1% 36,772,539 121.1%

Analysis of the dollar amounts of actuarial value of assets, actuarial accrued liability (AAL), and unfunded actuarial accrued
liability (UAAL) in isolation can be misleading. Expressing the actuarial value of assets as a percentage of the actuarial
accrued liability provides one indication of funding status on a going-concern basis. Analysis of this percentage over time
indicates whether system is becoming financially stronger or weaker. Generally, the greater this percentage, the stronger
the Retire Healthcare Benefits Plan (RHBP). Trends in unfunded actuarial accrued liability and annual covered payroll

are both affected by inflation. Expressing the unfunded actuarial accrued liability as a percentage of annual covered payroll
approximately adjusts for the effects of inflation and aids analysis of progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay
benefits when due. Generally, the smaller this percentage, the stronger the RHBP.
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Union County, North Carolina Exhibit P

Other Postemployment Healthcare and Dental Benefits
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Contributions

Annual
Fiscal Required Percentage
Year Contribution Contributed
2008 $ 4,689,039 24.7%
2009 5,067,038 38.3%
2010 4,966,681 47.1%
2011 4,966,681 104.1%
2012 5,989,106 106.9%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplemental schedules was determined as a part
of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest
actuarial valuation follows.

Valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method

Remaining amortization period at
July 1, 2011

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Annual expense inflation rate
Payroll Growth
Projected salary increases
Health care cost trend rate
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July 1, 2011
Projected unit credit
Level dollar open

30 years

Fair value

7.25%
2.50%
3.50%
4.50%
9.5% - 5%
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Union County, North Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2012

Schedule 1

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Property taxes receivable (net)
Accounts receivable (net)
Cash and investments, restricted
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Unearned revenue
Liabilities payable from restricted assets
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Assigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Library
Special Debt Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Service Project Governmental
Funds Fund Fund Funds

$1,852,155 % $3,554,445 $ 5,406,600
152,723 - 152,723
267,142 - 267,142
898,724 - 898,724
$3,170,744 % $3,554,445 $ 6,725,189
$ 27291 $ $ 6,591 $ 33,882
152,723 - 152,723
6,730 - 6,730

6,751 - 6,751
193,495 6,591 200,086
2,977,249 - 2,977,249

- 3,547,854 3,547,854

2,977,249 3,547,854 6,525,103
$3,170,744  $ $3,554,445 $ 6,725,189
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Union County, North Carolina

Schedule 2

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES

Ad valorem taxes
Local option sales tax
Other taxes and licenses
Intergovernmental
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety
General governmental
Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from (to) other funds

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES
Beginning
Ending

Library
Special Debt Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Service Project Governmental
Funds Fund Fund Funds

$ 4,363,488 $ - $ - $ 4,363,488
707,276 - - 707,276
1,004,522 - - 1,004,522
15,901 - - 15,901
2,085,215 - - 2,085,215
15,000 - - 15,000
12,338 - - 12,338
94,375 - - 94,375
8,298,115 - - 8,298,115
9,454,902 - - 9,454,902
102,000 - - 102,000
9,556,902 - - 9,556,902
(1,258,787) - - (1,258,787)
5,745 (1,510,656) - (1,504,911)
(1,253,042) (1,510,656) - (2,763,698)
4,230,291 1,510,656 3,547,854 9,288,801
$2,977,249 $ - $ 3,547,854 $ 6,525,103
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Union County, North Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Property taxes receivable (net)
Accounts receivable (net)

Cash and investments, restricted
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Unearned revenue
Liabilities payable from restricted assets
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted

Total liabilities and fund balances

Springs Waxhaw Hemby Bridge Stallings
Fire District Fire District Fire District Fire District
Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 27,740 $ 59,227 $ 67,637 $ 35,608

19,799 28,326 43,402 39,321
14,242 28,532 45,634 41,309

$ 61,781 $ 116,085 $ 156,673 $ 116,238
$ - % - % - % -
19,799 28,326 43,402 39,321

813 1,024 1,796 1,088

20,612 29,350 45,198 40,409
41,169 86,735 111,475 75,829

$ 61,781 $ 116,085 $ 156,673 $ 116,238
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Schedule 3

Wesley Chapel Fee Supported  Emergency General Automation Total Nonmajor
Fire District Fire Districts Telephone  Special Revenue Enhancement Special Revenue
Fund Fund System Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 109,540 $ 10,592 $ 1,531,973 $ - $ 9,838 $ 1,852,155
21,875 - - - - 152,723
53,527 188 83,710 - - 267,142
- - - 898,724 - 898,724
$ 184942 % 10,780 $ 1615683 $ 898,724 $ 9,838 $ 3,170,744
$ - $ 8,205 $ 19,086 $ - $ - % 27,291
21,875 - - - - 152,723
2,009 - - - - 6,730
- - - 6,751 - 6,751
23,884 8,205 19,086 6,751 - 193,495
161,058 2,575 1,596,597 891,973 9,838 2,977,249
$ 184942 % 10,780 $ 1615683 $ 898,724 $ 9,838 $ 3,170,744
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Union County, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES

Ad valorem taxes
Local option sales tax
Other taxes and licenses
Intergovernmental
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers from other funds

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES
Beginning
Ending

Springs Waxhaw Hemby Bridge Stallings
Fire District Fire District Fire District Fire District
Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 347,102 690,930 $ 1,095,610 $ 946,910

54,467 109,801 179,054 154,596
401,569 800,731 1,274,664 1,101,506
387,091 775,515 1,264,433 1,099,024
387,091 775,515 1,264,433 1,099,024

14,478 25,216 10,231 2,482

14,478 25,216 10,231 2,482

26,691 61,519 101,244 73,347

$ 41,169 86,735 $ 111,475 $ 75,829
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Schedule 4

Wesley Chapel Fee Supported Emergency General Automation Total Nonmajor
Fire District Fire Districts Telephone  Special Revenue Enhancement Special Revenue
Fund Fund System Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 1282936 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 4,363,488
209,358 - - - 707,276
- - 1,004,522 - 1,004,522
- - - 15,901 15,901
- 1,973,377 - - 111,838 2,085,215
- - - 15,000 15,000
- - 9,374 2,964 12,338
- - - 94,375 94,375
1,492,294 1,973,377 1,013,896 128,240 111,838 8,298,115
- - - - 102,000 102,000
1,427,808 2,057,966 2,358,605 84,460 - 9,454,902
1,427,808 2,057,966 2,358,605 84,460 102,000 9,556,902
64,486 (84,589) (1,344,709) 43,780 9,838 (1,258,787)
- - 5,745 - - 5,745
64,486 (84,589) (1,338,964) 43,780 9,838 (1,253,042)
96,572 87,164 2,935,561 848,193 - 4,230,291
$ 161,058 $ 2575 $ 1,596,597 $ 891,973 $ 9,838 $ 2,977,249
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Union County, North Carolina Schedule 5

Combining Statement of Net Assets
Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2012

Health Workers' Property and
Benefits Compensation Casualty
Fund Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 1,689,025 $ 680,392 $ 528,361 $ 2,897,778
Accounts receivable (net) 339,520 1,072 520 341,112
Total current assets 2,028,545 681,464 528,881 3,238,890
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 55,287 12,072 - 67,359
Workers' compensation claims payable - 184,142 - 184,142
Health care benefits payable 843,783 - - 843,783
Total current liabilities 899,070 196,214 - 1,095,284
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted $ 1,129,475 $ 485,250 $ 528,881 $ 2,143,606
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Union County, North Carolina Schedule 6

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Health Workers' Property and
Benefits Compensation Casualty
Fund Fund Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Interfund charges and employee contributions $ 10,713,854 $ 388,398 $ 656,827 $ 11,759,079
Other operating revenue 53,607 22,843 - 76,450

Total operating revenues 10,767,461 411,241 656,827 11,835,529

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses 757,747 109,897 - 867,644
Workers' compensation claims - 254,075 - 254,075
Health benefit claims and premiums 10,011,595 - - 10,011,595
Property and casualty claims and premiums - - 656,827 656,827
Total operating expenses 10,769,342 363,972 656,827 11,790,141
Operating income (loss) (1,881) 47,269 - 45,388

NONOPERATING REVENUES

Investment earnings (losses) (865) (7,248) 1,753 (6,360)
Change in net assets (2,746) 40,021 1,753 39,028

NET ASSETS
Beginning 1,132,221 445,229 527,128 2,104,578
Ending $ 1,129,475 $ 485,250 $ 528,881 $ 2,143,606
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Union County, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Schedule 7

Health Workers' Property and
Benefits Compensation Casualty
Fund Fund Fund Total
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers for services $ 10,754,152 $ 388,822 $ 657,179 $ 11,800,153
Other operating revenue 53,607 22,843 - 76,450
Cash paid for goods and services (10,988,249) (256,276) (656,827) (11,901,352)
Net cash provided (used) by operating
activities (180,490) 155,389 352 (24,749)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment earnings (losses) (865) (7,248) 1,753 (6,360)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
investments (181,355) 148,141 2,105 (31,109)
CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Beginning of year 1,870,380 532,251 526,256 2,928,887
End of year $ 1,689,025 $ 680,392 $ 528,361 $ 2,897,778
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ (1,881) $ 47,269 $ - $ 45,388
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Change in assets and liabilities
Decrease in accounts receivable 40,298 424 352 41,074
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities (218,907) 107,696 - (111,211)
Total adjustments (178,609) 108,120 352 (70,137)
Net cash provided (used) by operating
activities $ (180,490) $ 155,389 $ 352 $ (24,749)
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Union County, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

June 30, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Property taxes receivable (net)
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to program participants
Total liabilities

Monroe
Social Fines and Jail School
Services Forfeitures Inmate District
Fund Fund Fund Fund
49,020 89,463 33,737 -
- - - 10,982
49,020 89,463 33,737 10,982
- 89,463 - 10,982
49,020 - 33,737 -
49,020 89,463 33,737 10,982
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Schedule 8

Union County Municipal Gross Rental Dept. of State
School Tax Deed of Receipts Treas. Motor
District Collection Trust Fee Tax Vehicle Tax
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
$ 702 178,161 $ 2,562 $ 7,852 $ 361,497
40,906 - - - 51,888
$ 41,608 178,161 $ 2,562 $ 7,852 $ 413,385
$ 41,608 178,161 $ 2,562 $ 7,852 $ 330,628
- - - - 82,757
$ 41,608 178,161 $ 2,562 $ 7,852 $ 413,385
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General Fund

The General Fund accounts for resources traditionally associated with government that are not
required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in other funds.






Union County, North Carolina

General Fund
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2012 and 2011

Schedule 9

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Property taxes receivable (net)
Accounts receivable (net)
Accounts receivable, long-term
Inventories
Cash and investments, restricted
Cash and investments, restricted-deposits
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Unearned revenue
Deposits
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

119

June 30, 2012

June 30, 2011

$ 59,207,244 $ 48,034,527
5,199,692 5,677,615
12,204,036 12,130,763
62,112 77,171

22,506 26,116

33,082 1

946,264 875,888

$ 77,674,936 $ 66,822,081
$ 5,126,218 $ 5,223,370
5,199,692 5,677,615
409,245 550,924

946,264 875,888
11,681,419 12,327,797
84,618 103,287
13,161,506 12,754,599
1,497,776 1,656,054
51,249,617 39,980,344
65,993,517 54,494,284

$ 77,674,936 $ 66,822,081




Union County, North Carolina

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 10

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Current year levy $ 149,812,927 $ 152,186,072 $ 2,373,145 $ 150,435,645
Prior years' levy 3,287,000 3,158,223 (128,777) 3,959,296
Penalties and interest 995,700 1,201,507 205,807 1,013,773
Total 154,095,627 156,545,802 2,450,175 155,408,714
Local option sales tax 23,000,000 25,665,902 2,665,902 23,351,825
Other taxes and licenses 1,522,500 1,742,152 219,652 1,568,697
Intergovernmental 29,870,690 30,654,996 784,306 30,600,312
Permits and fees 2,424,696 3,014,314 589,618 2,551,468
Sales and services 5,334,000 5,266,772 (67,228) 5,068,297
Investment earnings 1,000,000 1,057,509 57,509 697,055
Miscellaneous 3,032,950 8,693,729 5,660,779 3,859,352
Total revenues 220,280,463 232,641,176 12,360,713 223,105,720
EXPENDITURES
General Government
Board of Commissioners 438,213 385,240 52,973 376,865
Central Administration 763,828 741,837 21,991 860,613
County Dues and Memberships 93,044 93,027 17 91,869
Internal Audit 101,858 93,407 8,451 92,879
Legal 367,700 357,660 10,040 332,133
Personnel 707,039 680,941 26,098 666,411
Finance 957,402 866,603 90,799 845,894
Tax Administration 3,757,942 3,599,871 158,071 3,575,350
Court Facilities 770,352 687,887 82,465 586,182
Elections 1,129,215 848,585 280,630 904,952
Register of Deeds 873,088 847,283 25,805 909,214
Information Systems 1,554,865 1,311,367 243,498 1,309,319
G.1.S. Department 235,809 215,359 20,450 210,201
General Services 84,371 (18,433) 102,804 301,079
Total General Government 11,834,726 10,710,634 1,124,092 11,062,961
Public Safety
Law Enforcement 23,044,955 21,908,964 1,135,991 20,079,609
Communications 3,445,296 3,316,324 128,972 2,633,055
Homeland Security 186,474 120,159 66,315 156,810
Fire Services 779,738 762,420 17,318 900,784
Inspection 1,379,380 1,352,388 26,992 1,370,336
Other Public Safety Outside Agencies
Medical Examiner 50,800 35,624 15,176 45,919
Emergency Medical Services 2,925,203 2,931,367 (6,164) 2,926,538
Juvenile Detention 80,425 77,850 2,575 63,621
American Red Cross 4,650 4,650 - 4,875
Other Public Safety 1,000 - 1,000 -
Total Public Safety 31,897,921 30,509,746 1,388,175 28,181,547
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Union County, North Carolina

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 10
(continued)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Economic and Physical Development
Planning
Economic Development Commission
Cooperative Extension Service
Soil Conservation

Other Economic and Physical Dev. Outside Agencies

Forest Management
New Ventures Business Development

Total Economic and Physical Development

Human Services

Health

Social Services

Transportation and Nutrition

Veterans' Service

Other Human Services Outside Agencies
Mental Health
Health Quest
United Family Services
Charlotte Area Transportation
JJDP - Programs
Turning Point
UDI (Sheltered Workshop)
Community Shelter
Community Action
Council on Aging
CMC-Union
Criminal Justice Partnership
Other Human Services

Total Human Services

Cultural and Recreational
Library
Parks and Recreation

Other Cultural and Recreational Outside Agencies

Arts Council
Historical Properties
A. J. Historical Foundation
Total Cultural and Recreational

Education
Public Schools - current expense

Public Schools - current expense (occupancy cost)

Subtotal

Community College
Community College - operations
Literacy Efforts

Total Education

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
810,866 $ 604,209 $ 206,657 $ 418,381
1,342,088 1,249,610 92,478 2,223,860
868,697 734,925 133,772 737,617
85,146 82,864 2,282 80,278
70,208 62,557 7,651 65,679
2,922 - 2,922 9,000
3,179,927 2,734,165 445,762 3,534,815
8,901,231 8,397,819 503,412 8,349,037
28,057,520 25,292,849 2,764,671 25,319,422
1,796,677 1,567,091 229,586 1,698,243
287,450 263,153 24,297 264,219
898,408 891,880 6,528 883,281
21,375 21,375 - 22,500
21,375 21,375 - 22,500
89,887 89,887 - 111,921
289,971 277,626 12,345 265,844
21,375 21,375 - 22,500
19,950 19,950 - 21,000
10,688 10,688 - 11,250
65,269 65,269 - 68,704
374,760 374,762 ) 348,354
488,617 323,145 165,472 285,701
135,356 135,356 - 130,749
3,475 182 3,293 1,023
41,483,384 37,773,782 3,709,602 37,826,248
4,194,484 4,011,552 182,932 4,059,772
1,969,418 1,668,611 300,807 1,425,264
47,025 47,025 - 49,500
26,528 27,660 (1,132) 15,434
4,275 4,250 25 4,500
6,241,730 5,759,098 482,632 5,554,470
79,304,155 79,304,155 - 79,504,155
180,574 165,184 15,390 174,881
79,484,729 79,469,339 15,390 79,679,036
10,782 - 10,782 -
1,090,827 1,090,827 - 1,100,000
2,138 2,138 - 2,250
80,588,476 80,562,304 26,172 80,781,286
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Union County, North Carolina

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 10

(continued)

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Debt Service
School Debt Service
Principal retirement
Interest and fees
Total

General Debt Service
Principal retirement
Interest and fees

Total

Total Debt Service
Contingency
Nondepartmental
Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds:
Emergency Telephone System Fund
Debt service fund
Transfers to other funds:
General Capital Project Fund
Emergency Telephone System Fund
Proceeds from refunding general obligation bonds
Proceeds from refunding general obligation bonds
issuance premium, etc
Proceeds from refunding installment financing
Proceeds from refunding installment financing
issuance premium, etc
Payments to refunded bonds escrow agents

Payments to refunded installment financing escrow agents

Payments to terminate interest rate swaps

Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other financing uses

before extraordinary item

EXTRAORDINARY ITEM
Miscellaneous revenue - rent income - see Note 24

APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE

Revenues, other financing sources, extra-
ordinary item and appropriated fund balance
over expenditures and other financing uses

FUND BALANCE
Beginning
Ending

122

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

$ 27,556,825 $ 27,556,825 $ - $ 24,670,865
22,548,240 21,931,639 616,601 22,274,006
50,105,065 49,488,464 616,601 46,944,871
1,949,750 1,949,750 - 2,561,072
948,360 929,382 18,978 1,287,219
2,898,110 2,879,132 18,978 3,848,291
53,003,175 52,367,596 635,579 50,793,162
302,347 - 302,347 -
455,952 - 455,952 -
228,987,638 220,417,325 8,570,313 217,734,489
(8,707,175) 12,223,851 20,931,026 5,371,231

- - - 686
1,510,656 1,510,656 - -
(57,000,000) (57,000,000) - (3,303,552)
(5,745) (5,745) - .
28,845,000 28,845,000 - 55,010,000
3,491,145 3,491,145 - 6,401,729
40,240,000 40,240,000 - -
3,864,555 3,864,556 1 -
(32,046,175) (32,046,173) 2 (55,380,000)
(44,275,360) (43,624,057) 651,303 -
- - - (5,544,147)
(55,375,924) (54,724,618) 651,306 (2,815,284)
(64,083,099) (42,500,767) 21,582,332 2,555,947
54,000,000 54,000,000 - -
10,083,099 - (10,083,099) -
$ - 11,499,233 $ 11,499,233 2,555,947
54,494,284 51,938,337

$ 65,993,517 $ 54,494,284



Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for
particular purposes.

Springs Fire District Fund - This fund accounts for the ad valorem tax levies of this fire district in
Union County.

Waxhaw Fire District Fund - This fund accounts for the ad valorem tax levies of this fire district in
Union County.

Hemby Bridge Fire District Fund - This fund accounts for the ad valorem tax levies of this fire
district in Union County.

Stallings Fire District Fund - This fund accounts for the ad valorem tax levies of this fire district in
Union County.

Wesley Chapel Fire District Fund - This fund accounts for the ad valorem tax levies of this fire
district in Union County.

Fee Supported Fire Districts Fund - This fund accounts for the fees levied in these fire districts in
Union County.

Emergency Telephone System Fund - This fund accounts for the user fees charged to support the
emergency telephone system.

General Special Revenue Fund - This multi-year fund accounts for multi-year special revenues.

Automation Enhancement Fund - This fund accounts for ten percent (10%) of the fees collected, by
the County's Register of Deeds, pursuant to G.S. 161-10 and retained by the county, or three dollars
and twenty cents ($3.20) in the case of a fee collected pursuant to G.S. 161-10(a)(1a) for the first
page of a deed of trust or mortgage, which is set aside annually and placed in a nonreverting
Automation Enhancement (and Preservation) Fund, the proceeds of which shall be expended on
computer or imaging technology and needs associated with the preservation and storage of public
records in the office of the register of deeds.



Union County, North Carolina Schedule 11

Springs Fire District Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Current year levy $ 331,786 $ 337,950 $ 6,164 $ 317,335
Prior years' levy - 7,026 7,026 9,209
Penalties and interest - 2,126 2,126 2,551
Total 331,786 347,102 15,316 329,095
Local option sales tax 47,432 54,467 7,035 50,079
Total revenues 379,218 401,569 22,351 379,174
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public Safety 387,422 387,091 331 367,035
Revenues over (under) expenditures (8,204) 14,478 22,682 12,139
APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE 8,204 - (8,204) -
Revenues and appropriated fund
balance over expenditures $ - 14,478 $ 14,478 12,139
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year - July 1 26,691 14,552
End of year - June 30 $ 41,169 $ 26,691
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Union County, North Carolina

Waxhaw Fire District Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 12

REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Current year levy
Prior years' levy
Penalties and interest
Total

Local option sales tax
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Public Safety

Revenues over (under) expenditures

APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE

Revenues and appropriated fund
balance over expenditures

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
651,829 $ 671,119 $ 19,290 $ 642,549
- 16,748 16,748 15,899
- 3,063 3,063 4,052
651,829 690,930 39,101 662,500
92,689 109,801 17,112 72,254
744,518 800,731 56,213 734,754
776,386 775,515 871 683,167
(31,868) 25,216 57,084 12,139
31,868 - (31,868) -
- 25,216 $ 25,216 51,587
61,519 9,932
$ 86,735 $ 61,519
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Union County, North Carolina

Hemby Bridge Fire District Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 13

REVENUES

Ad valorem taxes
Current year levy
Prior years' levy

Penalties and interest

Total

Local option sales tax

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current

Public Safety

APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Revenues and appropriated fund
balance over expenditures

FUND BALANCE

Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
1,059,139 $ 1,075,268 $ 16,129 $ 1,026,794
- 16,471 16,471 19,249
- 3,871 3,871 4,730
1,059,139 1,095,610 36,471 1,050,773
153,742 179,054 25,312 163,886
1,212,881 1,274,664 61,783 1,214,659
1,266,035 1,264,433 1,602 1,162,301
(53,154) 10,231 63,385 52,358
53,154 - (53,154) -
- 10,231 $ 10,231 52,358
101,244 48,886
$ 111,475 $ 101,244
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Union County, North Carolina Schedule 14

Stallings Fire District Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Current year levy $ 917,991 $ 930,159 $ 12,168 $ 919,968
Prior years' levy - 12,946 12,946 13,458
Penalties and interest - 3,805 3,805 3,408
Total 917,991 946,910 28,919 936,834
Local option sales tax 136,349 154,596 18,247 135,750
Total revenues 1,054,340 1,101,506 47,166 1,072,584
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public Safety 1,100,460 1,099,024 1,436 1,020,566
Revenues over (under) expenditures (46,120) 2,482 48,602 52,018
APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE 46,120 - (46,120) -
Revenues and appropriated fund
balance over expenditures $ - 2,482 $ 2,482 52,018
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year - July 1 73,347 21,329
End of year - June 30 $ 75,829 $ 73,347
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Union County, North Carolina

Wesley Chapel Fire District Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 15

REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Current year levy
Prior years' levy
Penalties and interest
Total

Local option sales tax
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Public Safety
Revenues over (under) expenditures

APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE

Revenues and appropriated fund
balance over expenditures

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30
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2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 1,229,498 $ 1,263,846 $ 34,348 $ 1,239,292
- 15,480 15,480 18,838
- 3,610 3,610 4,879
1,229,498 1,282,936 53,438 1,263,009
181,171 209,358 28,187 170,257
1,410,669 1,492,294 81,625 1,433,266
1,429,282 1,427,808 1,474 1,396,397
(18,613) 64,486 83,099 36,869
18,613 - (18,613) -
$ - 64,486 $ 64,486 36,869
96,572 59,703
$ 161,058 $ 96,572



Union County, North Carolina

Fee Supported Fire Districts Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 16

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
REVENUES
Permits and fees $ 2,073,581 $ 1,973,377 $ (100,204) $ 1,819,978
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public Safety 2,073,581 2,057,966 15,615 1,785,108
Revenues over (under) expenditures $ - (84,589) $ (84,589) 34,870
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year - July 1 87,164 52,294
End of year - June 30 $ 2,575 $ 87,164
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Union County, North Carolina

Emergency Telephone System Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 17

REVENUES

Other taxes and licenses
911 system subscriber fees

Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current

Public Safety

Debt Service (S.L. 2010-158 Expenditures)
Principal retirement
Interest and fees

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Implemental functions
Repairs and maintenance

Training

Supplies and materials
Contracted services
Telecommunication services

Capital outlay
Contingency

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Transfers in (out)
General Fund

Revenues, other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other

financing uses

APPROPIATED FUND BALANCE

Revenues, other financing sources and
appropiated fund balanceover (under)
expenditures and other financing uses

FUND BALANCE

Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 1,004,522 $ 1,004,522 $ - $ 1,244,465
2,000 9,374 7,374 7,415
1,006,522 1,013,896 7,374 1,251,880
125,373 123,313 2,060 118,420
254,829 154,192 100,637 158,764
18,450 8,949 9,501 15,523
15,777 14,712 1,065 3,008
35,930 30,701 5,229 -
297,800 225,791 72,009 248,617
884,317 686,940 197,377 -
1,089 - 1,089 -
845,843 845,843 - -
268,506 268,164 342 -
2,747,914 2,358,605 389,309 544,332
(1,741,392) (1,344,709) 396,683 707,548
- 5,745 5,745 (686)
(1,741,392) (1,338,964) 402,428 706,862
1,741,392 - (1,741,392) -
$ - (1,338,964) $ (1,338,964) 706,862
2,935,561 2,228,699
$ 1,596,597 $ 2,935,561
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Union County, North Carolina

General Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Schedule 18

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Sales and services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Public Safety

Law Enforcement-federal forfeited prop.

Law Enforcement-controlled sub. tax

Homeland Security-Catawba Nuclear

Homeland Security-FY03 U.S. grant

Homeland Security-FY05 CERT grant
Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in

General Fund

Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total To Positive

Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
$ 651,001 $ 680,747 $ 15,901 $ 696,648 $ 45,647
15,000 75,000 15,000 90,000 75,000
46,285 50,100 2,964 53,064 6,779
717,002 925,266 94,375 1,019,641 302,639
1,429,288 1,731,113 128,240 1,859,353 430,065
839,465 435,360 40,393 475,753 363,712
317,958 196,312 41,475 237,787 80,171
30,575 32,107 2,592 34,699 (4,124)
380,683 380,683 - 380,683 -
18,500 7,582 - 7,582 10,918
1,587,181 1,052,044 84,460 1,136,504 450,677
(157,893) 679,069 43,780 722,849 880,742
157,893 169,124 - 169,124 11,231

$ - $ 848,193 43,780 $ 891,973 $ 891,973

848,193
S 891,973
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Union County, North Carolina Schedule 19

Automation Enhancement Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

2012
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Permits and fees $ 102,000 111,838 $ 9,838
EXPENDITURES
General Government 102,000 102,000 -
Revenues over expenditures $ - 9,838 $ 9,838
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year - July 1 -
End of year - June 30 $ 9,838
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Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of governmental resources for debt service
and capital outlay expenditures related to education.






Union County, North Carolina Schedule 20
Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011
2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Acutal (Negative) Actual
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out
General Fund $ (1,510,656) $ (1,510,656) $ - $ -
APPROPIATED FUND BALANCE 1,510,656 - (1,510,656)

Appropriated fund balance over (under)
other financing sources

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30
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(1,510,656)

1,510,656

$ (1,510,656)

1,510,656

_$ 1510656






Capital Project Funds

Capital Project Funds account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than
those financed by Proprietary Funds and Trust Funds.

General Capital Project Fund - This fund accounts for various capital improvement projects that will
be financed from General Fund resources, as well as general obligation and installment financing(s).

Library Capital Project Fund - This fund accounts for capital improvements to the main library and
satellite libraries within the County. These improvements are funded by transfers from the General
Fund, contributions and donations.

School Bond Fund-55 - This fund accounts for capital asset acquisition and construction for the
Union County Public Schools. These improvements are financed with intallment financing(s) and pay-
go transfers from the General Fund and the Debt Service Fund.



Union County, North Carolina

General Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Schedule 21

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
General Government
Government Facility Renovations
EECBG Facility Efficiency Improvements
Information Technology Infrastructure
Historic Post Office Roof Replacement
Garage Expansion
Public Safety
Law Enforcement-Jail Expansion
Law Enforcement-Jail Roof Replacement
Law Enforcement-Jail Control System
Law Enforcement-Firearms Range
Law Enforcement-FY2010 Capital
Law Enforcement-FY2011 Capital

Communications-EOC/E911/Fire Srv Reloc.

Communications-E911 CAD/RMS
Communications-Radio Project-Phase |
Communications-Radio Project-Phase Il
Inspections Department Mobile Office
Human Services
Social Services Business Automation Sys.
Cultural and Recreation
Parks & Recreation-J. Helms Park Ph.3
Parks & Recreation-North District Park
Parks & Recreation-West District/Comm
Parks & Recreation-C.C.Park-Store/Ck-In
Parks & Recreation-J. Helms Park-Bridge
Parks & Recreation-J. Helms Park-Passive
Education
School Capital Outlay-FY2008 Allocation
School Capital Outlay-FY2009 Allocation
School Capital Outlay-FY2010 Allocation
School Capital Outlay-FY2011 Allocation
School Capital Outlay-FY11 Capital Exp.
SPCC-Multi-Purpose Building
Total expenditures

Revenues under expenditures

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total To Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)

$ 1,251,800 $ 404,627 $ 382,433 $ 787,060 (464,740)
813,926 905,301 - 905,301 91,375
- - 16,363 16,363 16,363
2,065,726 1,309,928 398,796 1,708,724 (357,002)
14,839,179 9,602,364 1,643,637 11,246,001 3,593,178
751,800 228,686 369,121 597,807 153,993
774,000 145,383 54,936 200,319 573,681
150,000 - 7,150 7,150 142,850
267,438 - 15,980 15,980 251,458
4,882,900 1,812,629 - 1,812,629 3,070,271
605,727 16,317 506,248 522,565 83,162
467,675 - 347,769 347,769 119,906
1,855,665 1,198,367 7,315 1,205,682 649,983
1,115,895 1,090,706 - 1,090,706 25,189
886,747 780,605 68,050 848,655 38,092
593,500 24,550 - 24,550 568,950
369,771 127,972 - 127,972 241,799
9,796,366 9,786,929 - 9,786,929 9,437
1,475,143 1,316,823 - 1,316,823 158,320
123,400 - 95,791 95,791 27,609
1,280,802 - 223,146 223,146 1,057,656
1,403,407 1,395,472 - 1,395,472 7,935
15,000 2,500 - 2,500 12,500
15,000 2,500 - 2,500 12,500
29,789 29,789 - 29,789 -
715,496 532,684 36,736 569,420 146,076
1,303,946 262,188 13,881 276,069 1,027,877
11,000,000 10,980,616 19,383 10,999,999 1
4,625,558 4,625,415 143 4,625,558 -
2,344,169 2,335,694 8,475 2,344,169 -
1,303,552 1,156,272 100,903 1,257,175 46,377
202,396 - 202,396 202,396 -
900,000 900,000 - 900,000 -
64,094,321 48,354,461 3,721,060 52,075,521 12,018,800
(62,028,595) (47,044,533) (3,322,264) (50,366,797) 11,661,798
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Union County, North Carolina

General Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Schedule 21

(continued)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
General Fund
Debt Service Fund
Proceeds from general obligation bonds
Proceeds from installment financing debt
Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total To Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
$ 41,448,774 $ 51,695,899 $ 57,000,000 $ 108,695,899 $ 67,247,125
4,136,882 4,136,882 - 4,136,882 -
992,500 992,500 - 992,500 -
15,450,439 9,592,396 - 9,592,396 (5,858,043)
62,028,595 66,417,677 57,000,000 123,417,677 61,389,082
$ - $ 19,373,144 53,677,736 $ 73,050,880 $ 73,050,880
19,373,144
_$ 73,050,880
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Union County, North Carolina

Library Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Schedule 22

REVENUES
Miscellaneous

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Cultural and Recreation
South West Union Library Project

Revenues under expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
General Fund
General Capital Project Fund
Library Capital Reserve Fund
Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total To Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
$ 171,000 $ - $ - $ - $ (171,000)
3,685,500 51,333 - 51,333 3,634,167
(3,514,500) (51,333) - (51,333) 3,463,167
31,500 21,422 - 21,422 (10,078)
3,483,000 3,483,000 - 3,483,000 -
- 94,765 - 94,765 94,765
3,514,500 3,599,187 - 3,599,187 84,687
$ - $ 3,547,854 - $ 3,547,854 $ 3,647,854
3,547,854
$ 3,547,854
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Union County, North Carolina

School Bond Fund - 55

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Schedule 23

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total To Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment earnings $ 2,718,406 $ 2,718,405 $ - $ 2,718,405 (1)
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Education
Stallings ES (J) 14,901,066 14,901,067 - 14,901,067 1)
New Elementary School, Cox Rd area (N) 3,969,763 3,969,763 - 3,969,763 -
New Salem ES Additions/Renovations 2,945,159 2,945,158 - 2,945,158 1
Western Union ES Additions/Renovations 1,305,704 1,305,704 - 1,305,704 -
Monroe HS Arch., Constr., & Eng. Academy 485,067 485,067 - 485,067 -
Piedmont HS Additions/Renovations 5,324,807 5,120,476 204,330 5,324,806 1
Sun Valley MS Additions/Renovations 2,317,397 2,317,397 - 2,317,397 -
Sun Valley HS Additions/Renovations 294,974 294,974 - 294,974 -
Sun Valley HS land purchase 346,084 346,084 - 346,084 -
Mobile Classrooms (2006-2007) 2,316,048 2,316,048 - 2,316,048 -
Transportation/Maintenance Facility 1,793,434 1,793,434 - 1,793,434 -
School administrative costs 3,693,817 3,693,817 - 3,693,817 -
Category | - Mobile Units 1,664,775 1,664,774 - 1,664,774 1
Category | - Blitz projects 10,630,626 10,629,133 1,494 10,630,627 1)
Category | - Blitz projects' chillers 488,711 488,711 - 488,711 -
Category IIl - Buses 4,750,421 4,492,852 257,568 4,750,420 1
Bond savings/administration (2010) 3,216,117 2,754,114 462,003 3,216,117 -
Capital Expenditures (FY2011) 4,943,801 2,908,447 1,506,624 4,415,071 528,730
Contingency / inflation 381,996 - - - 381,996
Debt Service
Debt Issuance 2,292,955 2,292,955 - 2,292,955 -
Total expenditures 68,062,722 64,719,975 2,432,019 67,151,994 910,728
Revenues under expenditures (65,344,316) (62,001,570) (2,432,019) (64,433,589) 910,727
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Debt Service Fund 11,847,133 11,847,132 - 11,847,132 (1)
Transfers out
General Fund (1,357,002) (1,357,002) - (1,357,002) -
Proceeds from installment financing debt 54,854,185 54,854,184 - 54,854,184 (1)
Total other financing sources (uses) 65,344,316 65,344,314 - 65,344,314 (2)
Revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses $ - $ 3,342,744 (2,432,019) $ 910,725 910,725

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30
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$

3,342,744

910,725






Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the cost of providing goods and
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges; or where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of net income is
appropriate for accountability purposes.

Water and Sewer Fund - This fund accounts for the County’s water and sewer operations.
Solid Waste Fund - This fund accounts for the County’s solid waste operations.

Stormwater Fund - This fund accounts for the County’s stormwater program.






Union County, North Carolina

Water and Sewer Operating Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 24

REVENUES
Operating revenues
Water sales
Sewer sales
Other operating revenues
Total

Nonoperating revenues
Investment earnings
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Total

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Administration
Water system operationss
Water system maintenance and repairs
Sewer-county customers system operations
Sewer-county customers system maintenance and repairs
Sewer-Marshville/Monroe system operations
Sewer-Marshville/Monroe system maintenance and repairs
Nondepartmental
Contingency
Debt Service

General obligation bonds - principal

Revenue bonds - principal

State sanitary loan - principal

Interest and fees

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out
Water and Sewer Capital Project Fund
Stormwater Operating Fund

Capital contributions - cash

Proceeds from refunding revenue bonds

Proceeds from refunding revenue proceeds premium

Payments to refunded bonds escrow agent

Total other financing sources (uses)

Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other financing uses

APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE
Revenues, other financing sources

and appropriated fund balance over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive Actual
Budget Actual (Negative) (as restated)

$ 14,788,712 $ 13,819,950 $ (968,762) $ 14,346,887
11,462,045 11,544,855 82,810 11,286,356
671,536 696,395 24,859 687,961
26,922,293 26,061,200 (861,093) 26,321,204
500,000 347,513 (152,487) 678,688

- 60,618 60,618 58,780

500,000 408,131 (91,869) 737,468
27,422,293 26,469,331 (952,962) 27,058,672
4,422,770 3,877,013 545,757 3,807,196
3,942,516 3,792,158 150,358 3,601,006
2,307,752 2,190,896 116,856 1,886,770
3,784,170 3,402,487 381,683 3,501,115
2,227,490 1,818,862 408,628 1,697,801
550,899 654,654 (103,755) 589,145
249,454 210,365 39,089 211,583
2,472,925 - 2,472,925 -
100,029 - 100,029 -
548,425 548,425 - 1,501,838
2,695,000 2,695,000 - 2,575,000
983,697 983,697 - 983,697
4,288,659 3,361,120 927,539 3,041,377
28,573,786 23,534,677 5,039,109 23,396,528
(1,151,493) 2,934,654 4,086,147 3,662,144
(1,773,671) (4,186,445) (2,412,774) (2,937,125)
(271,224) (158,410) 112,814 (179,807)
1,779,806 3,542,788 1,762,982 2,194,508
34,385,000 34,397,500 12,500 -
2,049,355 2,035,424 (13,931) -
(38,731,500) (38,665,789) 65,711 -
(2,562,234) (3,034,932) (472,698) (922,424)
(3,713,727) (100,278) 3,613,449 2,739,720
3,713,727 - (3,713,727) -
$ - $ (100,278) $ (100,278) $ 2,739,720
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Union County, North Carolina Schedule 25

Water and Sewer Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total To Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
REVENUES
Nonoperating revenues
Intergovernmental $ 2,132,498 $ - 0% 164,734 $ 164,734 $ (1,967,764)
Investment earnings 4 17,818 - 17,818 17,814
Total revenues 2,132,502 17,818 164,734 182,552 (1,949,950)
EXPENDITURES
Administration capital outlay
Government Facility Renovations 1,386,276 1,136,276 - 1,136,276 250,000
Expand Operations Center 94,000 37,709 11,680 49,389 44,611
Comp. Water/W astewater Master Plan 870,000 850,012 19,988 870,000 -
Water and Sewer Capital Outlay
Misc. Water Line Replacement 246,266 - - - 246,266
Misc. Water Hwy 84 24" Line Relocation 229,162 29,162 - 29,162 200,000
Misc. Water Resource Model On-Call Srv 65,000 61,171 - 61,171 3,829
Misc. Water Hemby Bridge Main Replace. 386,216 380,791 5,426 386,217 1)
Misc. Water 42" Water Main Relocation 688,000 32,636 16,255 48,891 639,109
Misc. Water 762 Zone Trans. Main (Bypass) 73,800 - 72,975 72,975 825
Misc. Sewer Rehab | & | 40,016 - - - 40,016
Misc. Self Help: Contingency 90,111 - - - 90,111
Misc. Self Help: Oak Brook 193,587 191,587 - 191,587 2,000
Misc. Self Help: Cyrus Lee Lane 61,747 62,751 - 62,751 (1,004)
Misc. Self Help: Polk Mountain 207,285 208,284 - 208,284 (999)
Misc. Self Help: Wellington Woods | 138,441 139,988 - 139,988 (1,547)
Misc. Self Help: Lake Providence East 117,748 97,974 266 98,240 19,508
Misc. Self Help: Greyland 159,079 120,149 344 120,493 38,586
Misc. Self Help: Wellington Woods Il & Ill 253,203 238,577 583 239,160 14,043
W ater capital outlay
CRWTP Reservoir Expansion 4,477,207 2,593,957 478,534 3,072,491 1,404,716
CRWTP Expansion 2,640,000 370,492 22,472 392,964 2,247,036
Northern Union County Water 519,510 237,455 104,164 341,619 177,891
Bulk Water Stations 23,936 19,148 - 19,148 4,788
Dodge City Water 171,198 26,763 144,459 171,222 (24)
Hwy 74/75 Pump Station Generator 345,000 - - - 345,000
W eddington Elevated Storage Tank 3,190,000 298,745 48,154 346,899 2,843,101
Sewer capital outlay
East Side Improvements 8,447,421 715,310 2,760,374 3,475,684 4,971,737
Hunley Creek Off Line 1,443,102 1,443,102 - 1,443,102 -
IBT Permitting 27,578 27,578 - 27,578 -
12M Creek Beneficial Re-Use 1,777,650 115,980 - 115,980 1,661,670
Future 12M Creek WW TP Expansion 2,450,000 319,037 237,437 556,474 1,893,526
12M WWTP Phosphorus Removal 2,931,137 2,910,295 1,850 2,912,145 18,992
12M WWTP Odor Control 5,249,780 5,045,202 (58,969) 4,986,233 263,547
Tallwood WW TP Replacement 2,454,960 165,220 802,802 968,022 1,486,938
Olde Sycamore WWTP Replacement 360,000 10,293 301,502 311,795 48,205
12M Creek Sewer Diversion to CMUD 4,671,285 347,023 1,708,706 2,055,729 2,615,556
Total expenditures 46,479,701 18,232,667 6,679,002 24,911,669 21,568,032
Revenues under expenditures (44,347,199) (18,214,849) (6,514,268) (24,729,117) 19,618,082

Continued on next page.
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Union County, North Carolina

Water and Sewer Capital Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Schedule 25
(continued)

Actual
Variance
Project Prior Current Total To Positive
Authorization Years Year Date (Negative)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers from other funds:
General Fund $ 616,911 $ 500,000 $ -8 500,000 $ (116,911)
Water and Sewer Operating Fund 19,320,643 40,151,448 4,186,445 44,337,893 25,017,250
Capital contributions - cash 2,028,802 2,167,064 941,441 3,108,505 1,079,703
Proceeds from revenue bonds 22,380,843 19,705,565 - 19,705,565 (2,675,278)
Total other financing sources 44,347,199 62,524,077 5,127,886 67,651,963 23,304,764
Revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures $ - $ 44,309,228 $ (1,386,382) $ 42,922,846 $ 42,922,846

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30
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Union County, North Carolina

Water and Sewer Fund
Schedule of Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis (Non-GAAP)
to Full Accrual Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Sc

hedule 26

Revenues and other financing sources over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses
Operating Fund
Water and Sewer Capital Project Fund
Total

Reconciling items
Amortization of G.O. bond and Revenue bond defeasance
Amortization of G.O. bond, Revenue bond and State
sanitary sewer loan issuance costs
Amortization of G.O. and Revenue bond premium
Amortization of G.O. and revenue bond gains and (losses) on refunding
Amortization of Revenue bond discount
Refunding revenue bond proceeds
Refunding revenue bond premimum
Payment of refunding revenue bonds to escrow agent
Refunding revenue bond issuance costs
Capitalized interest
Payment of debt principal
Decrease in compensated absences payable
Decrease in interest expense accrual
Decrease in inventories
Increase in allowance for uncollectible accounts
(Increase) decrease in net pension obligation
(Increase) decrease in net other post employment benefit obligation
Investment derivatives gains
Capital outlay
Acquisition payments on intangble asset - water rights
Gain on investment in joint venture
Loss on disposal of land
Net book value of capital assets disposed of
Capital contributions
Depreciation
Total

Change in net assets
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2011
2012 (As restated)
$ (100,278) $ 2,739,720
(1,386,382) (3,048,068)
(1,486,660) (308,348)
(75,429) (189,594)
(86,011) (79,574)
95,182 44,521
(107,066) (3,837)
(1,073) (11,220)
(34,385,000) -
(2,035,424) -
38,665,789 -
583,864 -
203,978 70,315
4,227,122 5,060,535
44,816 10,537
25,874 24,574
(193,615) (145,845)
(106,077) (115,814)
1,337 (16,841)
(216,695) 20,193
97,783 428,809
6,618,804 5,336,794
146,510 138,413
46,878 1,362,848
- (83,442)
(6,981) -
2,030,103 1,578,828
(10,761,635) (10,636,480)
4,813,034 2,793,720
$ 3,326,374 $ 2,485,372




Union County, North Carolina

Solid Waste Operating Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 27

REVENUES
Operating revenues
Solid waste charges
Disposal fees
Other operating revenues
Total

Nonoperating revenues
Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Administration
Solid waste landfill and satellite collections
Law enforcement litter patrol
Nondepartmental

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in

Solid Waste Capital Reserve Fund

Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures

APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE
Revenues, other financing sources

and appropriated fund balance over
(under) expenditures

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
$ 3,543,384 $ 3,779,757 $ 236,373 $ 3,497,310
266,698 372,658 105,960 344,414
9,000 10,583 1,583 10,362
3,819,082 4,162,998 343,916 3,852,086
62,000 44,923 (17,077) 60,138
3,881,082 4,207,921 326,839 3,912,224
636,259 581,159 55,100 365,596
5,805,416 3,543,281 2,262,135 3,573,405
78,917 73,684 5,233 72,788
20,765 - 20,765 -
6,541,357 4,198,124 2,343,233 4,011,789
(2,660,275) 9,797 2,670,072 (99,565)
2,361,000 33,770 (2,327,230) -
(299,275) 43,567 342,842 (99,565)
299,275 - (299,275) -
$ - $ 43,567 $ 43,567 $ (99,565)
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Union County, North Carolina Schedule 28

Solid Waste Reserve Capital Fund
Schedule of Expenditures

For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out
Solid Waste Operating Fund $ (2,361,000) $ (33,770) $ 2,327,230 $ -
APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE 2,361,000 - (2,361,000) -
Appropriated fund balance
(under) other financing uses $ - $ (33,7700 % (33,770) $ -
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Union County, North Carolina

Solid Waste Fund
Schedule of Reconciliation of Budgetary Basis (Non-GAAP)
to Full Accrual Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 29

Revenues and other financing sources over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses
Operating Fund
Capital Reserve Fund
Total

Reconciling items:
(Increase) decrease in compensated absences payable
Decrease in inventories
Increase in accrued landfill postclosure care costs
(Increase) decrease in allowance for uncollectible accounts
(Increase) decrease in net pension obligation
(Increase) decrease in net other post employment benefit obligation
Capital outlay
Depreciation
Total

Change in net assets
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2012 2011
43,567 (99,565)
(33,770) -
9,797 (99,565)
(8,264) 11,315
(85,026) (40,088)
(2,910) 13,670
187 (2,147)
(56,954) 4,622
24,202 7,490
(170,808) (171,936)
(299,573) (177,074)
(289,776) (276,639)




Union County, North Carolina Schedule 30

Stormwater Operating Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
EXPENDITURES
Administration $ 377,034 $ 145,318 $ 231,716 $ 192,388
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
Water and Sewer Operating Fund 367,034 158,410 (208,624) 179,807
Other financing sources over (under)
expenditures (10,000) 13,092 23,092 (12,581)
APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE 10,000 - (10,000) -
Other financing sources and appropriated
fund balance over (under) expenditures $ - $ 13,092 $ 13,092 $ (12,581)
Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to full
accrual basis
Other financing sources over (under) expenditures $ 13,092 $ (12,581)
Reconciling items:
(Increase) decrease in compensated absences payable (91) 5,042
(Increase) decrease in net pension obligation 31 (597)
Decrease in net other post employment benefit obligation - 89
Depreciation (3,361) (4,481)
Total (3,421) 53
Change in net assets $ 9,671 $ (12,528)
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Internal Service Funds

The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department to other departments of the County on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Health Benefits Fund - This fund accounts for amounts from individual departments and employees
to pay health benefit costs.

Workers’ Compensation Fund - This fund accounts for amounts from individual departments to pay
workers’ compensation claims.

Property and Casualty Fund - This fund accounts for amounts from individual departments to pay
property and casualty claims and premiums.



Union County, North Carolina Schedule 31

Health Benefits Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
(Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
REVENUES
Operating revenues
Interfund charges and employee contributions $ 9,590,905 $ 10,713,854 $ 1,122,949 $ 9,802,677
Miscellaneous revenue - 53,607 53,607 -
Total 9,590,905 10,767,461 1,176,556 9,802,677
Nonoperating revenues
Investment earnings 4,266 (865) (5,131) 22,088
Total revenues 9,595,171 10,766,596 1,171,425 9,824,765
EXPENDITURES
Operating expenditures
Health benefit claims and premiums 8,966,722 10,171,895 (1,205,173) 8,780,862
Other operating expenditures 828,972 757,747 71,225 769,415
Total expenditures 9,795,694 10,929,642 (1,133,948) 9,550,277
Revenues over (under) expenditures (200,523) (163,046) 37,477 274,488
APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE 200,523 - (200,523) -
Revenues and appropriated fund
balance over (under) expenditures $ - $ (163,046) $ (163,046) $ 274,488
Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to
full accrual basis
Revenues over (under) expenditures $ (163,046) $ 274,488
Reconciling items:
Decrease in health benefit claims payable 160,300 10,821
Change in net assets $ (2,746) $ 285,309
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Union County, North Carolina

Workers' Compensation Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
(Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 32

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
REVENUES
Operating revenues
Interfund charges $ 402,808 $ 388,398 $ (14,410) $ 408,744
Insurance reimbursement 250 22,843 22,593 20,200
Total 403,058 411,241 8,183 428,944
Nonoperating revenues
Investment earnings 1,650 (7,248) (8,898) 1,666
Total revenues 404,708 403,993 (715) 430,610
EXPENDITURES
Operating expenditures
Workers' compensation claims 349,485 153,863 195,622 348,135
Other operating expenditures 130,815 109,897 20,918 195,436
Total expenditures 480,300 263,760 216,540 543,571
Revenues over (under) expenditures (75,592) 140,233 215,825 (112,961)
APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE 75,592 - (75,592) -
Revenues and appropriated fund
balance over (under) expenditures $ - $ 140,233 $ 140,233 $ (112,961)
Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to
full accrual basis
Revenues over (under) expenditures $ 140,233 $ (112,961)
Reconciling items:
(Increase) decrease in workers' compensation claims payable (100,212) 183,167
Change in net assets $ 40,021 $ 70,206
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Union County, North Carolina Schedule 33

Property and Casualty Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
(Non-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

2012 2011
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
REVENUES
Operating revenues
Interfund charges $ 750,482 $ 656,827 $ (93,655) $ 593,091
Insurance reimbursement - - - 810
Total 750,482 656,827 (93,655) 593,901
Nonoperating revenues
Investment earnings 2,647 1,753 (894) 2,960
Total revenues 753,129 658,580 (94,549) 596,861
EXPENDITURES
Operating expenditures
Property and casualty claims and premiums 753,129 656,827 96,302 593,091
Revenues over expenditures $ - $ 1,753 $ 1,753 $ 3,770
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Fiduciary Funds

Trust Funds account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity. Agency Funds account for
assets held by the County as an agent for individuals or other governments.

Pension Trust Fund

Special Separation Allowance Fund - This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for the
payment of special separation benefits to qualified County employees.

Other Postemployment Retiree Healthcare Benefits (OPEB) Fund - This fund accounts for the
accumulation of resources for the payment of retirees' healthcare benefits to qualified County
employees.

Agency Funds

Social Services Fund - This fund accounts for monies held by the Department of Social Services for
the benefit of certain individuals.

Fines and Forfeitures Fund - This fund accounts for fines and forfeitures collected by the County
that are required to be remitted to the Union County Public Schools Board of Education.

Jail Inmate Fund - This fund accounts for monies held by the Union County Sheriff's Office (Jail) for
the benefit of certain individuals.

Monroe and Union County School District Funds - These funds account for the proceeds of the
special tax levies that are collected by the County on behalf of these school districts.

Municipal Tax Collection Fund - This fund accounts for the proceeds of taxes that are collected by
the County on behalf of the municipalities within the County.

Deed of Trust Fee Fund - This fund accounts for the five dollars of each fee collected by the register
of deeds for registering or filing a deed of trust or mortgage and remitted to the State Treasurer on a
monthly basis.

Gross Rental Receipts Tax Fund - This fund accounts for the proceeds of municipalities that levy a
local tax on gross receipts derived from the short-term lease or rental of vehicles at retail to the
general public, which are collected by the County on behalf of the municipalities within the County.

Department of State Treasurer Motor Vehicle Tax Fund - This fund accounts for interest collected
on unpaid registration fees pursuant to G.S. 105-330.4, transferred on a monthly basis to the North
Carolina Highway Fund for technology improvements within the Division of Motor Vehicles.



Union County, North Carolina

Special Separation Allowance Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Fiduciary Net Assets - Pension Trust Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 34

2012
REVENUES
Operating revenues
Employer contributions $ 723,890
Investment earnings 8,779
Total revenues 732,669
EXPENSES
Operating expenses
Employee benefits 1,030,192
Revenues under expenses (297,523)
NET ASSETS
Beginning of year-July 1 912,024
End of year-June 30 $ 614,501
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2011

$ 564,349
1,771
566,120

1,008,141
(442,021)

1,354,045
$ 912,024



Union County, North Carolina

Other Postemployment Retiree Healthcare Benefits (OPEB) Fund
Schedule of Revenues and Changes in
Fiduciary Net Assets - Pension Trust Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Schedule 35

2012
REVENUES
Operating revenues
Employer contributions $ 4,132,943
Investment earnings 58,397
Total revenues 4,191,340
NET ASSETS
Beginning of year-July 1 4,182,906
End of year-June 30 $ 8,374,246
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2011

$ 2,930,712
215,317
3,146,029

1,036,877
54,182,906



Union County, North Carolina Schedule 36

Agency Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Balance Balance
June 30, 2011 Additions Deductions June 30, 2012
SOCIAL SERVICES
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 63,970 $ 330,569 $ 345,519 $ 49,020
LIABILITIES
Due to program participants $ 63,970 $ 330,569 $ 345,519 $ 49,020
FINES AND FORFEITURES
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ - $ 874,088 $ 784,625 $ 89,463
Accounts receivable (net) 61,153 - 61,153 -
Total assets $ 61,153 $ 874,088 $ 845,778 $ 89,463
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 61,153 $ 812,935 $ 784,625 $ 89,463
JAIL INMATE FUND
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 40,323 $ 354,206 $ 360,792 $ 33,737
LIABILITIES
Due to program participants $ 40,323 $ 354,206 $ 360,792 $ 33,737
MONROE SCHOOL DISTRICT
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ - $ 4,409 $ 4,409 $ -
Property taxes receivable (net) 14,632 - 3,650 10,982
Total assets $ 14,632 $ 4,409 $ 8,059 $ 10,982
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 14,632 $ 4,409 $ 8,059 $ 10,982
UNION COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 96 $ 9,980 $ 9,374 $ 702
Property taxes receivable (net) 49,752 - 8,846 40,906
Total assets $ 49,848 $ 9,980 $ 18,220 $ 41,608
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 49,848 $ 9,374 $ 17,614 $ 41,608
MUNICIPAL TAX COLLECTION
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 212,511 $ 3,065,969 $ 3,100,319 $ 178,161
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 212,511 $ 3,065,969 $ 3,100,319 $ 178,161

Continued on next page.
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Union County, North Carolina Schedule 36
(continued)

Agency Funds

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

Balance Balance
June 30, 2011 Additions Deductions June 30, 2012
DEED OF TRUST FEE FUND
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 3,475 $ 10,010 $ 13,485 $ -
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 3,475 $ 10,010 $ 13,485 $ -
GROSS RENTAL RECEIPTS TAX FUND
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 2,144 $ 108,730 $ 108,312 $ 2,562
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 2,144 $ 108,730 $ 108,312 $ 2,562

DEPT. OF STATE TREASURER MOTOR VEHICLE TAX FUND

ASSETS

Cash and investments $ 7,777 $ 95,808 $ 95,733 $ 7,852
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 7,777 $ 95,808 $ 95,733 $ 7,852

TOTALS - ALL AGENCY FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 330,296 $ 4,853,769 $ 4,822,568 $ 361,497
Property taxes receivable (net) 64,384 - 12,496 51,888
Accounts receivable (net) 61,153 - 61,153 -
Total assets $ 455,833 $ 4,853,769 $ 4,896,217 $ 413,385
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 351,540 $ 4,107,235 $ 4,128,147 $ 330,628
Due to program participants 104,293 684,775 706,311 82,757
Total liabilities $ 455,833 $ 4,792,010 $ 4,834,458 $ 413,385
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Additional
Financial Data

This section contains additional information on property taxes.
Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable - General Fund

Analysis of Current Tax Levy - County-wide Levy



Union County, North Carolina Schedule 37

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable - General Fund
June 30, 2012

Uncollected Additions Collections Uncollected
Fiscal Balance and and Balance

Year June 30, 2011 Adjustments Credits June 30, 2012
2012-2013 $ - $ 190,161 $ 119,735 $ 70,426
2011-2012 13,606 155,144,776 152,028,139 3,130,243
2010-2011 3,602,323 (57,745) 2,241,459 1,303,119
2009-2010 1,547,666 (25,377) 542,496 979,793
2008-2009 952,269 (6,006) 231,240 715,023
2007-2008 493,213 (12,874) 175,679 304,660
2006-2007 289,778 (13,166) 16,460 260,152
2005-2006 152,159 (10,939) 7,170 134,050
2004-2005 108,242 (2,028) 11,164 95,050
2003-2004 81,347 (588) 6,108 74,651
2002-2003 58,800 (144) 3,241 55,415
2001-2002 42,036 (206) 41,830 -

$ 7,341,439 $ 155,205,864 $ 155,424,721 7,122,582
Less: Releases on 2012-2013 registered motor vehicles (1,999)
Less: Allowance for uncollectible ad valorem taxes receivable (1,920,891)
Ad valorem taxes receivable (net) $ 5,199,692

Reconcilement with revenues
Taxes - ad valorem $ 156,545,802

Reconciling items

2012 tax prepayments 119,735
Write-offs per statute of limitations 39,246
Write-offs of uncollected 2007 motor vehicle tax 109,072

Recognition of previously collected 2011-2012 ad valorem
taxes on annually registered vehicles 284,021
Collections in advance (441,945)
Interest, advertising cost recovery and garnishments (1,185,182)
Foreclosure fees and overpayments 242
Collections on written off motor vehicle amounts (46,262)
Motor vehicle tax refund adjustment 9
Adjustment 1
Total reconciling items (1,121,081)
Total collections and credits $ 155,424,721
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Union County, North Carolina Schedule 38
Analysis of Current Tax Levy
County-wide Levy
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012
County-wide Total Levy
Property
excluding
Registered Registered
Property Valuation Rate Amount of Levy Motor Vehicles Motor Vehicles
Original Levy
Property taxed at current year's rate 22,795,368,465 .6650 $ 151,585,700 $ 144,464,061 $ 7,121,639
Motor vehicles taxed at prior year's rate 606,751,940 .6650 4,034,900 - 4,034,900
Motor vehicles taxed at prior year's rate 416,886 .6650 2,772 - 2,772
Motor vehicles taxed at prior year's rate 8,220 .6650 55 - 55
Total 23,402,545,511 155,623,427 144,464,061 11,159,366
Discoveries
Property taxed at current year's rate 349,227,903 .6650 2,074,832 1,982,519 92,313
Total 349,227,903 2,074,832 1,982,519 92,313
Abatements
Property taxed at current year's rate 356,279,164 .6650 2,553,483 2,304,422 249,061
Total 356,279,164 2,553,483 2,304,422 249,061
Total property valuation 23,395,494,250
Net levy 155,144,776 144,142,158 11,002,618
Add: Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2011 13,606 15,187 (1,581)
Less: Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2012 (3,130,243) (2,258,481) (871,762)
Total collections and credits for 2011-2012 $ 152,028,139 $ 141,898,864 $ 10,129,275
Percent current year collected 97.99% 98.44% 92.06%
SECONDARY MARKET DISCLOSURES
County-wide
Property Amount
Valuation Rate of Levy
Assessed valuation
Assessment ratio 100%
Real property 20,092,153,689
Personal property 1,297,412,614
Public service companies 351,398,876
21,740,965,179  .6650 $ 144,142,158
Personal property-motor vehicles 1,047,352,025 .6650 6,964,891
Personal property-motor vehicles 606,751,940 .6650 4,034,900
Personal property-motor vehicles 416,886 .6650 2,772
Personal property-motor vehicles 8,220 .6650 55
1,654,529,071 11,002,618

Total

In addition to the county-wide rate, the following table lists the levies by the county on behalf of school

23,395,494,250

districts and fire protection districts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012:

School districts
Fire protection districts
Total

$ 213
4,345,654
S 4345867
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Statistical Section

The information presented in this section is provided for additional analysis purposes only and has not
been subjected to audit verification as presented.

Financial Trends - These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
government's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Net Assets by Component Table 1
Changes in Net Assets Table 2
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds Table 3
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds Table 4

Revenue Capacity - These tables contain information to help the reader assess the government's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Assessed Value of Taxable Property Table 5
Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property Table 6
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments Table 7
Construction Information Table 8
Principal Property Taxpayers Table 9
Property Tax Levies and Collections Table 10

Debt Capacity - These tables present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
government's current levels of outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue additional debt
in the future.

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type Table 11
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding Table 12
Legal Debt Margin Information Table 13
Pledged Revenue Coverage per Revenue Bond Indenture - Table 14

Water and Sewer Bonds
Pledged Revenue Coverage - Water and Sewer Bonds Table 15
Demographic and Economic Information - These tables offer demographic and economic

indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the government's financial
activities take place.

Demographic and Economic Statistics Table 16
Principal Employers Table 17
Operating Information - These tables contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader

understand how the information in the government's financial report relates to the services the
government provides and the activities it performs.

Full-time Equivalent Governmental Employees by Table 18
Function/Program
Operating Indicators by Function/Program Table 19

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program Table 20
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30
Tax Year
Taxes Levied by Union County
County-wide rate
Supplemental School Districts
(Approved by the Voters)
Monroe Schools District
County Schools District
Supplemental Fire Districts
Hemby VFD
Springs VFD
Stallings VFD
Waxhaw VFD
Wesley VFD
Total County Rates
Maximum
Minimum
Average

Union County, North Carolina
Property Tax Rates

Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 7

Overlapping Taxes Levied by Municipalities

City of Monroe
Downtown Monroe District
Town of Fairview

Town of Hemby Bridge
Town of Indian Trail
Town of Marshville

Town of Mineral Springs
Town of Mint Hill

Town of Stallings

Town of Unionville

Town of Waxhaw

Town of Weddington
Town of Wingate

Village of Lake Park
Village of Marvin

Village of Wesley Chapel

176

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
4705 .53 .525 .56 .6367 .7111 .665 .665 .665 .665
.07 .07 .07 .07 - - - - - -

.07 .07 .07 .07 - - - - - -
.0376  .036 .0427  .0404 .0464 377 .0493 .0493 .0476 .0493
- - - - .0313 .0312 .0306 .0306 .03 .0315
.0342 .0392 .0492 .039 .0444  .0262 .0406  .0406 .0428 .0428
- - - - .0413  .0513 .0248  .0248 .037 .0372
- .017 .014 .015 .0152  .0167 .0191 .0191 .022 .022
5781 .6392 .6442 .6704 .6831 1.0881 .7143  .7143 7126  .7143
5405 .6 .595 .63 .6367 .7111 .665 .665 .665 .665
5593 6196 .6196  .6502 .6599  .8996 .6897  .6897 .6888  .6897
5 5 .48 49 .53 .55 495 495 .555 .555
.2 2 .2 2 2 .2 2 2 2 2
.02 .02 .02 .02 .02 .02 .02 .0151 .02 .02
.05 .05 .03 .03 .03 .03 .025 .025 . .

.08 .08 .08 .08 A .15 .15 .145 .145 .145
.38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 .38 A1 41
.03 .03 .03 .027 .027 .027 .025 .025 .025 .025
- 275 .275 275 275 .275 .215 275 .275 27
.14 .16 .25 .25 .25 .25 .22 .215 .215 215
.02 .02 .02 .02 .02 .02 .02 .02 .02 .02
.37 37 .34 .34 .34 .34 .34 .34 .34 .34
.05 .04 .04 .03 .03 .03 .03 .03 .03 .03
4 .36 .36 .36 .38 .39 .39 .39 .39 .39
.18 .22 .22 .22 .23 .23 .21 .23 .23 .23
.0517 .0517 .052 .0517 .05 .05 .05 .05 .05 .05
.02 .02 .02 .02 .02 .02 .017 .0165 .0165 .0165



Table 8
Union County, North Carolina
Construction Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(in thousands of dollars)

Commercial Residential

Construction Construction
Fiscal Number Number
Year of Units Value of Units Value
2003 295 $ 67,040 3,643 $ 398,515
2004 312 130,596 4,060 517,127
2005 498 146,370 4,678 687,386
2006 573 184,705 5,247 837,557
2007 601 162,927 4,432 752,637
2008 472 268,061 2,638 356,472
2009 409 105,730 1,725 148,101
2010 278 51,858 1,759 118,588
2011 210 56,050 1,537 134,358
2012 232 66,330 1,829 178,837
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Table 15
Union County, North Carolina
Pledged Revenue Coverage
Water and Sewer Bonds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Net Revenues

Available for Revenue Bond

Fiscal Current Debt Debt Service

Year Revenues Expenses Service Principal Interest Coverage
2003 $ 26,044,846 $ 9,414,336 $ 16,630,510 $ 490,000 $ 1,016,033 11.04
2004 23,087,628 9,838,861 13,248,767 1,515,000 1,897,226 3.88
2005 28,258,771 10,426,862 17,831,909 1,570,000 1,917,927 5.11
2006 38,155,925 14,310,599 23,845,326 1,610,000 1,806,213 6.98
2007 41,922,974 15,502,443 26,420,531 2,055,000 1,690,682 7.05
2008 37,772,552 15,299,134 22,473,418 2,070,000 1,650,738 6.04
2009 28,969,915 15,460,067 13,509,848 2,080,000 1,758,514 3.52
2010 28,473,735 15,236,732 13,237,003 2,525,000 2,304,920 2.74
2011 29,346,454 16,397,633 12,948,821 2,575,000 2,261,739 2.68
2012 30,976,060 16,476,867 14,499,193 2,695,000 2,115,493 3.01
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Union County, North Carolina
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 16

Personal
Income Capita Sales (5)
Fiscal Population (thousands Personal School Unemployment (thousands
Year (1) of dollars) (2) Income (2) Enrollment (3) Rate (4) of dollars)
2003 138,355 $ 4,019,969 $ 27,868 25,680 5.8% $ 1,425,656
2004 143,869 4,414,219 29,145 27,031 5.2% 1,458,866
2005 150,737 4,987,416 31,013 28,815 4.8% 1,537,435
2006 159,800 5,619,235 32,570 31,580 4.2% 1,099,352
2007 169,262 6,216,320 33,641 34,564 4.1% 1,217,491
2008 182,360 6,676,075 34,470 37,110 5.5% 1,200,307
2009 191,514 6,552,283 33,003 38,554 11.0% 1,162,891
2010 196,322 6,912,014 34,184 39,366 10.1% 1,076,852
2011 201,292 n/a n/a 39,900 9.6% 1,122,433
2012 205,717 n/a n/a 40,359 8.6% 1,197,951
Sources:
Q) Source: North Carolina State Demographic Unit
2) United States Dept of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
3) Amounts for fiscal years 2002-2006 use final ADM estimates provided by the State Board of
Education and DPI. Amounts shown for fiscal years 2007-2012 are estimated by the
School System.
4) North Carolina Employment Security Commission
The data for the Fiscal Years 2003-2010 in the table above is the annual average unemployment rate. The data
for Fiscal Years 2011-2012 in the table above is the July unemployment rate.
5) North Carolina Department of Revenue

The data for the Fiscal Years 2003-2005 in the table above sets forth gross retail sales. Beginning July 1, 2005,
the North Carolina Department of Revenue began to compile information only for taxable retail sales in

compliance with the Streamlined Sales Tax Agreement. In North Carolina, certain sales (for example, qualifying
food items) are not subject to sales tax.
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Governmental activities:

General government
Board of Commissioners
Central Administration
Internal Audit
Legal
Personnel
Finance
Tax Administration
Elections
Register of Deeds
Information Systems (and GIS)
General Services

Public safety
Law Enforcement (and AC)
Communications
Homeland Security
Fire Services
Inspection

Economic and physical development
Planning
Economic Development
Cooperative Extension
Soil Conservation

Human services
Public Health
Social Services
Transportation and Nutrition
Veterans' Services

Cultural and recreational
Library
Parks and Recreation

Sub-total

Business-type activities:
Water and Sewer
Solid Waste
Stormwater

Sub-total

Total

Full-time Equivalent Employees by Function / Program

Union County, North Carolina

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

Table 18

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
7.7 7.2 8.2 8.2 8.2 8.1 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.1
1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 3.1 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.5
6.1 6.0 6.0 6.0 7.0 8.0 7.0 7.0 6.0 6.0

10.0 10.2 9.2 9.2 10.2 10.2 9.0 8.0 8.0 8.0
45.9 46.2 47.8 51.8 51.8 56.3 445 445 425 42.5
10.4 10.8 10.9 11.6 11.6 10.3 10.3 13.4 12.0 18.8
10.3 11.3 11.3 12.5 12.5 135 12.0 12.0 9.0 9.1
12.0 12.0 12.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0
14.4 13.7 13.7 13.0 11.0 115 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0
176.6 191.2 217.6 218.7 234.6 242.2 248.6 261.6 261.1 262.3
21.5 30.4 35.6 45.8 44.7 45.7 41.4 41.4 41.4 42.1
3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 4.0 4.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
55 6.0 6.0 6.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
29.0 29.0 28.0 28.0 28.0 27.5 16.0 16.0 12.0 12.0
5.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 5.0 6.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0
2.0 2.0 - - - - - - - -
10.0 10.0 10.0 12.0 12.0 12.5 11.0 11.0 11.0 10.0
3.0 3.0 3.0 2.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
100.8 91.2 93.5 97.5 102.6 104.7 101.7 100.0 100.2 93.2
185.3 191.4 1911 194.1 199.6 199.7 200.4 200.4 197.4 188.1
22.2 27.9 28.1 30.0 30.1 31.0 30.0 30.3 30.9 30.0
2.5 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.5
55.0 64.2 65.1 64.5 65.9 66.0 55.7 55.7 56.2 54.6
23.6 23.4 23.4 25.4 27.4 27.9 26.9 23.7 23.7 23.7
770.6 805.9 839.3 866.1 896.0 914.0 865.5 876.1 862.7 852.4
88.6 89.1 89.1 94.2 99.3 109.1 92.8 93.6 94.0 93.6
20.4 21.8 21.6 21.6 21.7 21.5 20.6 20.8 20.4 18.8
- 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1
109.0 112.2 112.0 117.1 122.3 132.7 115.4 116.4 116.4 114.4
879.6 918.1 951.3 983.2 11,0183 1,046.7 980.9 992.5 979.1 966.8
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Table 19
Union County, North Carolina
Operating Indicators by Function / Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
General Government:
Personnel
Number of full-time employees 743 796 825 844 879 977 921 933 910 899
Number of part-time employees 142 145 151 174 223 67 55 55 49 56
Elections
Number of registered voters 78,567 82,305 92,313 97,003 102,969 113,057 119,538 123,132 125,401 129,821
Information Systems (and GIS)
Number of people in system 581 814 1,120 1,169 1,226 1,282 1,234 1,232 1,214 1,230
General Services
Number of vehicle service requests 883 877 970 643 549 1,077 1,093 990 1,040 1,031
Public safety
Fire Services
Number of volunteer fire personnel 485 500 525 610 640 645 560 560 550 550
Inspection
Number of inspections 3,529 4,025 4,585 5,100 4,347 713 1,341 1,070 1,201 2,057
Human services
Public Health
Number of patients 14,238 14,592 16,171 13,085 9,371 13,939 13,657 18,350 13,426 11,952
Number of visits 32,061 31,920 32,300 29,779 33,507 29,026 31,745 36,857 25,907 23,869
Social Services
Number of client visits n/a 34,194 34,452 n/a 37,824 44,446 52,953 55,102 56,601 57,985
Transportation and Nutrition
Number of trips 54,475 63,996 68,023 73,345 73,725 85,199 87,929 85,907 86,067 78,156
Congregate, home delivered and 96,622 88,716 81,034 92,491 96,359 107,034 96,117 86,772 82,324 71,276
supplemental meals
Veterans' Services
Number of visitors 3,363 3,204 3,583 4,096 4,417 3,197 3,049 2,820 3,431 3,178
Number of phone calls 5,718 5,996 7,841 8,356 8,329 8,685 8,246 9,880 11,155 11,907
Cultural and recreational
Library
Number of volumes 194,105 180,193 214,212 200,740 229,812 219,255 210,457 216,363 228,169 225,174
Education
Number of licensed employees 1,543 1,672 2,233 2,455 2,593 3,631 2,990 2,585 2,834 2,555
Number of students 25,680 27,031 28,815 31,580 34,564 36,952 38,554 39,366 39,900 40,359

Business-type Activities:
Water and Sewer
Average daily consumption in 6,621 7,272 7,062 8,870 11,840 9,617 8,659 9,395 11,420 11,280
gallons (in 000's)
Number of water service connections 24,823 26,564 28,922 32,629 36,276 38,192 38,913 39,320 39,710 41,147
Number of sewer service connections 15,546 17,028 19,246 22,732 26,113 27,040 27,432 27,760 28,452 29,110

Source: Various county departments
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General Government:
Tax Administration
Number of tax parcels
Elections
Number of precincts
Public safety
Law Enforcement (and AC)
Number of stations
Number of patrol units
Fire Services
Number of stations-main
Number of stations-sub
Cultural and recreational
Library
Number of libraries
Parks and Recreation
Number of parks
Number of acres in parks
Number of acres in lakes
Education
Number of schools
Number of classrooms

Business-type activities:
Water and Sewer
Number of fire hydrants
Miles of water mains
Miles of sewer mains

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Union County, North Carolina
Capital Asset Statistics by Function / Program

Table 20

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

86,059 85,885 97,078 98,640 102,639 105,714 106,749 107,406 107,287 108,297
44 46 49 51 50 50 50 52 52 52
8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

219 236 245 267 295 308 301 314 309 318
18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18
7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
5 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 3 4
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
1,317 1,317 1,317 1,317 1,290 1,290 1,290 1,290 1,290 1,290
350 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 350
34 34 36 40 44 48 53 53 53 53
1,126 1,201 1,316 1,440 1,540 2,139 2,322 2,322 2,322 2,322
2,465 2,490 2,530 2,680 3,700 3,850 4,280 4,490 4,559 4,579
560 585 610 650 700 726 759 963 972 980
330 439 450 465 500 539 592 606 606 607

Source: Various county departments
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POTTER & COMPANY, PA.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Union County, North Carolina
Monroe, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Union County, North
Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprises the County's basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 13, 2012. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Union County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Union County’s internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of Union County’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the County’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be a material
weakness, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Union County’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of Union County, in a separate letter dated
November 13, 2012.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity, members
of the board of commissioners, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

November 13, 2012 2% &
Monroe, North Carolina
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POTTER & COMPANY, PA.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE
TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133
AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Union County, North Carolina
Monroe, North Carolina

Compliance
We have audited Union County, North Carolina, compliance with the types of compliance requirements

described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental
Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the County’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. Union
County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of
Union County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Union County’s compliance
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.
Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Union County’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination on Union County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Union County complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred
to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012.
However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those
requirements, which are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the State
Single Audit Implementation Act, and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
guestioned costs as items [12-1] and [12-2].

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Union County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs.
In planning and performing our audit, we considered Union County’s internal control over compliance with
the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
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express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to
be significant deficiencies as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
items [12-1] and [12-2]. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Union County’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the County’s response and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity, members

of the board of commissioners, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

November 13, 2012 ?0% ¢ (""f’?

Monroe, North Carolina
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POTTER & COMPANY, PA.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR STATE
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE
SECTIONS OF OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
Union County, North Carolina
Monroe, North Carolina

Compliance
We have audited Union County, North Carolina, compliance with the types of compliance requirements

described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local
Government Commission, that are applicable to each of its major State programs for the year ended June
30, 2012. Union County’s major State programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major State programs is the responsibility of
Union County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Union County’s compliance
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; applicable sections of OMB Circular A-
133, as described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single
Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, and the State
Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on a major State program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about Union County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Union County’s
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Union County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major State programs for the year ended June
30, 2012. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those
requirements, which are required to be reported in accordance with applicable sections of OMB Circular A-
133 and the State Single Audit Implementation Act and which are described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs as items [12-1] and [12-2].

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Union County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to State programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered Union County’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133 and the
State Single Audit Implementation Act, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
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County’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
State program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to
be significant deficiencies as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
items [12-1] and [12-2]. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
State program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Union County’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the County’s response and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization,

members of the board of commissioners, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

November 13, 2012 2% ¥ é,yp;

Monroe, North Carolina
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Union County, North Carolina

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Schedule 39

Section I.

Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
e Material weakness(es) identified?

e Significant deficiency(s) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted

Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:
e Material weakness(es) identified?

e Significant deficiency(s) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses

yes X no

yes X none reported

yes X no

yes X no

X yes no

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required

to be reported in accordance with Section
510(a) of Circular A-133

Identification of major federal programs:

CFEDA Numbers Name of Federal Program

yes X no

93.778 Title XIX — Medicaid

93.568 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Block Grant

93.563 Child Support Enforcement
93.044, 93.045, 93.667 Aging Cluster

81.128 Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B Programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

199

_$ 3,000,000

X yes no



Union County, North Carolina Schedule 39
(continued)

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Section .  Summary of Auditors’ Results (continued)

State Awards
Internal control over major State programs:

e Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

e Significant deficiency(s) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses X yes no

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with the State Single
Audit Implementation Act yes X no

Identification of major State programs:

Program Name

State/County Special Assistance for Adults
Public School Building Capital Fund

Rural Operating Assistance Program (ROAP)

The only other major State programs for Union County are Title XIX — Medicaid and the Aging Cluster.
Therefore, these programs have been included in the list of major federal programs above.

Section Il — Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Section Il — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding: 12-1

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

Criteria: Signed application for assistance and Notice of Transportation Rights forms should be signed
and filed upon initial receipt of benefits for the Title XIX — Medicaid Program.

Condition: During our testing, it was noted that a file selected was missing the signed application form
and the form for Notice of Transportation Rights were not completed and maintained in the Medicaid
record.

Effect: Proper records were not maintained in the Medicaid record.

Cause: The caseworker did not follow-up on the completeness of all necessary paperwork in the case
record.

Recommendation: All case records should be reviewed upon initial eligibility for benefits as well as
during the re-application process, to make sure all necessary forms are included.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: The County agrees with this finding.
Caseworkers will review case records upon initial eligibility and re-application for benefits to ensure all
necessary forms are maintained.
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Union County, North Carolina Schedule 39
(continued)

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Section Il — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)

Finding: 12-2

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

Criteria: Court order establishing the agreement for support should be signed and filed for the Child
Support Enforcement Program.

Condition: During our testing, it was noted that a file selected was missing the court order establishing
the agreement for support was not completed and maintained in the Child Support Enforcement record.

Effect: Proper records were not maintained in the Child Support Enforcement record.

Cause: The caseworker did not follow-up on the completeness of all necessary paperwork in the case
record.

Recommendation: All case records should be reviewed upon initial eligibility for benefits as well as
during the re-application process, to make sure all necessary forms are included.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: The County agrees with this finding.
Caseworkers will review case records upon initial eligibility and re-application for benefits to ensure all
necessary forms are maintained.

Section IV — State Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding: 12-1

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

See above detail in Section Il — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding: 12-2

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

See above detail in Section Il — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
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Union County, North Carolina Schedule 40

Corrective Action Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Section Il — Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Section Il — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding: 12-1
Name of contact person:

Corrective Action:

Proposed Completion Date:

Finding: 12-2
Name of contact person:

Corrective Action:

Proposed Completion Date:

Suzanne Moose, Interim Social Services Director
Medicaid caseworkers will review case records upon initial eligibility
and re-application for benefits to ensure that all necessary forms are

maintained.

The above corrective action will be implemented immediately.

Suzanne Moose, Interim Social Services Director
Child Support Enforcement caseworkers will review case records upon
initial eligibility and re-application for benefits to ensure that all

necessary forms are maintained.

The above corrective action will be implemented immediately.

Section IV — State Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding: 12-1
Name of contact person:

Corrective Action:

Proposed Completion Date:

Finding: 12-2
Name of contact person:

Corrective Action:

Proposed Completion Date:

Suzanne Moose, Interim Social Services Director
Medicaid caseworkers will review case records upon initial eligibility
and re-application for benefits to ensure that all necessary forms are

maintained.

The above corrective action will be implemented immediately.

Suzanne Moose, Interim Social Services Director
Child Support Enforcement caseworkers will review case records upon
initial eligibility and re-application for benefits to ensure that all

necessary forms are maintained.

The above corrective action will be implemented immediately.
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Union County, North Carolina Schedule 41

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Finding: 11-1

Status: Corrected.

203



"abed 1xau uo panunuo)

YEY'28E - EY'28E #TET0000S-3d 82118 welbold 1uelo %00|g uoeAlssuo) pue Aousioyg Abisug
:AB1au3 jo Juswuedaqg
ADHINT 40 LNINLHVYd3A 'S'N
89T'168'S 8ST'ET0'T 07T0'8/8'% a1 nouby Jo Juswuedsq 'S'N [e10L
T2S'766'S 908'G. ST.'8T6'E U¥eaH 2l|gnd JO UOISIAIQ S9VIAISS UewnH pue yieaH 4o 1dag "O°'N ybnoiy)-passed [ejo L
808°LE£2'E - 808'L€2'E 1GS°0T ualpiyD pue sjuejul ‘uUswomn
110} weibold uonuinN [esws|ddns erads
'sluawiAed 1yauag 10a1Qq
686'CT 912 €L1'CT OC-40.G6-2VET 18501 Buesuno) 1ead Buipaad jsearg-uaipjiyd pue sjueju| ‘USWON
v€6'C - €62 Or-3045-2veT 1GS°0T Bulasuno) Jsad Buipaa- 1sealg-uaip|iyd pue Slueju| ‘USWOMN
89G'6T 088 889'8T 09-6075-¢VET 1SS°0T Buipsad 1seaig-uaip|iyd pue sjuejul ‘USWOMN
G/6'v - G/6'v g49-60175-CVET /18501 Buipsa- 1seaig-uaIp|iyd pue Ssiuejul ‘USWOM
zre'6Y L€€'S GL6'EY 09-GS0VS-¢VET 1SS°0T uonensiulWpy-usIpiiyDd pue sjuejul ‘uswom
Trr'vT - Trv've 949-501S-¢VET /18G°0T uones|ulWpY-uaIp|iyD pue sjueju] ‘UsWo
€08'S0¢ 6v9'ce YST'E8T 09-70VS-¢VET /G507 uoiednp3 UoRLINN-USIPIIYD pue sjueju| ‘UswWwom
898'0S - 89895 49-V0vS-¢VveET /SS°0T uolyeanp3 uonuINN-UaIpIIYD pue sjueju] ‘UsWOoN
88/'GTE vel'oy ¥90'69¢ 09-E0VS-¢VET /G507 SIS JUBIID-UBIPIIYD pue Sjueju| ‘USWOM
GE0'VL - GE0'VL g949-€0VS-¢VET 1GS°0T SBIIAIDS JUBI[D-UBIP|IYD PUE SJUBjU| ‘UBWION
weiboid uonunN [eyuaws|ddns erpads
:uonensIuIWpY
‘UyresH algnd Jo uoisinig
1S90IAIBS UewWNH pue yieaH Jo uawyedad "D'N ybnoiyl-passed
1¥9'968'T 2S€'LE6 562'656 J181sn|D dwels poo4 :$80IAI8S UBWINH pue yieaH jo juswiedad "O°N ybnolyi-passed [ejoL
¥¥0'998'T 2GE°/€6 269'826 195°0T weibold VNS 8y) 10} siuels Bulyorepy sanensiuiwpy a1e1s
2.E'6 - 2.E'6 T9G'0T uonualay daAnuddU| ysed - dvNS
9/0'02 - 9002 TSS°0T uonuaiey (do1) weiboid 19Syo xel
SST'T - GST'T TSS0T uonualey (HOQ) enuanay o wawedsq
131SND (dVYNS) Weibold 90uelsissy UoninN [eyuawaddns
:uoneasIuIWpY
:S92IAISS [B190S JO UoISIAIQ
1S90IMIBS UewnH pue yiesH Jo uawyedad "D'N ybnoiyl-passed
S3JIMISS UONINN pue poog
FINLTNIOM™EOV 40 INJANLEVLIA SN
009'GT $ - $ - $ 009'ST ¥20°'St sfenplAipuj 1o suoieziuehiQ 01 Sluei9-SUY a8y} JO UoNOWOoId
1SOMPIN SHY YyBnoiy)-passed
S1dV JHL 404 SINIWMOANI TVYNOILVYN
SAYVMY vd3a3d
salnipuadx3 salnpuadx3 salnipuadx3 salnipuadx3 JaquinN JaquinN 3111 Wweibold/louels ybnolyl ssed/louels
el [eaoT arels (ybnouy1-ssed s Jojuels va4o
pue 10811Q) ybnouy-ssed jelapad
[esopa

Zv 9INpayos

ZT0Z '0€ dUNC papul JeaA auy) 4o
spremy 91eis pue [elapa4 Jo sainipuadx3 J0 8|Npayos
'ulj0e) YuoN ‘Alunod uoiun

204



‘abed 1xau uo panunuo)

S9v'8LY - 208'€C £99'vSh Ja1sn|o Buiby :Buiby uo uonensiuIPY €10 L
T68'8LT - €886 800'69T SY0'€6 S92IAIBS uoNuUINN
O 111 dpL-Buiby 8y Joy sweiboid [eoads
860°2€C - TE6'CT L9T'612 ¥70°€6 18)U8) J0IUBS pue S82INIBS dAoddns o) sjuelD
g 111 apiL-Buiby sy 1oy sweibold enads
86v'GE - 886 0TS'vE 199°€6 9plY SWOH Uj-juel9 X00|g S9DIAISS [e100S
8/6'TE - - 8/6'TE €350°€6 welbold 9AIUSdU| SBOIAISS UOHLINN
a1sn|D Bulby
:SJUBWIUIBAO0D) JO [19UNOD BUIRUSD YBnoiyl-passed
1S92IMIBS NPy pue Buiby Jo uoisinig
:Buiby uo uonensuIwWpy
S3AJINGIS NVINNH ANV HLTVIH 40 LINJNLHVYd3A 'S'N
SEV'T6V 889'8Y €'Ge €0V’ L0Y uoirenodsuel] Jo Juswuedaq "S'N €101
282'TL - - 282'TL 61-G¢¢6E-vA-d1S G-G0¢°0¢ yoreasay pue Bujuueld sreis
Zv6've - 886'Y 756'6T [-6666-4 T-502°02 uoponssuod pue Buluueld AemybiH
€99'9/T 899'/T G99'/T 0eE'TVT fended 680-10-2T 605°0C Sesly paziueqin ueyl JIsylO 10} sjuelo einwio4
G92'€8T z6v'L2 €9T'6 0T9'9YT ulwpy 680-10-2T 60502 Sealy paziueqin uelyl Jsyi0 1o} siuelo einwioH
€82'Ge 827G’ 825’ 122'82 fended 680-10-TT 605°0C Sealy paziueqin ueyl JIsylQ 10} sjuelo einwio4
:uonrenodsuel ] jo Juswuedaqg
:uopeyodsuel ] jo Juswyedaq "D ‘N ybnolyi-passed
uoneASIuIWPY Nsuel] [elapa-
NOILV1HOdSNVdL 40 INJNLHVd3a 'S'N
9€9'61 - - 9€9'6Y 6.T.E-TTOC-O9dN3T Zv0°'L6 souelsIssy Juswabeue Aousbiawg
Juswabeuely Aousbiawl Jo uoIsIAIQ
:A1vjes aljgnd pue [04u0D awl) Jo uswiedaq D ‘N ybnolyi-passed
ALIIND3S ANVI1INWOH 40 LNINLHVd3A 'S'N
YEL'YIT - - YE€L'VIT 6102-0-60 822'vT el >ooig Juswdopasg Anunwwod
90UB)SISSY ANUNWIWOD JO UoISIAIQ
:90JaWwwWo) Jo wawredaq "D "N ybnoiyl-passed
IN3INJOT3IAIA NVEdN ANV ONISNOH 40 INJN1LdVd3d 'S'N
12v'621 - - 12V'621 2ansn( Jo swedsqg SN €10l
€0€'92 - - €0E'92 G§62-¢X-dra-1Ttoe 8€L9T JURIS) 82UBISISSY S0NSN[ [RLOWSN duAlg premp3
0€6'16 - - 0E6'T6 T¢v-0X-9dVv-TT0C 90991 welboid doUBISISSY UBIY [RUILILD B)elS
76T'TT $ - $ - $ 76T'TT $ 6€£02-500-TX-9Ng-110Z L0991 welboid diysisuned 1saA Jooid 19|Ing
90UB)SISSY 921ISN( JO Neaing :2ansnr Jo Juswedaq
JOI1LSNC 40 LNINLHVd3A 'S'N
(@3INNILNOD) SAYVMY Tvy3a3d
salnipuadx3 salnpuadx3 salnipuadx3 salnipuadx3 JaquinN JaquinN 3111 Wweibold/louels ybnolyl ssed/louels
el [eaoT arels (ybnouy1-ssed s Jojuels va4o
pue 10811Q) ybnouy-ssed jelapad
[esopa

(panunuoo)
Z¥ 8Inpayos

2T0Z ‘0€ dUNC papul JeaA auy) 1o
spremy 91eis pue [elapa4 Jo sainipuadx3 J0 8|Npayos
'ulj0e) YuoN ‘Alunod uoiun

205



abed 1xau uo panunuo)d

098'6T - - 098'6T 7,9°€6 spund [euomisue. | /BUIAI] Juspuadapul-SHNIT
zev'ee - 989'% 9v.'8T v/.9°€6 SHUNIT
8817'96 2eT've - 99¢e'cL Sv9°€6 [eroads-buiuue|d Aousuewad
T6E'S 8ve'T - €V0'y G79°€6 JIeinbay-buluue|d Aousueuad
:S9JIAIBS alej|Ia M\ PIIYD
vee's 90€'T - 8T6'C TL9°€6 SINIBS UONUBABI pue S2UB|OIA Ajlwed
86.'V - - 86.'Y 99G5°€6 SluaWwAed auag 10a11g-a0urlsISSy aabnjey
(g9) - (z1) (ev) 095°€6 sanjeusd ® siuswked 0a4y
SjuswWAed 1auag 10a1q
225'S60' GG9'8EL - 198'9S€'T €956 juswaolojug uoddns piyo ON
1/€'G99' 799'06T'T €0€ 0T¥'891'C 131SN|D 4NVL [ejoL
621'896 621'896 - - 89G5°€6 9JINIBS 1S11I4 HI0M
§62'T2C §62'T2C - - 8GS'€6 uonensiuiwpy 1sii4 310\
§9¢'/¢e - - §9¢g'/e 895°€6 BJUB|0IA dlisswod ANV.L
G6.'S0V'T - - G6.'SOV'T 8GG'€6 S8JINISS ANV L
£€5'892 - - €€5'892 89G5°€6 uonensiuiwpy 4NV.L
€0€ - €0g - VIN SSAIIUIdU| ANV L
1S6'€LL ove'L - LT.'99L 8GG'€6 SawAed 1yauag 10811 - 1S4 HOM/ANYL
NEISle) AH_Z<.C EEIEE] >waZ 10} 9duelsIssy Em‘_OQEm._.
89G'6517'C 0v.'29. 18€'T.C Lyv'Sev'T 181sn|Q uondopy pue a1ed 181so4 [elo L
/GT'2S9 162'VTT 162'VTT €95'cer 659°€6 siuawhed Jyauag 10811g-10pusA pue Apisgns uondopy 3-Al
0TS'TVT GG/'0L - GG'0L 659°€6 Buurel | uondopy feuondo 3-Al 9piL
199 797 - €61 659°€6 Buiures) uondopy 3-Al apiL
€0.'9/9 €90 682'G6 TGE'8€EE 8G9°€6 S8JINISS 9AI108101d PIIYD I-Al
89/ 19¢ - T10S 859°€6 11l 19797 Xe 81D 191S04 Ajiwe 3-Al
¥8T'6 68T'E - G66'G 859°C6 Xel\ 81eD 181504 Ajwed 3-Al
2IT'T 8.¢ 8/¢ 998 859°€6 12D 01 pred Aunod uiwpy 3-Al
G8E'86T 2TS've 00v've €Lv'62T 8G9°€6 S$S90X3 U] 8Je) 181s04 3-Al il L
T - - T 859°€6 2Je) 181S04 J-Al 9ilL - VHIVY
676'GST 2lT'le 11T'/2 099'T0T 8G9°€6 8le) 18IS04 I-Al 9L
L1€'6TS 889'65¢ - 689'65¢ 899°€6 Buurel | 19210 81€D 18IS04 T-Al BIL
68T'0E VA% WA - zv9'ee 8G9°€6 Buiures] sre)d 181s04 3-Al SpIL
€56'S - - €56'S 99G5°€6 uonenIasald Ajiues
€877'/9 $ 808'T $ - $ G/9'G9 $ 8GS'€6 areD J181so4/uondopy
:181Sn|D uondopy pue ared 131so4
'S9JIAIBS UBWNH pue yjjesH Jo Emr:tmawﬁ_ ‘O°N cm:o‘_r:._umwmm&
'S9IIAISS [eI120S JO UOISIAIQ
:saljiwe pue uaip|iyD Joj uonensiuiwupy
(@3NNILNOD) SADIAYTS NVINNH ANV HLTVIH 40 INJN1LIVHIA 'S'N
(@3NNILNOD) SAYVMY Tvd3d34
sainypuadx3y sainypuadx3y salnypuadx3y sainypuadx3y JagquinN JagquinN a1 weiboid/iouel ybnoiy | ssed/ioiuelo
felol [eo0] aeIs (ybnouy]-ssed s,Jojuel va4do
pue 10811Q) ybnoiy]-ssed [esapa
|lelopa4q

(panunuoo)
Z¥ 8Inpayos

2T0Z ‘0€ dUNC papul JeaA auy) 1o
spremy 91eis pue [elapa4 Jo sainipuadx3 J0 8|Npayos
'ulj0e) YuoN ‘Alunod uoiun

206



abed 1xau uo panunuo)d

8/T'95v'9T €G7'€98'C 80€'8€T'Z LTV vSy'TT saljiwe pue usIp|IyD 1o} UORASIUIWPY [e10 L
102'8T¥'9 - LET'18L'T 0/0'TE9'Y 1a1sn[o ared plyd pazipisgns [elo L
9vz'ze - - 9ve'zee G)-/T8T-08€T 859°€6 areD 181s04 -Al
8T6'TT6 - - 8T6'TT6 181sn[0 81ed piIyd 4NVL [e10L
¥00'v8 - - ¥00'78 97-0vLT-24T vIL€6 dems vyuv 4ANV.L
¥16'228 - - ¥16',28 Z1-0T8T-08€T 8G5°€6 ared piyd 4ANVL
1121SN|D a1ed plIyD (ANVY.L) saljiwe Apasp Joy aouelsissy Alelodwa |
EV0'v8Y'S - LET'/8L'T 906'969'€ 181sn|o pund uswdojarsq a1ed pliyd [eloL
6€6'8LC - - 6€6'8.¢ 965°€6 uonessiuWpY-pun4 JuswdojeAsd ared piyd
'S9JIAISS [BI00S JO UOISIAIg
€9G'0€T - €9G'9€T - 91-0T8T-08€ET VIN 1043 JO ddURUURI )e)S 31eD pPlIyD
zv9'9le - Zr9'9L€ - NL-07.T-T8ET V/IN dNV1 Ueis Jews- uswdojaasq a1ed piyo
0Lv'z - 0L¥'C - Ov-0v.T-T8ET VIN HeIS pews- uswdojeAsq el pIyd
6GY'€6E - 651'€6€ - AA-OVLT-T8ET VIN Yore arels-pund juswdojpasd ared piiyo
156'S2T - 156'S2T - GA-OPLT-T8ET VIN Yore erels-pund juswdojeasd ared piyod
G6T'TEE - S6T'TEE - 00-ZT8T-08€T V/IN Buipund ayels-pund juswdojpreg ared pliyd
165'2€2 - v61'28 €0T'SST TA-0TST-08€T 965°€6 YoreN-pun4 Juswdoansq ared pliyo
GLL'6EL - 068952 526'28Y AA-0T8T-08€ET 965°€6 Yore-pund wswdojaasq ased pliyo
€96'0€2 - 105'T8 96 67T 9A-0T8T-08€T 965°€6 YoreN-pund Juswdojansq ared pliyo
826'2T9 - - 826'219 dIN-0T8T-08€T 965°€6 Kioyepuey-pund juswdojanreg ared pliyo
8.2'18 - - 8/2'18 NIA-0T8T-08€T 965°€6 Kiorepuey-pund uswdojare@ ared pliyo
€E8'TTIT'T - - €E8'TTIT'T g1-0T8T-08€T G/G°€6 Areuona10siq 4002 0} NV.L- pund JuswdojpAasq a1ed piiyd
€2e'9/2 - - €2€'92 MQ-0T8T-08€T G/G°€6 Areuonsosi@- pund wswdojaasq a1ed pIyo
Tv0'L - - 0L 1d-0T8T-08€T G/G°€6 Areuonalosi@- pund uswdojaasq ased pliyo
080'T¥S - - 080'TYS AQ-0T8T-08€T G/G°€6 Areuons1osi@- pund wswdojaaeq a1ed pIyo
u:mEQo_mSmD PIIYD JO uoisinig
191sn|D pun4 HC®EQO_®>wD aled plyo
a1sn| ared pIyd pazipisans
S9OIAI9S UeWNH pue yeaH Jo awuedaq "D'N ybnoiyr-passed
T/6',€0°0T €G7'€98'C T/T'TSE /¥€'€28'9 S9IIAIS [B100S JO UOISIN] [e10.L
06€'SEY 768°L0T 9619z Zv0'T0E 199°€6 Buiurer | pue s921AI8S 1BUIO - 9SS
1€2'v€ 6558 - 8.,9'S2 199°€6 S8OIAIBS [eUOISSB)0Id B1eD Aed INpY - 9SS
962'72 1€0'E 6GG'ET 00L'L 199°€6 09 1810 ared Ae@ ynpy - 9SS
86.'G9 Gzez's 86.'7€ §LL'22 199°€6 areD Ae@ Inpy - 94SS
€96'9L 029'6 - EVE'L9 199°€6 pung S82IAIBS BWOH U] - 9SS
88.'20L - - 88.'20. 89G5°€6 welBold UoRUBAIBIU| SISLID
zTL 682'T - (€L9) 895°€6 SjuswiAed auag 10811g-siuswihed souessissy Abisu3
28T1'228 $ - - $  z8T'zee 89G°€6 uonesiuWpyY
‘JuRI9 X00|g 9oue)sIssy ABlaug awWoH awoou| Mo
(@3INNILNOD) STDIAGIS NVINNH ANV HLTVIH 40 INFJWLIVdId SN
(@3NNILNOD) SAYVMY Tvd3d34
sainypuadx3y sainypuadx3y salnypuadx3y sainypuadx3y JagquinN JagquinN a1 weiboid/iouel ybnoiy | ssed/ioiuelo
el [e207] arels (ybnouy]-ssed s,Jojuels va4do
pue 10811Q) ybnoiy]-ssed [esapa
|lelopa4q

(panunuoo)
Z¥ 8Inpayos

2T0Z ‘0€ dUNC papul JeaA auy) 1o
spremy 91eis pue [elapa4 Jo sainipuadx3 J0 8|Npayos
'ulj0e) YuoN ‘Alunod uoiun

207



abed 1xau uo panunuod

¥8L'2vT'T 0S¥'8T0'T - YEE'VTT |o1ju0D 8sessiq Joj sigua) [e10 ]|
GTG'GT - - GTG'ST £3-3TE9-TEET 892°¢6 uonadYy uonezZiunww|
€96'/8¢€ G60'85€ - 898'62 £3-ATE9-TEET 892°€6 uondY uoeZIUNWW|
SLv'ov £V8'C - z€9'/€ 03-0892-¥92T 690°€6 ssaupa.edald Aousblaw3 yiesH olgnd
102 - - 10L'C N3-0892-792T 690°€6 ssaupaledald Aousblaw3 yiesH oand
8v0'€C 11221 - T..'0T VM-A09e-ETET €82°€6 el wsisiolg UsSWOo AN 3SIM
€e8'T - - €e8'T VM-O09€-ETET €82°€6 JuRID WSLIS0Ig USWOA 8SIM
G/8'89 STO'6Y - 098'6T M3-30T€-02ET €82'€6 1aoueD [edAI9) % Iseald
S08'T - - G08'T Y3-A0TE-02ET €82'€6 1aoueD [edInB) % Iseald
v - - ve L0-00€€-T.2T €82'€6 20UBISISSY [21UY23 | pue suoielinsanul uonuasld
6ST'TCT 06€'6TT - 69L'T MM-A0YS-TSST €82°€6 S0UBISISSY [e21UYd3 | pue suonebnsanul uonuaald
08€'6.7 0£8'9.% - 0SS'e 071-V098-8THT ITL'€6 SUONOBJU| PaYeI0SSY d1edyeaH Bunusnaid - YHYY
‘Yl[esH 2ljqnd Jo uoisinig
'S9JIAI9S UBWINH pue yeaH Jo uawuedaq "D'N ybnoiyl-passed
j0nuoD aseasiq 1o} s1aua)
62€'96L'TVT 7€8'258'T GS0'66T 61 ovv'vi.'06 S9OINIBS PIEdIPaIA pue dIedIpajy J0} S19IUdD [e10 L
206'LYY'TET 622'9 8¢8'ses' Ly S¥8'G06'€8 8//'€6 (€ @10N) weiboid douelsissy [edIpaN
:sjuswiAed nauag 10a1q
/S0'8ST 96.'€S 920'62 §ee's. OTTT 8//'€6 (€ @10N) weiboid douelsissy [edIpaN
129'16C - ¥28'v6 16/1'96T 811°€6 (€ 210N) weiboid 92UBlSISSY [eIPaN
8.1°€6 weibold aouelsSISSY [edIpajA
:90UEBISISSY [BJIPSA JO UOISIAIQ
677.'868'6 608'¢6.'T //€'6ES'T €95'995'9 S82IAIBS [B100S JO UOISIAI] [e10 ]
1802209 - 608'28Y'T 8L2'V6S'Y 19.°€6 (€ 810N) 82104yD YeaH "O'N-weibold saueInsu| s,usipyo sreis
sjuswiAed auag 10a1q
€0v'0ET Sye'se ZIr'9 9v.'86 19/'€6 (€ 810N) 82104yD YeaH "O"N-weibold saueInsu| s,usipiyo sreis
861'66 6v.'6Y - 67,67 8.1°€6 uonessiuiWpY uoienodsuel] [edIPsN
LE€9'TTT 606'L¢ - 8cL'e8 8//'€6 Bunaidisiu d210yoUeaH/[edIPBIN
95T'682'€ 8/5'VV9'T - 8/5'V¥9'T 8//°€6 (€ 910N) uonESILILPY SOUEISISSY [BIIPSN
9zz'oe - €TT'ST ETT'ST 8LL°€6 (€ 810N) uoIsuedx3 aoueBlSISSY [edIpa
ZrL'09T $  8ze'sy $  Ev0'SE $  T.€'08 $ 8/1°€6 [eroadsauswabeuey 9seD SWOH 818D JNpY
:uonensiuiwpy
:S9IIAISS [BI100S JO UOISIAI
'S92INI9S UeWNH pue yyeaH jo uawuedaq "O'N ybnoiyi-passed
:S9IIAISS PIEdIPSIN pue aIedlpa 1o} S1sua)
(@3INNILNOD) SADIAYIS NVINNH ANV HLTV3H 4O INFJW1LIVdad SN
(@3NNILNOD) SAYVMY Tvd3d34
sainypuadx3y sainypuadx3y salnypuadx3y sainypuadx3y JagquinN JagquinN a1 weiboid/iouel ybnoiy | ssed/ioiuelo
el [e207] arels (ybnouy]-ssed s,Jojuels va4do
pue 10811Q) ybnoiy]-ssed [esapa
|lelopa4q

(panunuoo)
Z¥ 8Inpayos

2T0Z ‘0€ dUNC papul JeaA auy) 1o
spremy 91eis pue [elapa4 Jo sainipuadx3 J0 8|Npayos
'ulj0e) YuoN ‘Alunod uoiun

208



"abed 1xau uo panunuo)

9GE'GET - 9GE'GET - V-I-TTL0-06 VIN weiboid diysiauped a20sn [euILD
:SUONY81I0D ANUNWWOD 4O UOISIAIG
SNOILO3IHHOD 40 LNJNLHVd3d 'O'N
T29'6LT - T29°6LT - VN saleiqI ljaNnd O PIY d1eIS
:Areiqi erels jo uoising
S30dNO0S3Y TVHNLTND 40 LNINLHVYL3A 'O'N
SAYVMYV 31VLS
6T9'6V7.'0LT TET'992'0T GG8'9/V TS €€9'900'60T spleme [elapa) [e10 |
000°'02 - - 000°'02 oTesy el Buluueld v1S1
$80IN0SaY [_ANND 40 Wawuedad "D’'N ybnoiyl-passed
(V.LS7) s1ov ABojouyda | 7 s8dInIas Arelqr
SIDINGES AdVHdIT ® WNISNIN 40 ILNLILSNI'S'N
260°'L - - 260°'L | 8L 1T0°6€ wiojay uonds|3
:Suonda|3 Jo preog a1eIS "O°'N ybnoiyl-passed
10V 810/ BoLBWY djgH
NOISSINWOD FONVLSISSY NOILO313 'S'N
€60'86G'€9T G82'702'6 TIS' TV 1S 162'256'20T SIAIBS UBWINH pue y)esH Jo juswiedad 'S "N [eloL
LE€'vel'e 815691’ 91€'08 [ aZA uonensIuIWLPY S82IAIBS pue S80IN0SaY YieaH [e10 ]
ger'e - L9V'T 9S6'T dVv-120S-T22T 766°'€6 1uel9 X20|g S8dIAIBS HOIN-UYIeaH PIIyD
991'T - 8¢9 8€8 dV-TSES-T.LCT 766°€6 uBI9 %20|g S30INISS HOW-UYIESH PIIYD
€S6'7€2'T 9T.'/6T'T 096'ST 112'T2 dv-Sv/.S-TLCT 766°€6 1uelI9 X20|g Sa2IAIBS HOIN-UYIeaH PIIyD
06T'0TE §95'9/¢ 2Tr'vT €T2'6T dVv-8T€S-T.LCT 766°€6 JUBID X20|g SAVINIBS HOIN-UBIP[IYD 10} uoieulpiood aled
89€'€92'T 6T LTC'T 06.'6T ¥8€'92 dV-0v.S-TVET 766°€6 uelI9 320|g Sa0IAIBS HOIN-YIeaH [eularelN
1€5'G9 - 68082 8vY'.e dV-GELS-TVET 766°€6 JUeI9 %20|g SNBSS HOW-UYIESH SAIJUBASId S,USWO N\
GIT'CT - - GTT'CT C1-TSTS-TVET 89G5°€6 Buluue|d Ajuwe4-4NvL
e€Tv'e - - eTv'e d4-3¢6S-TTST LT1C°€E6 X 8L $92IMI8S Bujuueld Ajwed
2.8'628 $  £L0'8LL $ - $  66LTS d4-VZ65-TVET LT2°€6 X i1 seoines Buluueld Ajiwes
‘YileaH 3lignd jo uoisiaig
'$80IAIBS URWINH pue yiesH Jo wawuedad "D°'N ybnoiy-passed
:uoleSIUIWPY S9JIAISS pue S92IN0SaY Y)eaH
(@3NNILNOD) SADIAYTS NVINNH ANV HLTVIH 40 INJN1LIVHIA 'S'N
(@3INNILNOD) SAYVMY Tvy3a3d
saimipuadx3 sainipuadx3 sainipuadx3 sainipuadx3 JELTY JELTY 3L weiboid/iouels ybnoly] ssed/ioiel
[eloL 207 BNty (ybnoay1-ssed s, Jojuel vad4o
pue 10811Q) ybnoliy1-ssed |elapa4
[elopa4

(panunuoo)
Z¥ 8Inpayos

2T0Z ‘0€ dUNC papul JeaA auy) 1o
spremy 91eis pue [elapa4 Jo sainipuadx3 J0 8|Npayos
'ulj0e) YuoN ‘Alunod uoiun

209



"abed 1xau uo panunuod

09¥'0817'8 09%'080'9 000°'0017'C S9JIAIBS UBWINH puUe Y[eaH Jo Juswiredaq "O'N [el0L
0/5'650' G8T'62.L'T G8€'0EE Yi[eaH al|qnd 4O UoISINIQ [e10L
82E'CT - 8ze'CT ¥4-2T09-TVET VIN YijeaH aANRIUBAId S,UBWO AN
922'T oTe 916 00-7SS7-09vT V/N sisojnasagnL
000°'0S - 000°'0S 00-85€S-CEET V/N 9SINN |o0YydoSs
€86'% - €86'% 00-€0S9S-19¢T VIN uonowold yiesH/uononpay Xsiy
902'T 0L¢ 9€6 OM-09.1-ESTT V/N AlunoD-01-ply UonuaAald pea
€62'09 - €62'09 00-97.S-TVET VIN solulD Anulsren sty ybiH
16€'62 - 16€'62 ¥0-0€ST-LTTC VIN S21IUN0YD 0} PIY [BIBUSD
22S'Shi'T 908'GeY'T 9T.'6T ¥0-2S.V-€STT VIN $994 BuiBpo pue pooH
0€g's - 0€e's 00-TS.LV-€STT V/N YlfeaH [ejuswiuolinuzg
06£'8S 08S'VS 018'€ 00-TSSY-09VT VIN SISO|NdJagn [-8seas| d|gediunwuwod
00S‘C - 0052 OY-96SH-TTET VIN Sply-oseasiq 9|gedIunwwoD
¥20've ¥20've 000'0T Ng-9€SV-TTIET VIN Sply-aseasiq a|gediunwiwod
9T¥'L - 9TVv'L 00-0TSY-SLTT VIN 9sess|Id 9|qediunwwod
0S9°'L - 059, 00-6659S-0C€ET VIN 13JuUe) [BJINIBD puk Jsealg
S0E'6EE S6T'vee OTT'STT 00-0TTY-0TVvT VIN uonesIuIWpyY YyijeaH-sanuno) ol piy
‘UireaH 21and Jo uoisinig
{(d3INNILNOD) SIJINYIS NVINNH ANV HLTVIH 40 INIFWLHVdIA O'N
€59'€18'S 9v0'TEE'Y 109'28Y7'T S82IAISS [B120S JO UOISIAIC €10
98/°€09'T €68°708 €638'708 VIN sluswiAed Jyauag 1921IQ-SHNPY 104 S0ULISISSY [e19adS Aunod/arers
¥9'G0T ¥¥9'G0T - VIN S)NpYy 104 dduUeISISSY [e1dads Alunod/erels
GGZ'STY 1GT'2L 860°'EYE V/N suawAed yauag 10a11g-siuswAhed Jopua pue Apisgns uondopy SMD
€0v'9S - €01'9S V/N QWOH J91S04 a1e1s
92.'95¢ €9€'82T €9€'82T VIN uoneziWIxXe pun- awWoH 1a1so a1ers
6T8'T - 6T8'T VIN SuoISInOId [e10ads are) 191so4
956'89.'T 956'89.'T - VIN a|esINquiay-UON 1SIi4 Y10\
€E0'VSI'T €E0'VSY'T - V/N papun4 Auno)
1G1'S - 1G2'S VN e\ syl areys
v.12'SYT - v.12'S¥T VIN uels vews aod
:swelboid S92IAIBS [e100S JO UOISINI
6ET'LLE - 6ET'LLE J1218n|D Buiby :s801A18S 3NpY pue Buiby Jo uoisiNg [e10 L
180'¢y - 180'¢cy V/N S[es|N palaAljad saWoH - spund ale1s %06
8GE'0Y - 8GE'0F VIN uonuinN arefaibuog - spund a1e1s %06
€18'90C - €18'90C V/N S8JIAIBS BWOH-U| - spund a1el1s %06
188'/8 - 188'/8 VIN SS9V - Spund 31el1s %06
1a1sn(D bulby
1S92IMBS )NpY pue Buiby jo uolsinig
860'0€C 622'02 698'60C paresodiodu] ‘uaip|iy) Joy diysiauned euljored YyuoN ybnoiyl-passed [e10 |
6770'8L - 6v70'8L VIN Areiqi
670'2ST $ 622'0C $ 028'TET $ V/N UiesH
parelodioou) ‘uaipiiyD Joy diysiauned eujjosed YuoN ybnoiyy-passed
S3JIANG3S NVIANH ANV HLTV3H 40 LNIWL1HVYd3d "O’'N
(@3INNILNOD) SAYVMY JLVLS
salnipuadx3 salnpuadx3 salnipuadx3 salnipuadx3 JaquinN JaquinN 3111 Wweibold/louels ybnolyl ssed/louels
el [eaoT arels (ybnouy1-ssed s Jojuels va4o
pue 10811Q) ybnouy-ssed jelapad
[esopa

(panunuoo)
Z¥ 8Inpayos

2T0Z ‘0€ dUNC papul JeaA auy) 1o
spremy 91eis pue [elapa4 Jo sainipuadx3 J0 8|Npayos
'ulj0e) YuoN ‘Alunod uoiun

210



"abed 1xau uo panunuo)

STP'€66'28T $  TI8Y99'9T ¢  TL6'TCE'LS $ €€9'900'60T ¢ spleme [ed0| pue alels ‘[elapa) [elo |
96.'€V2'2T 089'86£'9 9TT'SV8'S - spJeme 8]els [e10 1
€GT'€92 TOL'T9Z SP'T - VIN 92INISS S,URISIOA
NOILVYLSININAY 40 INIFWLIVH3d O'N
9828 6TS'9S Sve'9z - VIN UOIRAIBSUOD) 1818\ pUR |10S
:UOIBAIBSUOD JaYe M\ pUE [I0S JO UOISIANIQ
S30dNOS3Y TvANLVYN ANV LNIJWNOHIANT 40 INJNLHVdIA 'O'N
16/'€2E - 16/'€2E - uoneuodsuel] jo juawuedaq "O'N [el0L
T9G'€L - T9G'€L - 1091-10d wswAoldw3 - feuopisuel] 1S4 YOM dVOd
ZLB'EVT - CL6'EVT - 1097-10d weibold 21qnd [elaua [einy dvoy
¥92'90T - ¥92'90T - 1091-10d 8ouelsissy uonenodsuel | pajqesia pue Alisp|3 dvod
(dv0od) weiboid asuelsissy bBuiresadQ einy
NOILV1HOdSNVdL 40 INJNLHVd3d 'O'N
G5¢'8.¢ - §5¢'8.¢ - uonuanald Aouanbuiia@ pue aansnr ajiuaAne jo Juawredaq [ejo L
Zr9°z8 - Zv9'z8 - 810062 VIN S80I Ajile pue YInoA
8€2'€6 - 8€2'€6 - T1006¢ VIN sJe) Islsys
LTE'T6 - LTE'T6 - £20062 VIN abusjrey) 108foi1d
850'6 - 850'6 - 00006¢ VIN [IDUNOD UONUBA3Id SWlLD s|iusAnf
000°C - 0002 - VIN Inyuyon
NOILNIATId ADNINONITIA ANV IDILSNC ITINIANC 40 INTJANLHVHIA O'N
062'005'C $ - $ 06200 $ - $ VIN pung A1epo-pund rended Buipjing |00yds dljgnd
NOILONHLSNI DI7dNd 40 LNJNLHVH3A 'O'N
(@3INNILNOD) SAYVMY JLVLS
salnipuadx3 salnpuadx3 salnipuadx3 salnipuadx3 JaquinN JaquinN 3111 Wweibold/louels ybnolyl ssed/louels
el [eaoT arels (ybnouy1-ssed s Jojuels va4o
pue 10811Q) ybnouy-ssed jelapad
[esopa

(panunuoo)
Z¥ 8Inpayos

2T0Z ‘0€ dUNC papul JeaA auy) 1o
spremy 91eis pue [elapa4 Jo sainipuadx3 J0 8|Npayos
'ulj0e) YuoN ‘Alunod uoiun

211



8210ydyI[eaH ‘O’'N — Weibold 8durInsu| S,usip|iyd a1e1s
20URISISSY [eIPaN

Juswalinbal
Jpne a1elS ay) 10} Ajoresedas pajeal) ase pue SadIAIBS UeWNH pue yieaH jo Juawyedad "D'N 8yl Aq paiaisnio ate Buimolo) ay L

GG2'8/Z ¢

2v9'e8 8T006¢ S90IAI9S Ajile pue YINoA

8€2'€6 TT0062 ale) I19)8ays

LTE'T6 €20062 abus|reyd 108foid

850'6 000062 ]IDUNOD UONUBABIG BWILD B|IUSANL

0002 $ INYUYON

uonuanaid Aousnbuie@ pue sonsng sjiusAng Jo uswedag

S30dNOS3d NVIANH 40 LNJNLHVH3IA 'O°'N

sainypuadx3y 1aquinN 3111 Wweibolid/ioiuelsy ybnoiy) ssed/ioiueis

areIs s, Jojueln

ybnoiy]-ssed

1SMO|0}
se sjualdidal-gns 0} spreme arels papiroid AunoD uolun ‘sinpayds syl ul pajussald sainypuadxe a1els pue [essps) syl JO
sjualdial-qns

'3|NPaYds Y} U0 papNjoul ae pue AJUNod sy} 0} SpJeme 31eIS pue [eiapa) PalapIsuod ale Aayy

‘AnpigiBie BuiuiwLIap Ul IUSWBAJOAUL S,AIUNOD BU) 01 8NP ‘ISASMOH ‘SluBLISIe]S [elouRUl JISeq S,A1UN0D BY) Ul PapN|oul Jou e
pue syuaidioal 03 Apoauip pred ale sjuswAed yeuag sjuswalels [eloueUl diseq ay) Jo uonetedaid sy ul pasn Jo ‘ul paussaid
SjuNoWe Wolj Jagip Aew ajnpayds iy} ul pajuasaid SsJUNoWwe awos ‘a104a1ay ) 10y uoneiuaws|dwi Ipny a|buIs areis ayl

pue suoneziuehlO 11j0Id-UON pUe SJUSWUISA0D) [eJ07 ‘B1EIS JO SHPNY ‘SET-V J8INdJID GINO JO Sluswalinbal sy} yum adueplodde
Ul pajuasald si a|Npayds Siyl Ul uonewloUl 3y Bununodoe Jo siseq [enJode payipow syl uo pajussald si pue Aunod

uolun jo AuAnoe uelb a1eIS pue [eI9Pa) 8yl SIPN|oUl SpJeme a1els pue [e1apa) Jo sainpuadxa Jo ajnpayas Buikuedwooaoe ay |
uoneIuasald Jo siseg

€

T

'Spremy [eloueuld 81e1s pue [elapa4 Jo sainypuadx3 Jo 8|Npayds ay) 01 SA1oN

2702 ‘0€ aung papud JesA 8yl 104
(panunuoo) splemy a1els pue [eiapa- Jo sainlpuadx3 Jo 8|Npayds
2y 9|npayos 'UIj0JRD YLION ‘A1uno)d uolun

212



